,A DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR ForcE
. Washington

Office of the Secretary FEBRUARY 9, 1966
Gentlemen:

Based on additional information you submitted to our UFO
investigation office at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio;
we have been unable to identify the object you observed on
Scptember 3, 1966. . . .

In 19 years of investigating over 10,000 reports of unidenti-
fied flying objects, the evidence has proved almost conclusively
that reported aerial phenomena have been objects either cre-
ated or sct aloft by man, generated by atmospheric conditions,
or caused by celestial bodies or the residue of meteoric activity.

Thank you for reporting your observation to the Air Force
and for your subsequent cooperation regarding the report. I
regret any inconvenicnce you may have suffered as a result.

Sincerely,
/s/ Jonn P. SrAuLDING
Lt. Col., USAF
Chief, Civil Branch
Community Relations Division
Office of Information.
MR. EUGENE BERTRAND, Jr.
MR. Davip R. HuNT

Exeter Police Department
Exeter, New Hampshire.



er-:C'ron QUINTANILLA, JR., Major, USAF
Wright Patterson AFD

Dayton, Ohio
Dear Sir:

Since we have not heard [rom you since our letter to you of
December 2, we are writing this to request some kind of an-
swer, since we arc still upset about what happened after the
Pentagon rcleased its news saying that we have just scen stars
or planets, or high altitude air exercises.

As we mentioned in our letter to you, it could not have been
the operation “Big Blast” you mention, since the time of our
sighting was nearly an hour after that exercise, and it may not
even have been the same date, since you refer to our sighting
as September 2. Our sighting was on September 3. In addition,
as we mentioned, we are both familiar with all the B-47's and
B-52's and helicopters and jet fighters which are going over this
place all the time. On top of that Ptl. Bertrand had four years
of refueling experience in the Air Force, and knows regular
aircraft of all kinds. It is important to remember that this craft
we saw was not more than 100 fect in the air, and it was abso-
lutely silent, with no rush of air from jets or chopper blades
whatever, and it did not have any wings or tail. It lit up the
entire field, and two ncarby houses turned completely red. It
stopped, hovered and turned on a dime.

What bothers us most is that many people arc thinking that
we were cither lying or not intclligent enough to tell the dif-
ference between what we saw and something ordinary. Three
other pcople saw this same thing on Scptember 3, and two of
them apfpcared to be in shock [rom it. This was absolutely not
a case of mistaken identity.

We both feel that it's very important [or our jobs and our
reputations to gct some kind of letter from you to say that the
story put out by the Pentagon was not true; it could not possi-
bly be, because we were the pcople who saw this; not the Penta-
gon.

Can you please let us hear from you as soon as possible.

Sincerely,
PrL. EUGENE BERTRAN
PtL. DAviD HUNT

’
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Mr. Eugene Bertrand, Jr.
Mr. David R. Hunt
Exeter Police Department
Exeter, New Hampshire
Gentlemen:

The sighting of various unidentified objects by you and Mr.
Norman Muscarello was investigated by officials from Pease Air
Force Base, New Hampshire, and their report has been for-
warded to our office at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base. This
sighting at Exeter, New Hampshire, on the night of 2 Septem-
ber has been given considerable:publicity through various news
releases and in magazine articles similar to that from the “Sat-
urday Review” of 2 October, 1965. A portion of this article is
attached for your information. This information was released

by the National Investigations Committee on Aerial Phenom-
ena, a private organization which has no connection with the
government. As a result of these articles, the Air Force has re-
ceived inquiry as to the cause of this report.

Our investigation and evaluation of the sighting indicates
a possible association with an 8th Air Force Operation, “Big
Blast.” In addition to aircraft from this operation, there were
five B-47 type aircraft flying in the area during this period. Be-
fore a final evaluation of your sighting can be made, it is essen-
tial for us to know if either of you witnessed any aircraft in
the area during this time period either independently or in
connection with the objects observed. Since there were many
aircraft in the area, at that time, and there were no reports of
unidentified objects from personnel engaged in this air opera-
tion, we might then assume that the objects observed between
midnight and 2 a.m. might be associated with this military air
operation. If, however, these aircraft were noted by either of
you, then this would tend to eliminate this air operation as a
plausible ‘explanation for the objects observed.

Sincerely,
HECTOR QUINTANILLA, JR., Major, USAF
Chief, Project Blue Book

1 atch.
Article “Saturday Review” ,




in-:cron QUINTANILLA, . JR., Major, USAF
Chief, Project Blue Book

Wright Patterson AFB
Dayton, Ohio
Dear Sir:

We were very glad to get your letter during the third week
in November, because as you might imagine we have been the
subject of considerable ridicule since the Pentagon released its
“final evaluation” of our sighting of September 3, 1965. In other
words, both Ptl. Hunt and myself saw this object at close range,
checked it out with each other, confirmed and reconfirmed the
fact that this was not any kind of conventional aircraft, that it
was at an altitude of not more than a couple of hundred feet,
and went to considerable trouble to confirm that the weather
was clear, therc was no wind, no chance of weather inversion,
and that what we were secing was no illusion or military or ci-
vilian craft. We entered this in a complete official police report
as a supplement to the blotter of the morning of September 8§
(not September 2, as your letter indicates). Since our job de-
pends on accuracy and an ability to tell the difference between
fact and fiction, we were naturally disturbed by the Pentagon
report which attributed the sighting to “multiple high altitude
objects” in the area and “weather inversion.” What is a little
difficult to understand is the fact that your letter (undated) ar-
rived considerably after the Pentagon release. Since your letter
says that you are still in the process of making final evaluation,
it seems that there is an inconsistency here. Ordinarily, this

~wouldn't be too important except for the fact that in a situation
like this we are naturally very reluctant to be considered irre-
sponsible in our official report to the police station.

Since one of us (Ptl. Bertrand) was in the Air Force for four
years engaged in refueling operations with all kinds of military
aircraft, it was impossible to mistake what we saw for any kind
of military operation, regardless of altitude. It was also defi-
nitely not a helicopter or balloon. Immediately after the object
disappeared, we did see what probably was a B-47 at high alti-
tude, but it bore no relation at all to the object we saw.

Another fact is that the time of our observation was nearly
an hour after 2 am., which would eliminate the 8th Air Force
operation Big Blast, since as you say this took place between
midnight and 2 a.m. Norman Muscarello, who first reported
this object before we went to the site, saw it somewhere in the

vicinity of 2 a.m., but ncarly an hour had passed before he got
into the police station, and we went out to the location with
him.

We would both appreciate it very much if you would help
us climinate the possible conclusion that some people have
made in that we might have a) made up the story, or b) were
incompetent observers. Anything you could do along this line
would be very much appreciated, and I'm surc you can under-
stand the position we're in.

We appreciate the problems the Air Force must have with a
lot of irresponsible reports on this subject, and don’t want to
cause you any unnccessary trouble. On the other hand, we think
you probably understand our position.

Thanks very much for your interest.

Sincerely,

PtL. EUGENE BERTRANI
PtL. DAviD HunT


















T "';g"

AT 2A.M., ON SEPTEMBER 3,

1965, AS NORMAN MUSCARELLO

HITCHHIKES ALONG ROUTE 50,
HAMPSHIRE...

SOMEONE'S GOT TO WARN THE PEOPLE
IN THAT HOUSE! BUT I'M AFRAIDTO
GO NEAR THAT BIG GLOWING LIGHT...

/2

-
.

NV al s

IT'S COMING DOWN
ON THAT BUILD-
ING! THE PEOPLE
INSIDE COULD BE

URT...0R MAY-
@ BE KILLED!

THE PEOPLE IN-

S5/DE ARE AFRAID
TOLET MEIN! 4
THEY PROBABLY ).
THINK I'M SOME §



CALM DOWN!
1'LL HAVE ONE
OF QUR POLICE
CARS CHECK
YOUR STORY/

el 'S /= O BEEN SCARED TO DEATH
W 57 SOME BIG GLOWING OBJECT
WHICH CHASED HER CAR FOR MILES,

I SEE IT! QUICK, KID! GET

| THERE ITI5 BACK TO THE
... COMING CRUISER! I'VE 60T
DOWN NEAR TO REPORT THIS
THAT HOUSE!

A UFO, EH? STRANGE!

I JUST GOT THE SAME
STORY FROM A WOMAN
DRIVER ON ROUTE 101/

ORDINARY AIRCRAFT/ MAY-
BE A HELICOPTER WITH LAND-

ING l.l'?_ms.' BUT WE'LL LOOK

e

L B



"
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Seconps LATER | TOLAND! THE KID WAS

THE POLICE [l RIGHT! 1 SEE THE THING

FREQUENCY [ MYSELF! LIGHTS FLAGH-

ECHOES TOA il ING ALL OVER IT! IT'S

FRANTIC CRY... [l LIKE NOTHING L'VE
SEEN ON T

BERTRAM, T HEARD YOUR
REPORT ON THE RADIO! T

DION'T BELIEVE IT.TILLNOW! |

NEXT DAY, THE AIR FORCE |'| WHAT EVERYONE SAW WAS
|l GIVES TS EXPLANATION. PROBABLY A NIGHT TIME
& S

VY R .
Phers
SIGHTINGS POUR IN.. = A
7 ﬁ\‘ » g“‘ "7" ‘ /
W AR

=% BOMBER REFUELING OPERA-
TION WE'RE CONDUCTING
IN THAT AREA!

"MEANWHILE, IN A NEARBY BARN TTHE '
LIVESTOCK: IS IN PANIC, TERRORIZED BY:
- GOME UNEXPLAINABLE FEAR:. . =

WiEES

> . 7
Gl
o

BERTRAM SPENT YEARS IN i
THE AIR FORCE! HE'D KNOW §
A BOMBER FROM A UFO/

~ ———
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e ‘ | Ree: q-vsoio,”
UFO_SUMIARY SHEET
UFO Reperis = 9/3/65
N Age Logatien of UFQ Sightine  Timé EDT °

Unidentified weman moterist n/a Route 10%L, Epping te Exeber, NIl -12:30 AM

3 Nermam J, Musearelle 18 Route 150, Kemsington, N £1:00 AN
- 205 1/2 Frent Streeb, Russell & Dining preperties. I2:25 AN
EBxeter, New Mampshire . |
Officer Dugeme F. Dertrand 32 Reute 150, Kemsingben, NI F2:25 AN
(Exeter Police Department ) Rugsell & Dining preperties

Pieckpetkot Road,
Exeter, New bampshire

Offieer David R, Hunt 26 Reute 150, Kemsingten, N £2:35 Al
11 Charles Syreet Rusgell & Dining preperties

Bxeter, New Hompshire
(Exeter Police Department)

Officer David R, Hmit Rouse 85/101 Dypass, Exeter N4  3:30 AM
Uajdentified naa Lanpton. New kampsghire Earlﬁr' A¥
BAGKGROUND: )

1 received news of the si%ﬁ'cing through newselips and frem a friend whese
alece is a policewemon fer the Ixeter, New Hampshire Pelice Department.

arrived gt the Excter Pelice station at 6:40 Al en 11 Soptember and interviewed
Officer Hunt who filied sut and sighed an 8~page UF0 questiomnaire and later
gave permissien to use his name in cenrection with the vrepert. I preceeded te
the residence of HNermaa Muscareile and discoversd that he was oeut of State

umtil 12 Septembeir. Arrangements have been made fey a persomal interview upen
his reburn., 1 then dreve oub te the sighting srea of sightings 2 & 3 and .
interviewed rosidents in the general area. Next, I went te tho heme ef Officer
Beygrand and dreve him back to the area ef sighting 2 & 3 where he filled out

a UF0 questieanaire, signed it and gave NICAP permissiea e use his name in
cennection with his gl ﬁ%‘,inge While at the sighting avea he gave me a detalled
description of the sightings and related infermation. I interviewed ethkers

in the area whe had related information and arrived back heme at 2:45 Fi, My -
brether Richard A, Fowler and I retwmed 4o the avea and took pactographs., We
walked soveral wmiles al@mg gone powsr lines near te the sighting area examining
this arca for any sigus ef a UFD landing., WYe fesl that the UFO might have

heen abiracted te this area by these power lines., Ve foumd nething,

SICITING ACCOUNT i1

Ac approximabely 12330 AM EDT Officer Bertrand came wpen )l woman (n?i; 2 as
reporved by newspapers) parked im zn avtemobile om Boute 101 Just eutside
Bxcier. Wheon asked if she needed help she said excitedly thac she had been
chaged alemg Reute 101 between Epping ond Exeter fer 12 miles by a flg:h:g
object which was encireled with a brilliant ved glew, She gtated that the
object dived at her movimg autemebile several times. When Bertrand asked




/
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Page Twe - UFO Repert - 9/3/65 (luscarelle/Dertrand/lunt)

where the ebject was, she peinted te what he thought was a bright star on
the herizon, He dismissed the incident amd after watching the light seurce
for a few minutes to reassure the weman he proceeded on in the eruilser.
lle digmissed the incident and did net attach eneugh impertance te the
weman’s acceunt te warrant obtaining her name,

SIGHTING ACCOUNT 72 (More details ferthceming pending persemal interview)

At approximately 1300 Al EDT, Nerman Muscarelle was walking aleng Reute
150 in Eensingten, N.ll. abeut 2 miles from Bxeter. 4e had beem visiting in
Amesbury, Mass. and had beem thumbing vrides home te Exeter. As he
appreached the Clyde Russell residence he was alarmed te see an ebject
carrying at least L extremely bright red pulsating lights %ge y from
nearby weods and manuver ever. the field adjeining the read which belengs
to Corl Dining. It Toved over the Clyde Russsell heme ard hevered there,
The heuse was enly 20-30 feet frem where Muscarelle steed and the ebject
appeared to be just s matter ef several feet from the reef, Frightened
theraughly he ¢rouched devm beside the stermewall which runs aleng the
field. Several vimes it seemad te meve cleser te him, Its lights were se
bright that the Russell heme was bathed with 'i:iimd“giw" The size of the

- sbject semmed te Be much larger than the Russell heme and Muscarelle later
told the pelice it was 80=90 I “qi;ﬁ},gngo The object was completely silemt.
Then it moved back eover the Carl Dining field amd disappeared ever the
trees, Musearelle pounded on the doer of the Clyde Russell heme sheuting
that he had seen a "flying saucer™, The Russells weke up but refused te
angwer the doer thinking that the beoy was drunk or semething., Muscarelle
finally guve up snd started down the read teward Eweter., e flagged doun
a passging autemebile and received a ride to the Bxeter Pelice statien.

(The above acceunt is based upem infermatien received frem Officers Humt
and Bertrand, I hope te receive more detailed infermatien frem Nerman
¥ugcarello persenally as seoa as he returns from hhede Island.)

SIGHTING ACCOUNT #3

Muscarelle reperved the imcident te Desk Officer Reginald Tewland at
about 1345 AM EDT, He was white with fear and hardly able te talk., A .
radie call was made teo Officér BertTand asking him te veti¥ha v6 the gtatien,,
piek ug Muscarelle and investigate at the secene of the sighting which he '
did. Upen arriviag at the Carl Diming £icid the objesct was nevhere te be
seente After waitimg and lecking frem the eruiser for several mimutes,
Bertrand radisd headquarters that there wag mething there and that the 'beg
mst have beem imagining things, It was then suggested that he examine the
field befere retiwrning,se Bertrand and Muscarelle advanced imte the field.

As the g@l‘lce officer dlayed his flashlight beam back and ferth ever the

field, Mugearello sign'i;ed the ebjeet rising siewly frem behind seme nearby
trees and shouted, Sertrand swung areund and saw a large dark ebject
carrying a suraight row of 4 extrasrdinarily bright red pulsating lights
ceming. inte the field at t¥ee tep level. "It diing areund teward them JusT
clearing a 60-70 feot tree and seemingly ealy 100 fect away frem them.
Izstinctively Officer Bergrand drew his service revelver, I}e stated that
Muscareils sald that he shouved "I'1l sheet iti") bubt t%inkmg this gmzisgd
replaced it and yelled teo Muscarelle te take cever im the cruiser, le teo
e that he was afraid that they beth would ke burned by the blind:!.n% lights .
elosing ia on them., They ram te the crulser where Bertrand immediately put
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Page Three - UFO Repert « 9/3/65 (Vuscarelle/Bertrand/Munt )

in a radie call te headqugr\‘;ers for assistance. Officer flunt arrived
xg%th;..?_mﬁiages and. the trie ebserved the ebject move away ever and below
e tree Co

DATA (Sishting i73) ~ Based en signed questiornairss and interviews with
Officers Bertrand and Fumt,

There is cenfusien cencerning the exact times of the sighting., The
pelice skated that the newspaper accownt stating that Muscarelle arrived at
the statien at 12:00 AM is imcerrect and that it was probably clese te
2:00 AW EDT, I have arbifrarily assisned the time as being 1:45 AM EDT
afver vaoking everything imto censideration., Dluscarelle's mether alse
theught it was cleser e 2:00 AN, Perhaps afier ay interview with
Musearelle I will be able te pinpeint the time mere exactly, Based upen
the 1345 AM ¢ifie and the fact that whem the trie returaed te headquarters
and reperced the sighting 73 te Desk OfTicer Towland at exactly 2:55 AM
I figure that sighting 73 teek place approximaiely between 2:25 and 2:50 AM.

Sighting i3 teek place ever the field ef Carl Dining in Kemsingtem, N.H,
on Reute 150 about 3 miles seuth of Execter, N.l. The duration ef the
ekservation was about 10 minutes by Officer Pertrand and Nerman Muscarells
and about 5 minutes by Officer Hunt when he joined the pair at the field,
There was ne trace of daylight at the sighting time, The weather was dry
and ¢eol with a slight breeze., Observing cenditions wore excellent. The
mpon had set at 31:15 PM EDT and the sky was studded with stars, The exact
shape ef the ebjeet could net be seen by cither pelice efficer altheugh
Bertrand_told me that it _seemed compressed.as if it.were reund or esg:é!ane:d
with definitely no protrusions lilke wings, rudder er stabilizer. I nopé te
ebbain merd details from Muscarelle cemeérniag the shape, size, etc. of the
@bj@c‘ho

The ebject carried at least ) oxtremely hrilliant pulsating red lights
‘vﬁniv:'ﬁ appeared te flagh in a steady sequence., They were srranged im a
fixed straight line pesidtien. Officor Bertrand said that theg wers brighter
thon_any light he had ever scen and at clese range he fowmd that he ceﬁ%ﬂ T
aot 1ok directly at them, He had the impressien that ho and Muscarelle
might have been burned if they did not vim frem the object as it appreached
thenm, He compared their brightmess to that of avtemebile headlights shining
directly in one’s face at less than several yards away. Ihe.marner in
which they pulsated gave Bertrand the distincet impressien that this was an
iftelligently-cengtructed vehiicle and definitely ast seme natural T
phonomenen. 1ne lights were d@%ﬁx:&‘_tely seen te be part eof a large dark
sorya epiéct. The reflaction ofTthewbjerts kedy caused a hale offee
arpgund It. Doth officers had eyeglassés en when viewing the ebjeeto Neither
ofTiter would give an estimate of hew large the object itself was althe
Bererand was quoted to have sald ©hat it was as "big as a heuse". Bertrand
told me that it was very large bub the lights ebscured it,proventing him
from soding eneugh of it te kilew how laFge, When Officer Humt arrived the
object hed ueved off se that he thinks he_enly saw 2 of the lights. I was,
heowever, able e obtaiin a statemsnt frem Bertrand cencerning the apparent
size of the ebjest. He stated that vhen the object was at its clesest that
it wag almest the apparent size of a "grapafruitP held at armis 1 0
Whea Ye first sighied it the size seomed te be that of a "baseball" held at
ares lemgth, Mo estimated thal it was 200 yards away when he firgt spstted
it after Musearelle shouted. o sajd that at ibs clogest appreach it

just clesred a neerhy 60-T0 fout ¢ren, He sald the abject was very close amd thab it
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appeared te ba abeut 100 feet away. While viewing it frem the erulser it
manuvered ever the field at abeut 500 yards atfﬂ befere moving out ever the
tree-line. As it meved the ebject seemed te ©ilt back and ferth frem side

e _side.

~ The sighting area was apéa coeuntryside with farms, fields and woeds.
The ebject was first seem ia the nertheast and last seen im the n
meving im an east to west flight pattern in a stiraight line with an -

B

elevation of abeut 10° abeve the tree-line.” Both efficers had read a little !

on UFOs, HNeither weuld venture an epinien as to what the ebject was butb = |
Officer BeruPand stated that it was definitely not am airplane e¢r helicepter
and that in his opinien that it ias am intelligemtly censtructed amd
operated vohiclo, Ne seund was heard by the witnesses, even at clese range
but apparently the anlmelg o tHe HEarby parn of Carl Biss "ﬁg"ﬁ‘o?igm"h?“ea”i““é“r‘
sénge semothing that tened them as during Sighting 2 and #3 _they
whinnied and kicked their stalls. The deg whiéh belenged te peeple acress

Eie Toad was varking furisuslys  Ne interference was meticed en the pelice
radis. ner were the lights and ignitien of the wi .3 cruiser affected.
Neither officer would estimate the ebjectis speéd but stated it was very
slew, HNo scerched marks er indentations were feund in the field. Beth
efficers agresd that their signed statements and names could be used by
NICAP im commection with the repert.

SIGHTING ACCOUNT #4
At 3:30 AM EDT Officer Zunt sighted whal appoared te be the same ebject :
hevering in the distaace while at the Route 85-101 bypass in Exeter. He h
vadigdd Officer Bertrand whe teld him it was prebably avstar. Shertly :
afcer this he lecked for it again but it had disappeared. Since there was
little detail im this sighting I did net bother to prebe for details.

SIGHTING ACCOUNT #5

- Te add te the ecxeitement the pelice and ethers told me that an unidentified
hysterical man tried te call the police during these carly merning heurs te
repore a UF0; Hg dialed the operater frem a pay stabtidn inm Tfampt@n N8,

and oxgitedly asked the eperater te comnect him with the police ag he Bad .
been chased by a "flying sauwcer". Before the call coiild be put thro to
the pelice, the telephens connection went dead, Neither the mam or the
parcicular Bampten pay statien could be vtraced. -

MILITARY INVESTIGATION

Officer Bertprand jnformed me that Seen after they made their repert ef
sighting i3 be Desk Officer Towland they notified Pease AFB, Pertsmeuth, Nill.
of the sightings by phone. Later Poase AFB phoned back and arramged fer the
police officers te be interviewed. At around-9:C0 AM that same merning, a
USAF Majer and Licubenant in wniferms arrived, questicmed them and dreve
bgen_Bertrand and Bunt eut—to-the Carl Diwing field where they had sighted
e UFQ, Zhey asked mere questiens and reburned witn the pelice efficer's to .,
the stibion. The USAE officers asked thé pelice. j;g,__'g%y_j@ icoep the sig‘ht:;iz . {//
frem the press ae_ag be_aveid alerming uhe lecal peeple. 1he pelice teld the
USAT officers ¢hat it was teo lage for this as several reperters algjeggg had
the story. (Ong had driven frem Hanchéster om a motercyjcle cemplete with
black jacket, helmet ahd goggles. £ heard privately that he gave the ' i
volice quibe a start whea he came jnte the statien lecking like a man IT®M
ouser spacel?l) | |
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Bertraiid teld me that mest ef the questlems asked were the same a8 T had -

asked.,

the ebject. Ome questien ©

The USAF team were garticularly interested in the size and shape of

to knew if the chicken's en the Caifl Rusgell residence mext te the field

were awakened and alarmed diring the sighting, (Apparently they were not

disturbed as they were net heéar dwingh‘c'he sight ng alth@ugg they may have
ably 30

and just were net heard as the chicken heuse is pre

400 yards, at

least, frem where Musecarelle and Bertrand were standing in the field,

- Three interesting items teld to the pelice were that (1) that a USAF
check gad revealed ne aireraft in the area during the time sighting i3
occursd;
New E‘amf:sh’ire‘ai‘eg._alm?é;st”nightly during the previeus week, {3) They
mentioned a §1§Y§t‘mg vhich teook place im late July cemcerming anautemebile
coming upea # UFO
dotalls and hepe te leek inte it.

After returming Officers Bertraiid and Hunt te headquarters, both the
Major and Licilitenamt returned te the sighting ared and questiene

(2) that Pease AFDB had been receiving other UFO reperts in the

hevering over the road n frent of them, I have the

living near the field., IMrs. MuscaFelle teold me that 2 USAF gfficers had

questicned her sen at length and that a U.S. NaVy officer alse came te the .

house and asked several questiens abeut the sightiag.

INTERESTING SYDELIGNTS )
1. Mr. and Mes. Chase of Kensingtom whe live a fow miles dewn Reute 150

told me that:

A, 0 Sl for releisqne

a. Aa Air Feree Officer had gons areund /c.e all the steres sslling
~ mowspapers im Exeter and piwchiased all cepies of the Manchester, N.ll.

bo

Co

"Unien Leader” unewspape? which carried a detailed acceunt of these
sightings and a pesed phote of Ferman MuScarells and Officérs
Bergrand, Munt and Towland, The pelice had net heard ef this and
I did not check further,

Mrs; Chase, a nurse, wag en duty at the Exeter Hespital duriiig the
Eighmgfs and teld me that the Hampten, N.o. pélice phened the ,
Vospital te see if a mam wWas breoughy inte the hespital suffering a

hgart attack er stieck. 1his was iii relatien te the Nysterical mam

wie tried te Feach jhe police by pheno about being chased by a UFO,

Referensze sighting r5. ~
Mrs, Chase alse told me that a friend of Wers, a Mrs, Parker
Bisdgetv, werks as a cerrespondent for the

at stuck ir Dertrand’s m nd was that they wanted ,

d residents

-

newspaptr and was asked By the USAF net te publish the UFO reperts.

(Hewever, she did, as I have a cepy ef Wer article dated 9=7=65).

2, AW 3'0 St. Laurente of Kifigstén Read, Kemsiiizten, Nol: teld & church
mi'n%‘ster friend ef mine that her brother, whe uspally ciits the hay gm
the Corl Diming field, refuses te de so pecause he has heard that the

hay has been centamiated by radiation.

3, The pelice teld me that fer the past few weeks provieus o the sightings
Yave réceived reperts from peeple, seme of them persemal friends, of / .
their whele house suddenly boing momentarily illuminated by 2 right /-

they

reddish glow after they had gene to bed, Ne objects were seen.

). Mp, and Mrs. DeMarce, N. Hampten Roat(Route 88), Mumpton, N.t. ebserved
s sbar-1iks object bi:inkmg red which alternately-hovered and meved im

-t i

y/
averbill (Mass.) Gazerbte“/ , £



- &

Page Six - UFO Repert = 9/3/65 (Muscarelle/Dortrand/funt) _

the western sky between 9:00 and 9:30 PH en 9=5-65, Since Venus had set
aiid Mp, Demarce was a fermerr USAF Cefitrel Tewer Uperater wie assured me
that it was net an aircraft, I thought the repert was werth mentieming.

5. A M, Rice, whe gvms g CB radie teld me that he was talking ever his radie
with a‘Pertemsuth, 0 i pelice cruiser emn 9=-7-55 abeut 8:%% PM EDT, The
offi cer teld Wim that he was eut Iavesty gatﬁng a UFO reﬁ%rt and asked Mr.
Rice to give him a call if he spetted it, HNe said the UFO was suppesed te
be over the Hamptem Falls aréa mear where Mr, Rice lives en Reute 88, Ne
UF0"was secem by Mr, Bice. The cruiser used call letters XA-8616 and used

 both chammel ir2 and #6,
6. Since the UFO gighting at the Carl Dining field many cars pull up amnd
wateh fer the @bﬁecp at might, HMr, Dining had %o rgpe effpthe ggtrance-t@
 his field and pest it as peeple were littering his preperty.
7. Mrs, Muscarelle thinks the USAF Lieutenant®s name was Brant,

8o Op my first twe visits te the Carl Dining field en the msming@ei’ 0=11-05
I saw a lew~{lying C=119 Flying Bexcar pass ever the areca en both eccasiens.

9, Other eivilisn UFO Invéstigaters were given the brusheff by the pelice. - I “ v
was very fertunate te have received such a good respsnse frem them.

EVALUATION
Eharacters of witpesses: N o -
Muscarslle » Comes frem twice-broken heme » has had preblems with

pelice and is well-kneun by them - usually a cesl calm
bey. Until my persenal interview with him I ean say ne
mereé. o

Bertrand & Hunt - Credible witnesses, geed observers with a keen desire
+ . %o relate enly facts - L' cguld net even persuade them
e ggess at estimates of the object's peal size and. .

speedo .

The Si gnmm

Sighting f 1 ~ Thers is enough similarity between the unidentified
woman's repert o2nd vhe déteiled sightings 72 & ir3 te
warrant its probable authenticity, The chances ef a
similar Fepers- eccuring the same morning, unless ¥
wore authentie, ig astronomical. It is possible that
the ebject she peinted out t Officer Bertrand was
Jupiter and net the ebjoet that had chased her,

Sightings #2 &3~ The credibility of the witnessing pelice efficers.
ghuing coupled with tge' sightings of Muscarelle; the many
typical "UFO characteristics exvibited by ghﬁ ebject;
the other correlahed UFO reperts and the military's
inrterest and actiens cencerning the UFO reperts, rate
these as f{rst-class UFO gightings by this Investigaters

Sighting # 4  « Insufficiemt lnformatien but interesting.




B Page ‘Seven - UFO Repert - 9/3\‘/65 {Muscarslle/Dertrand/Nunt )

Sdghting '5 - Again, the chances are astrensmital that several pesple
entirely indépendent of eme anether sheuld"rgpmpghgb
they were "chased by a flying saueer” in the same

émeral area. It is pessible concerning sighting #5
that semcene could have been menitering the pelice
radie ceanversatioms abeut the UFO reperts and decided
te play a 1ittle jeke but this seems unlikely. Net
many peeple, ether than Fespensible liw eafercemeiit
off{cers are up tuning the pslice radie band at these
wee heurs ef the mermwing. Thus, the repert is prebably ;
genuino, “Why the widénvified man did net er. ceuld net |

- complete Mis call te the pelice will have te remain an
gpen qugsm@n mless be steps ferward and relates what

\appened, L

N ———— .~ SaA\M > B W NI ae (v e geamee e e .

i was able te talk te many pesple during my Jnvestigatiem. The great
majerity did Hiet appear te Eg frightened ggmw the incident., This ?g
contrary te what the USAF team theught weuld eccur if the stery get in the
newspapers. JInstead of fear, I feund a tremeadeus curiesity em the part of
peeple 1o _knew_mere 8g; 5 oLy sneugh many oponly veiced the

ipterplanet erigin theery witheu CRCOragZement frem mQ, oever
SSSTEBRyveryfe FOUHIE SUNG THan these wie ave read Witbly sbeut UFOs

W PEBY ot
would talk like this. Slewly but surely ever {he years the public has
been beesming "UFU-censcigush Reperts 1like this eme ceupled with wide |
publication will Nelp much im inferming the public-at-large ef the reality

and problew ef UFOs : . .
P ° R ¥ NoTE- OFPICER'S RECORDES EAST - WEST MoVEMEAT: OF UFO
¢
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s U 'F'0 DATA SHEET Page one

This estionnaire has been prepared so that you cau give as much
informgzion as possible coiicerning the "Unidentified Flying Object”
that you have observed. Please try to answer as mauy questioas as
you possibly can. The information that you give will be used for
research. purposes. Your name will not be' used in connection with
any statements, couclusioans, or publicatious without your permission.
Thaak you very much for your cooperation in this matter.

Investigator: National Investigation Committee on Aeria Phenoniena_ e

Raymond E. Fowler Vimt, S a-tpoiteq] Aigdlin
3 Friend Co
13 Frien urt e 9 uk 0“&‘(

* Wenham, Massachusetts

2V2s A
WAL SIERT IV T 4

1. whea did you see the objeét?. 2. Time of day: ( 2 P
e e hges SNHOUR
DAY MONTH SRYBAR - (Circle One): or P.M.
3. Time zone: (Circle One): @) cfastern (Circle One): @ Daylight
~ b. Central Saving Time
e et b. Standard
e. Other T’*“‘?_”

4. Where were you when you saw the object?

KENS/NsTon  RED A ) s Ton MoK, o
Nearest Postal Address City or Tbwn State or Country

Additidnal remarks: e

5. E£stimate how long you saw the . object. /0

a. Certain €. Not very sure
airly certain d. Just a guess

6. what wag the conditior:
(Circle One):

Of the skyz , oa -

2. Bright daylight

b. Dull gaylj race of daylignt
G Ylight e. @trace . g g

° Bright twilight £, Dops 3ylight

7.

If you gay the

locateqg ®bject dqury

f ¥ou lookeq

g DAYLIGHT

3t the ohjecs  CLCHT,

ect?







ﬁﬁithat you have observed.- Please try to answer as mauy questioas as"
. you possibly cau. ‘'The informatiou that you give will be used for -

uﬁF 0 DATA SHEET

This qnestiounaire has been prepared 'so that you caa give as mndh
information as possible concerning the "Unidentified Flyiag Obdect"

research. purposes. Your name will not be' used in connection ‘with
any statements, couclusioas. or publicatioiis without your permission.'
Thaak you very much for your cooPeratioq in this matter. R

Investigator: National Investigatiou Committee on Aeri
. ;Raymond E. Fowler ‘
3‘Friend Court

Phenomena

PR
\?
.
'

......

: uob{TH .,’FL“A,R.,._ " (circle One): (A.M) ;.;;;or:‘jif:;;;._f;;U‘

| 3. Time zoue: (Circle One)s

q;p Eastern
b. Central
. Mowitain
d. Pacific
'é.nother

4. dhere were you when you ‘saw the object?

: Additional remafks.

_‘u»

= Ns (WsTon  RED ___k L—Mz;%‘fm BT e N
Neargst Postal Address " City or Tbwn State or COuntry(* )

5. xﬂétihate howflbng fou'séw the. ohdeét. ‘ /0

HOURS MINUTZS SLCONDS

t 5 1 ctrcle one of the following to iqdicate how certai: you are of
‘your answer to. Questioa S. : :

Certain . ' c. Not very sure

| airly certaia d. Just a guess

<$6;5 ﬂhat was the condition of the Sky?

(Cirqle One) : a. Bright daylight d. Just a trace of‘daylight

b. Dull daylight @ trace of day]. ight
Co Bright twil;ght f, Don’t remember e

‘ 1'h9/‘ -~ .a. In front of you ¢s To your right e. Ovethead}_
 N/a :

I£ you “saw the object during DAYLIGHT, TWILIGHT, or DAWN, where was the
§ SUN located as you looked at the object?

Do * 1n back of you 4. To your left £, Don’t- reméﬁber o




8. I£ you saw the object’at NIGHT, TWILIGHT. or DAWN, what aid you notice

| Page 2.
concerning the STARS. a.d:MOON? .

8 1 STARS (circ]/e one)s ‘None . 8.2 MOON (circle one):
‘ 2‘ A few a. Bright moonlight -
L;{*id,o'_‘Don't remember b. Dull moonlight Vg

c. No mooualight- dark
d. Dou't remember

9; was the object Brightérﬁﬁhéh the backgrouad of the sky? -
(Circle oune): ’ us

b, NO ¢. DON®T RmddBeR‘

,‘7‘

'10.If it was BRIGHT:R THAN the .sky backgmund. ‘was the brightness like that 1o

. of au automobile headlight appearing to be? (CIRCL: ONE B:.LOW).

a. A'mile or more away?(a dista.t - car).
b. Several .blocks away?
" .c. A'block away?
d. ‘Several yards awa
e. Other? _BR '&/ﬁ’{: j;//ﬂr\/ HerD Zlf/f»‘ 7'

c zo;e RANGE

%

11. Did ‘the object: . - LT (Circle One for each question)

DON'T KNOW '
“DON'*T KNOW.-~

Qe Appear to. staud still at any time?
b. Suddeiily . speed up and rush away at any time?

c. Break up iuto parts or explode?. D DON'T KNOW.'
.- de Give off smoke? = =  “DON'T KNOW '} -
« Chaage brightnesa? - DON*T KNOW . . |-

: .f." Cha.ige shape?”

o e 'DON®T KNOW -
g.'-"‘Flicker. tbrob, or pulsate?

- DON®T KNOW -

’ 12. Did the obJect move behiud something at a.y time, particularly aicloud?

'_ tell what it moved bel’u.nd‘ ) L e

(circle O“e”,. Yi&S @ DON“I‘ KNOW . If you answered z_e_g. the

Did: ‘the' object move in frout of something at aay time, particular'
: J», a cloud? ¥
: ¥ES. ‘ DON'T KNOW  (Circle One)

Sy

Did you observe tbe obj ect 3 through any of the followiug?

a.. :Byeglasses ‘@NO f d. Window glass YES NO g. Other.
' be Sun glasses' .YES NO" ‘Binoculars YES NO L
" 'Ce.Windshield = YES NO - f. Telescope YES NO




S it - Page 3
Tell in a few words the following thiags about the object.

;'90

16.
a. SOUND . Ao A E
b. COLOR ____ _RED
- ’

17. Draw a picture that will show the shape of the object or objects. Label
and iaclude in your. sketch aay details of the object .that you saw such as
wings, protrusions, etec., and especially exhaust trails or vapour trails.
Place a. arrow beside the drawing to show the direction the object was :

- moving. DR
R el sl GS/"’ —
(—wL's'F»——, ¢ Fs] W —E#5—
. /{ é’!
(o - ey
) oL ( /?/
'«0 C?l nt ;F?
I\
N4
o - LTS
ReD LighTs | KRED 7771
FLHSHI NG /’:&05’5/;./7
18. The edg'es of the object were:
(Circle One): a. Fuzzy or blurred e, Other Z/}//rs WER &
b. Like a bright star s) Br'ettT Thev
c. Sharply outlined CREFTED # Arnto
If there was MORE THAN ONE object, then how maany were there? ‘

Draw a picture of how they were arra.ged, aad put an arrow to Show .
the direction that they were travelling.

% o - B




. Page:4
0 Draw a picture that will show the motio: that the object or .vgv; :

objects: nade. ‘Placé.a. MA* at the begiunning of the pathy
-a "B" at the end of the pathy aud, show a. y cha: .ges in
.direct:l.o.z during the course. :

Ty

In order that - give as clear a picture as poss:l.ble of what, you

. saw, we would like for you to imagine that you could construct. t‘he, :
objec that you saw, - Of what type MATERIAL would you make it?.

- LARGZ would it be. axd what SHAPE would it have? Describe 1. your G'

 own:words a common object or objects which when placed up iu- the :

E aky would g:lve ‘the sane appeara.xce as the object which you saw.




T ' B | o ~ Page' 5-
| ‘25: ‘where were you located when you_ | 26. were you (circie One):
"+ saw the object? (Circle One): - -
. a. Inside a building. 3. In the business aectioa of city?
b. In a car ~ b. In the residential section of
Outdoors e a city?
. In an airplase | %;; In open coustryside? =
‘e, At sea « Flying near a:x airfield?
£. Other : e. Flying over a city? =
. - £f. Flying over open country?
g. Other :
27. What were you doing at the time you saw the object, and haw aid you
happen to uotice it?
— WenT 7o msls?" 18 apzac 0T :

28. If you were MOVING IN AN AUTOMOBILm or other véhicle at the time, then
complete the followiug qpestiousz'

28.1 What direction were you moving? (Circle Ona):

N/ﬁ a. North  c. East e. South g. West .
S be. Northeast d.“Southeast £. Southwest h. Northwest

28. 2 How fast were you woving? riles per hoqr o
28.3 pid you stop at axy time while obsexving ohdect?

L (Circle One): YES NO .-
29, what direction were. you lookiug whea you FIRST SAW the ohﬂect?(Cir?le~~
_ . One)s

a. North ,t% aaat ‘ e. South g. West

& Northeast d. Southeast £. Southwest . Nox-thweai -

30. What dizntiOJI:were you looking whe: you LAST SAW the ohdect?(Circle Chua
&) North c. dast = - e. South g. West g
~ b. Northeast a. Sou;heast f. Southwest h.-Northuést, :

31. If you are fardliar with bearing terms(asgular direction), try to
estimate the oumber of degrees the object was from true Horth a.d
also the the uumber of degreees it was upward from the ho:izOu(elevatiod

a. From true -North ______ degrees
| ~ b. From horizo. degrees

~ 31.2 Whea it di sappeared:
2. From true North degreeé
b..From“horizoﬁ : degrees

. 31.1 When it first appeared:
’%" o




32.

Page 6

I2 the followiug sketch, imagine that you are at the point shown. ;
Place a.. "A" on the curved line to show how high the object was above

_ the horizo. (skyli:e) wheu you FIRST saw it. Place a "B" on the sare

curved li.e to show how high the object was above the horizo: (skyling)
whe:: you LAST saw it. s

T

334

In the following 1arger'sketdh place a. “"A" at the positioﬁ the object
was whern you FIRST saw it, a:.d a "B" at its position wheu you LAST

saw it. (Refer to smaller sketch as a. exanple of "how" to comjdete
the larger sketch.) s

33.1

Were there a.y“KNOWN aircraft in the sky'duriAg your sighting?
(Circle One): YES @

1f you answered Y&S, was it followiiig or attemptiug to iateréept
the Unideutified Flyiiig Object? (Circle One): Yus NO.

If you aiiswered YiS, please circle TYPz of aircraft:
MILITARY?. COMM ZRCIAL PRIVATE? JuT? PROPLELLsR
How maiy engines did the aircraft have?




r:-nn‘.' v . 93937

Wwhat were the weather co.ditio. s at the time you saw the obj ect?

have caused it?

Do '/U'OT K;\jowé

'34.1 CLOUDS(Circle One) 34.2 WIND(Circle One)
@) Clear sky a, No wiad
b. Hazy : (b, slight breeze
Cc.Scattered clouds ¢. Strong wind
d. Thick or heavy clouds d. Dou't remember
e, Dou’t remember
34,3 WaATHER(Circle One) 34.4 TEMPERATURZ(Circle One)
@ Dry ' a. Cold
b. Fog, mist, or 1ight rain @ Cool
¢c. Moderate or heavy rain Warm
d. Snow d, Hot
e. Dou"t. remember e. Don't remember
35, whe: did you report to some official that you had . seen the object? '\>
Official or Organization Name (s) Day Month Year SR
_P.ESK O !/ FFIC:R .Ex,z:rufz FD. T ET__ &S
orF/CER DLAMD | ' o
36. Have you read 'literatuie pertal. iig to Unideatified Plyi.g Objects?
(Circle One) "NO ~If Y&S, how much? (Circle One) A LITTLa?
' L MODERATALY?2  uXTANSIVELY?
37. wWas auyoae else with you at the time you saw the object?
(Circle One) @ NO
37.1 IF you answered YiS, did they see the object too?
(Circle One) . @ HO
37.2 Please list. their names a d addresses if you circled Y&S:
(Attach separate sheet for above)
' 38, Was this the-first;"?‘tj.me that you had seen an object(s) like this?
- (Circle One) -f::f{a’-iii} @ NO
38.1 If you a.swered NO, the. wheu, where, a:d uuder what circun sta wces
did you see the other one(s)?
, .
39. 1Ia your opiaio.a, what do YOU thick the object(s) was a..d what might

D T e PR S T DI R S S Vg




.._,.1:' 40.. 'Dqlﬁou thi.Xk you ca. 'eséii‘tté{t;e'_ the speed of the object? Page 8’
S (Circle One) Yis ST R T
R £ you a ;swered Yas, thes ﬁat speed would you estimate? it Mo
L '1,4.1:;‘ Do you thi.kx you ca. estimate how far away fron: you the object was?
R (Circle One) , KO
'”’_"If you a. swerad Y:.S, thé' how far away would you say it was? [QQ Fu‘.'r
| 42. Did the Object(s) cause any i-terfereice with the operauou ofs
- - (circle vhere applicaole) RADIO? TV? LIGHTS? o'mr,a? )\)QM
IF you uuderli.‘ed aiy. of above, explai:: the i. ~terfereuce below. o
43, Was a photo take. o'f"'the Object(s)? (Circle One)' YES"‘ ' @ v
o Xfould you be willi g to submit a copy? (Circle Crne) YL..: SNO
A}/ﬂ X£ you circled Yc.b, pl.eaSe send copy iudicati..g mouetary rei bursemeutx'
44. Do you beloug to a y Organizatio.. which i..vestigates Unide-.tified .
Flviig Objects? (Circle One) - YES If vss, 1ist them belows
45, May we publish your- report if you uane is Keptco.fide. .t:l.al? g 'NO
o May we 9ublish your report a2 :d use your .ame? ~NO
: . (Circle One)
47. Please give the followiu i.u{::gm.atio'.. ‘abqut yourself. Eve r/\n:
Nmb__@ pr : s
Last 2 ‘Jamz KP c 1’ pE - Pirst Nane - Middle Name
ek Foc K E?(ET!—R e NG H
ADDRESS _SuiEie . S
: Street . City Cot . State
mr..n.paom. NumMBsR 772" 493 , IR
| 'What is your preseut job? . ¢PoL~:'c€ o FF-,'e:zR -
AGB. 32— SEX | , ‘ . T
; Please iudicate a y educational trai'xiug ‘you have had: (Nurber of yeard
'-b. Grade school _ f e. Techiical school : :
c. COglegﬂ: 091 , . - (Type of) —
'd. Post graduate _______ f. Other special traini.g? Lo
48, S:Lguaturé%‘b% F B Eeclias_ Date: " 2010 /65 -




fziresearch pu:poses. Your name will not be' used in coanection with'

"r o4

UF O DATA SHEET . Pagel Lone |

This questiounaire has been prepared so that you caa give as much
information ‘as possible’ concerning the “Unidentified Flying Obﬂect" B

-~ that you 'have’ observed. Please try to answer as mauy questioansias -

~. . you possibly’ .caii. The: 1aformatiou that you give will be used.fori:

any statements, - ‘coriclusions, or publications without your petmiasion.\
-}Thank you very. mneh for .your cooperatiow in this matter. . - ..

Investigator: National Investigation Conmittee on Aerial Phenomena i
, o Raymond £, Fowler jgﬁ Jt RV

i 13 Friend Court
f;wenham,,wassadhusetts

_ " Whea did you see the object? o 2. Time of day:
3 L .
: DAY YEAR - ’ - (Circle One):
5.1 3. Time zone. (C:chle One)f @ gastern . (Circle One)t . Dayl:l.g'ht
: S R " P. Central: - Saving Time
; " c. Mountain :
d. Pacific
e. Other

e

4. ﬂhere were\you whe:i you saw the object?

HQAOSAMQ\LoM __RFD. FewguAne
Nearest Postal Address ‘ gity or T .

Additional rematks*

mstimate how long you .saw the obJect.

HOURS

,~fg,5 1 Circle one of the .following to indicate
) your answer to Questioa 5.

a: Certain e Mot very mre
b. Fairly certaia d. Just a guess- .. .
o . 1 '

 what'. was the condition of the 9ky?
o '”‘(Circle One). 8. Bright daylight d. ,
| b. Dull daylight B OR trace of day 1ght

:;.;"é.,_ Bright twilight. £, Don't :emembe;;

y LLzyou - sa

rSUN 1ocated as you looked at “the object? _ R
au In front’ of you . ¢ To your right :eé'*””"

"b In back of you'! . d. To your left £




3 . s A J
. . e i 4
* - ‘ A prd

el S - : Page 2

e. If you saw the object at NIGHT, TWILIGHT, or ZAWN, what did you notice
concerning the STARS and MOON?
8.1 STARS (circle one): a. None . 8.2 MOON (circle oae):
.. | =X gaﬁ;w Bright nboxilight
S;> Don't remember 5. Dull moonlight

c. No moonlight- dark
d, Don'*t remember

) ;9. Was ﬁhe object brighter thaa the ‘backgrouind of the sky? -

(Circle oue)s ‘n.s ~  b. NO c. DON®T REM:MBER

| 10.If it was BRIGHT:R THAN the sky background, was the brightness like that
1. of aua automobile headlight appearing to be? (CIRCL:S ONE BELOW) t

a. A mile or more away?(a dista.t car)
b. Several blocks away?
c. A block: awaya

d. Several s awsay? : ‘

@ Other? %ﬂ-\ﬁ-\’\'\"&f\, SHy o X +$ &:k_
‘ ; ” f”’cLuS& Lange R
”1511; Did the object: - o 'Zf‘ (Circle One for each’ question)

a. Appear to stand still at aay time? (HO) DON'T KNOW .
b. Suddeuly speed up and:rush away at any time?
Cc. Break up iuto parts or: explode’

d. Give off smoke? =~ -

'@+ Change brightness?

f. Cha.ge shape? "

g. Flicker. throb, or pulsate?

D)-DON'T KNOW
. DON*T KNOW -
DON'T KNOW
DON'T KNOW
DON®T KNOW
'DON'T KNOW

12. Did the object move béhind something at a.ay time, particularly a cloud?

(Circle One):;_‘YES (NO) DON®T KNOW If you answered xeg; thea
tell what it moved behind: L

13. Did the ohjeéﬁ move in frout of something at aay time, particularly
a cloud? vss (NO) DON'T KNOW  (Circle One)
If 'you a.swered yes, then tell what it moved in front of:

‘14. Did the object appéar(Circle One):'rRANSPAREm'? DON'T KNOW

*5‘}5,, Did you observe the obdect “.. . through ainy of the following? -
= a. dyeglasses’ QZF‘NO d. Window glass YES NO g. Other

b. Sun glasses YES NO e. Biaooculars YES NO

¢, Wiadshield YiES NO f. Telescope YES NO
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. B , ' Page 3
Tell in a few words the following things about the object.

a. souwp __Nopye
b. COLOR _ Red .
— y ‘
17. Draw a picture that will show the shape of the object or objects. Label

6’\»0 o Q‘\"('\(L,ze_... . " C>: _- E

(I-Q,L IR G—L('\‘s _f Las (fl\\‘U f\ 7

a:d include in your. sketch aay details of the object that you saw such as
wings, protrusioans, etc., and especially exhaust trails or vapour trails.
Place a.. arrow beside the drawing to show the direction the object was
moving.

—~ WEST — | —EasT -

-

O

—_y

) __'_——_”—‘-___'_________, . - ~ ; B
MY DT(\uc ucr_’\) . T K ,

|19,

18. The edges of the object were: , ,
(circle One): a. Fuzzy or blurred other _Lights wewne 3o
'4 . b. Like a bright star b Ak -Hm?' . cnete \ e
| ¢. Sharply outlined - Heals eppecy,
If there'was MORE THAN ONE object, then how many were there?

Draw a.cpicture of how they were arra.ged, aad put an arrow to show
the direction that they were travelling. -

oo er  theee el plashing
"e-hts '“«AoVVT pé\ _ of\) ez izewm T ASYH  Te wes
. ‘o N ( —
At Bbs oF bo mn?,us O
6 wach oMucp . -
Y
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‘ | ! g | Page 4
Draw a picture that will show the motio: that the object or g )
objects made. Place a. "A" at the begiunaing of the paths
a "B" at the end of the pathy a.d, show a..y cha..ges in ,
di:echio.; during the‘_courae. N o clen by 2o o nec*L\uo QN

o ﬁUcL\L .

® < @

””132;.

- was in its loagest dimensio le /

'IF POSSIBLZ, try to guess or estimate what the real size of the object |
F eeto

‘How large did the. object or objects appear as compared with one of t'he
following objects "held" ia the ha:d at about arm's leugth?

(Circle One)s « Head of a plu © g _Silver dollar
R b. Pea . ' h, Baseball
Ceo’ Dime L o I. Grapefruit
~ dgMickel o ~ j. Basketball
- Quarter - k. Other
.' Half-dollar '

22.1 CIRCL& ONs of the ‘followi: xg to i..dicate how certaiu you are of
your a..swer to Wuestio. 22. '

a. Cert;ain o @ Not very sure
b. Fairly certain d. Uncertai:

ACOM?ﬂrnﬁSou boqsg,L fnol: ble :L.?r‘{-ﬂnée, OF l/ma).f.s

23,

How did the object or objects disappear fror view? __ Do 82"—&' &z -

Low 4!\, "a Ty en L‘ NS

24.

In order that you ca: give as clear a picture as possible of what you .
-saw, we would like for you to imagine that you could construct the
object that you-saw.  Of what type MATERIAL would you make it? How
LARG: would it be. : nxd what SHAPS would it have? Describe i. your

own words a commoa Object or objects which wher placed up in the

sky would give the sane appeara.ce as the object which you' saw.




. NP : : : Page 5
.25 ° Where weré you J.ocated when you» 26. Were you (Circle One) s
) saw the object? (cirele One):
a. Inside a buildiug . ' a. In the business section of cj.ty?
b. In a car | - b. In the resideatial sect:l.on of
@) Outdoors She a city? .
d. In an ai.rpla,ne @ In open oom.tryside?
e. At sea o o Flying near aa airfield?
£. Other s e. Plying over a city? -
f. Flying over open oountz:y?
e Other
27. what were you doing dt the time you saw the object, and how did you RN

ha ppen to notice it?

Colled <o "SCL‘_‘W‘:-".-‘;"""QL* _assist c‘H\tv\_

('V\_FU\§'Q“« \ )

\ﬁwplete the follow:l.ug questio.aa:

you were MOVING IN ‘AN AUTOMOBIL& or other vehicle at the time. theu A s

28.1 what direction were you moving? (Circle One)s o
" a. North . Bast e. South g. West . -~ - |
~ b. Northeast d. Southeast £ « Southwest  h. Northwest
28.2 How £ast were you moving? i miles per hour
28.3 Did you stOp at auy time while observing object?
(Circle One): YES NO

29,

wWhat directio. were you looking when you FIRST SAW the object? (C:lr;:le 1
- ‘ .~ One):
- T North - . Ce bast T @l South g. West Tt
@Northeast d. Southeast f. Sbuthwest h. NortTMeat

What dimctio. were you Yooking whea you LAST SAW the object?(c:!.rcle One) L
.North c.;u.ast T Ce bouth g. West ; R -
" Da Nort‘heast d. Southeast £. Southwest h. -Northwest -’ : :

'."31.

}a

If you are faniliar with bearing terms(angular direction), try to
estimate the number of degrees the object was from true North a.d -
also the the number of degreees it was upward from the horizou(elevatiod
31.1 When it first appeareds S
a. From true -North ___degrees

* be From horizo. : degrees

31.2 When it disappeared:
a. From true North degrees
b. From'horizon; R degrees




32.

. : Page.6,
I: the followiug sketch, imagine that you are at the point shown. ¢
Piace a.. "A" on the curved line to show how high the object was above

: {20:: (skyli.e) wheu you FIRST saw it. Place a "B" on the sane .
g&iﬁggrliué to ihow how high the object was above the horizo. (skyliugl

- whe:: you LAST saw it.

: 33.

In the following larger sketch place a. "A" at the position the object .
was when you FIRST saw it, a:ud a "B" at its position wheu you LAST
saw it. (Refer to smaller sketch as a., exanple of "how" to comjdete
the larger sketch.) : o

33,1

Were there a .y KHOWN aircraft _in the sky duri.g your sighting?
(Circle One): YES

If you answered Y<S, was it followiig or attemptiig to iuterceptfﬁ

the Unideutified Flyiug Object? (Circle Ome):  YusS NO e

e  1£ you aiiswered YiS, please circle TYP: of aircraft: ‘ S o
. MILITARY? COMMERCIAL ! PRIVATE? JET? PROPLELL&R?
"Liaﬁbw ma.y engiines did the aircraft have? :
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What were the weather co :dition:s at the time you saw the objecte

34.1 CLOUDS(Circle One) 34.2 WIND(Circle One)
@5 Clear sky - . A, No wind
9. Hazy : a : (b) Slight breeze FEEr
C.Scattered clouds C. Strong wind R
d. Thick or heavy clouds d. Do::'t remember C
e, Doii’t remember ,

34,3 WAATHER(Circle One) 34.4 TEMPERATURE(Circle One)
(@ bry a. Cold
b. Fog, mist, or light rain Cool
c. Moderate or heavy rain C. Warm
d. Snow d. Hot

e. Dou't remember : e. Don't remember

-Whe:. did you report to some official that you had'. seen the object? A

Cmg

Ea Official or Organizatio. Name(s) Day Moath - ,Yea_r
g f@ar‘( OfFpicen txd:en. .0, / ' 3 7 . 65"
" O £icen VDLAN l / o
36. Have you read literature ,éé’rtéi di:g to Unide:tified Flyi.g Objects? =~
(Circle One) ' NO  If Y&S, how much? (Circle One)
- 37. Was a:youe else with you at’ the’ time you saw the object?
(Circle One) , NO
- 37. 1 IF you answered Y.us; did t‘hey see the object toco?
' (c:i.rcle One) . O : ; wlt
37. 2:Please list their names a4 addresses if you circled Yub: LN
,  (Attach separate sheet for above) 4 .*'-"'
K‘ 38.' Was th:l.s the first time that you had seen an object(s) l:l.ke this?
(Circle One) ) . NO
38.1 If you a swered NO, the. -wheii, where, a:d wader what circun sta.Ces
did you see t‘he other o“e(s)? .
rd
In your opiuaio.,’ what do YOU thiiuk the object(s) was a.d what might

39.

have caused it? <)y Lot KMow;

e mmves ee e meeetmmes A en . mees siewe e msmmese © mere | e e mebims o - e et we ha ee e mmem e e bae 4 e st e eecimera ge seiioime ee et t® Sh & Semens et miemae o ——nt o — e




Dolyou thi.Xk you. can estimate the speed of the object? i Page BIY
(Circle one) “ YES NO : o
If you a ;swered Yr..b, thes what speed would you estimate? ‘ MPH
41, Do you thi.k you ca’ estimate how far away from you the object was? -
(Circle One) . ,’ NO
If you a.swered n.s. ‘thér, How far away would you say it was?j‘____?:.%
O:\'-' c.\«osl;_g‘k SM a- o-‘ooc*_ X — 3 m, Lgs O HJK-I'L\!
42. Did the Object(s) cause any i:terference with the operation of: ;

/~~(circle where applicable) RADIO? TV? LIGHTS? O'I'Hh.R? None

' \\)*P‘ IF you underliued auq y o£ above, explai:. the 1.:terfereuce below:
| 43. wWas a photo take:: OF the Object(s)? (Circle One) ¥&s  (W0)
\"/ﬁ SHould you be willi.g to submit a copy? (Circle Ore) n.s - iNO

~SLIE you circled YuS, please send copy :I.:adicati g mouetary rei xburseme-.t:

44.

~

Do you beloug to a.y Organizatiol which 1., stigates Unide:tified '
Flyii..g Objects? (Circle One) YES ({D If Yis, list them belows:

- 47..

Last Name - - ' First Nawe - Middle Name '
;.ADDRESS I _chanbes S‘f Exotern N H

: - What is your preseut job? ?o Ls ce.‘ OFgicen .
S oheB-_ R 6 . sex=_ Male o |
: Please iudicate a ¥, educatioaal training you have hads (Nurber of yeaté

"'¢s. College - ERECEE (Type of) —
.de Post graduate ~— f. Other special traini.ng?

Please give the followi.g informatio.. about youraelf:

NaMs__Huwt _ Devid 02060&”

Street : City State .- ;@ |
TELZPHONZ mmmo.R ')’l;{ 3toLs | ST

.Grade school ? e. Techiical school
~ High school A

f;‘d'Sig'n'atur.‘é@ﬁ&é” é@ i Dates 2/ /& 5~




(Addi%ioml 1nformt1m o'btainod frcm, ;
notes of cne who persauslly interviewed
Rmmmnl&umamdﬂs»antiquammur1965)

' Exact dmmed ﬂlﬁdiﬂ{gll of.
"{1ashing red 14ghts’: “Bcwb‘qﬁ;ggd
- during ﬂashas‘orﬁoer Bortrand:
~ got the impression: ‘thiat the' objocjb

" was "compressed™ with mo protrusiane
-®1ike snd ogg” but this 13 5ua‘6‘en

educated gnesa.

LIGﬁ“‘S PU‘LSED 'IH A SI-‘OOTH

 SEQUENCE. 1-2w3=k=5=k=3<2x
TAKII‘: TUO bﬁCONDS T0 COMP ETE
"A FULL GYGLE ;

f ) All w:l.tm ewop
" the' object roek fbnck and :
: %ﬁm 6 diring

PDSI’!‘ION Ao Dhin’baimd as 5.?. cam aea-gs f?‘ths
2 fie1d towerd: 'Mcmuo's;i“m.ﬁalr

FICAP Invomgatui-
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HEADQUARTERS
817¢th COMBAT SUPPORT GROUP (SAC)
UNITED STATES AIR FORCE
Pease Air Force Base, New Hampshire
‘ 03803
BO
Initial Roport of Unidentified Flying Object (UFO) f < $ 6 8EP 1965

AFCS (FTD)

The following rcport of an unidentified ﬂying object is hereby
submitted in accordance with AFR 200-2, :

- Qe Description of object.
| (1) Round.
- (2) Pascball.
(3) Bright red.

(%) @red lightm

(5) Lights were close together and moved as ‘one objects ; ;’

(4) None _ s
(7) None “ ‘ i
(&) Nome  fVo oot = .

(9) Extremely bright red.
" b. Doscription of course of cbjects
(1) Visual sighting. | |
(2) Object was at an altitude oi‘ appro:dmately 100 £t and

| movcd in an arc of 135 degreese . ..o AR

(3) Object disappeared at an altitude of approximately 100 £t o .‘ , - o

._.....—-.‘

on a mag. hoading of nppro:.imatoly 160 dcgrces. ) . ' .




HEADQUARTERS
817th COMBAT SUPPORT GROUP (SAC)
United States Air Force
Pease Air Force Base, New Hampshire

(&) The object was erratic in movement and would diaappear /6/ '//

"~ behind trees and houses in the arear. It would then appsar at a

poaition other than where it disappearedo When in view it would act

- — —

- -

a3 & floating leafle N

(5) Object depart@d ot a heading of 160 degrees and was
¢ T ——
obsarved until it disappeared in the distance.
(6) One hour. v
Co HManner of Cdbservation.
(1) Ground -'tisual;
(2) Noneo
(3) N/Ao
do Time and date of sightingo
) 03/09/béooz -
‘(2) ﬂight
s, Location of observer.

(1) 3 N.M, South West of Exeter, NoHe

]
fo Identifying information on observor.
(1) Civilian, Norman J, Muscarello. Age, 18, 2053 Fromt St,
Exotor NoHo Unemployed (vill join Navy on 18 Sept 65). Appears to be

relicdle.




HEADQUARTERS
817¢ch COMBAT SUPPORT GROUP (SAC)
UNITED STATES AIR FORCE
Pease Air Force Base, New Hampshire

' (2) Civilian. Eugene F Bertrand Jr. Age, 30. Exeter Police

A

| Department, Exeter NoH. Patrolman. 'Reliable.
. . _————'-_—‘ *
(3) Civilian. David R Hunt. Age, 26, Exeter Police Depart-

morit, Exeter NoHe Patrolman. Reliable.

p—

ge Weather and Winds. - - : _ .
' (1) The weather was clear with no known weather phenomenon. . |
There was a 5 degree inversion fiom surface to 5000 ft.

(2) Winds at Pease AFB, N.He

h.
i.

Je

ALTITUDE . WINDS

Surface 290/03

6000 310/03

10000 270/77 B
16000 270/56 3

30000 - 260/19 N
50000 250/33 REE
80000 x -

(3) Clear (unliinitga).
(1) 30 MM

(5) Nones

(6) Nonee

None

L .

None

None

... Not Rece

(7) See SKBW T. Log P diagrams .




. ‘ HEADQUARTERS
: 817th COMBAT SUPPORT GROUP (SAC)
“UNITED STATES AIR FORCE
' 'Pegse Air Force Basc, New Hampshire

ke Major David He Griffin, Base Disaster Control Officer, L
Command Pilot. _ '
Q) At this tine have been unable to arrive at a probable

cause of this sightinge The three cbgservers seem to be stable reliable

persons, esneéia.llj" the"two patrolmen. I viewed the area of the

sichting and found nothmg in the area that cculd be the proba.ble causce, -

i ‘v,- Pcase AFB had 5 B-I.;.7 aircra.ft flying in the area during this period .

but deunot believq t_.he.y: }jxad‘any connection with this sighting. -

1. ‘Nome. .‘

| - FOR THE COMMANDER

. 4 Atch '
.:._.lo Statement, UFO Sighting, _
. Eugene Fes Bertrand Jre. LT
- 2. Statement, UFO Sighting, .
David R. Hunt, o ;
" 3+ Statement, UFO Sighting, '
Norman J« Muscarello.
4o SKEW T, Log P Diagram .

L
-

Cai




Uro Sighting

I, Eugene F. Bertrand Jr., was cruising on the ;?J:‘;%%&‘g of

the 3rd of September at 0100 on Rte. 108 by-pass near Exeter
N.H. I noticed an automobilc parked on the side of the road
and stopped to investigate. I found a woman in the car who
stated she was todupset to drive. She stated a light had
been follewing her and had stopped over her car.

I stayed
“with her about 15 minutes but was unablé to sed anythinge

I departed and reported back to the Exeter Police Station
where I found Norman Muscorello. He related his story of
sceing some bright red lights in'a field. After talking

with him avhile I decided to take him back to where he said
he had scen the lights. Vhen we arrived I parked the patrol
cruiser and turned off the lights. There was nothing unusual
in the areae Mr. Muscorello and I got out of the crulser and
. started walking into the field with a flashlighte When we had

rone about 50 ft a group of five bright red lights came from

“behind a group of trees near us. They were extremely bright
and flashed cn one at a time. The lights started to move
around over the field. At one time thoy came so close I fell
to the ground and started to draw my gun. The lights were so
bright Iwas unable to make out any forme There was no sound °
or vibration but the farm animals were upset in the area
and making a lot of noise. When the lights started coming
near us a2gain. Mr. Muscarello and I ran for the car. I radio-
ed Patrolman David Hunt who arrived in a few minutes. He also
observed the lights which were still over the field but not as
closc as before. The lipghts moved out across the field at an
estimated altitude of 100 £t and finally disappeared in the
- digtance at the same altitude. The lights were always in iine
at about 60 degree angle. When the object moved the lower
lights were a2lways foxward of the others..

= :
1
!

EUGENE F. BERI‘RAND JR
Patrolman

2
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UFO Sighting

I, David R. Hunt, at abou@on the mowrning of the 3rd of
September, received a call from Patrolman Bertrand to report
to an area about 3 miles South West of Exeter, N.H. Upon
arriving at the scene I observed a group of bright red lights
flashing in sequence. They appeared to be about 3 mile over
a Ticld to the South East. After observing the lights for a
short .pericd of time, they moved off in a South Easterly
direction and disappeared in the distance. The lights appeared
to remain at the same altitude which I estimate to be about
100 ft.. . . : o - :

-DAVID R. HUNT
Patrolman

AT,
",-'_."lf(v',"’ :

Qe
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STATEHENT
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UF0 Sighting

.I Norman J. Muscarello, was 'hitchhickingﬁ on Rte. 150, 3 miles

South West of Exeter N.H. at 0200 hours on the 3rd of Septecmber.
A group of five bright red 13ghts appearcd over a house about

100 £t from where I was standing. The lights were in a line at
abcut 60 degree angle. They wore so bright they lighted up the

_arca, The lights then moved out over a large field and acted at

imes like a floating leafs They would go down behind the trees
or behind a house and then re-appear. They always moved in the

same &0 degree angle. Only one light would be on at a time. They

were pulsating 1,2,3,4,5,554,3,2,1e 1hey were so bright I could

not distinguish any form to the object. I watched these lights™

“for about 15 minutes and they finally disappeared behind some
trees and seemed to go into a field. At one time while I was

L watching them, they seemed to come so close I Jumped into a ditch
. to keep from being hit. After the lights went into the field

o AE T

-

N

I caught a ride to the Exeter Police Sta.t.ion and reported what
I had seen. - = _ ‘ i

<

NORMAN J. MUSCARELLO

e W BA A LS
St a Y




S

'3 Sep 65, Exeter, New Hampshire .7 Sep 65, Leon, New York
TSgt Dadd Moody called Griffis AFB, New York and telked with Sgt Hunt & 416

"'SW of the 4028 Operations SAW. Informed ,ti:at Farm Boy refueling route had

been change to Fur Trapper. Records wvere -checked and revealed that no

~ refueling operations were conducted on the nights of (morning of 3 Sep) 6 Sep. 3
The Route Tur Trapper vas closed on the early morning from 03/0500 to 03/06OOZ
for an giddr eignth Air Force Operations "Big Blast" Sgt HRunt informed Sgt
hoodg; that a refueling area "'Doym Date" controlled at Loring AFB, parelleled

fur trapper adjacent to the old Farm Boy area. Sgt Moody Called Col Smith

at Loring AFB. No flights were conducted on the morning of 3 Sep and one operation

~of a ':B-QT » KC-135 from Loring entered the Speed Way refueling area near Indianapolis
at 075/01102. There were no refueling operations in the New England area during '
thek time in question. Any information on Big Blast should be obtained from the
Eight Air Force. Major Benanders at Westover AFB at the 99th Bonb Wing,DCOI,

wvas requested by Sgt Moody that he ob‘bain information pertaining to the lighting

1

-and type of aircraft in the area utilizing the operation Big Blast.

. The above was done by telephoxie 'ox‘1_528' Sep 65.

o
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Jael Bidibin ol »m e

EXETER A least five
people here 'includmg "two pollce
officers, have reported seemg ‘a
flymg saucer in thls area.ti-

“The’ incxdents occurred early

[+:] (-‘#c-v-uo

» W

those whp saw_the’ unidentified

- e W e

Pélice; ~"|V|||é'n's Sight |
“UFO: D Exeter Area;

Friday,* mormng, According “'to’

flymg ob]ect it ‘was about “thelll;
size”of ‘4" house and had a'ted!

SEF|.

Shontly thereafter the’ ‘*thmg”I
disappeared :silently, as quxckly,

then hitched a ride; to the police’

seen R NI
Although Muscarellos story
was extraordmary Patro]man
Bertrand drove him back to the

as it had appeared. Muscarello' -

station ‘and related what : he ,l}ad' e

.|glow around. it, and’’ moved scene of the incident .in +the';
|silently dhrough’ ,t\h,e,msht : i|police cruiser. When , theyl.ar

| When; E;etep,. police, . inyesti- || rived, nothmg was. there. i "
%ated Ja’spar] ed‘;qar on . the ]l - ¢ 'Lpolice See UFO{ ’.,‘., ,
xeter-liampton 9.0 35S atll officer Bertrand suggested.
about 12:30; investigating offiger |l ipay they walk' into the field
Eugtne B.aT4Tand, who ap; || where the flying. object wasdast|
proached. the, ‘ﬂ'a'iP“d found twoll|coen=' and*“they"* were ; : joined
women.in .sate of near shock.'fiihere by Exeter Patrolman!
They , told, th&t they - had been| David:Hunt,~who -also drove'to|
chased, ,alo Jjte,; 101 - all.; theillyn'e ' scene. ‘Bertrand was talking!
way.. from pping; -.abott " 12 reassuringly when Muscarello|
miles, by"a* flying object which) shouted. “Look; there .it -tis,
glowed with" a -brilliant halo 'of rising sup * from > behind: those
red. , According {o the women,f frees.”’ The offxcers spun around
{the~*thing” followed their carg and . looked:

From' behmd a stand of trees
in the black of the night,:a huge
Niblinding glow of., brilhant red!
light. surrounding it, the’ ob]ect;

which *:Bertrand |'li rose, not fast but wavermgly
thoughtwas g;,star; lo_w'“on the(fl “It traveled slowly andjyawed
horlzon ~7 &= "ovetsllislightly from side to side. They
T ,Repoprts Chase o were stunned by the’ blinding
l g &m;am n red light -as; it*moved toward
M" ”rénqi“:“gg’;:“p' %905 them "across - the field. The

me:in lice| || object seemed .to. be coming
wrthqaa{hair?i:gihgngo re-|||toward - them | -and. Bertrand|

avin _been’chased by al|made a move toward his police
y,mg, \objecggas, he'.was (h 1tch.1 service .. reyolver - but . thought
lhkmg towards:Exete on,Route better of it..Then the.three men
150 thensi%ton“ e b :: ran to the police cruisers., When
. rellm, ld. Desk Ofﬁcer questionedon” the “size " of :the
iReginal J‘"Dol d that ‘as’ he,; db;ectted ?fﬁcg ‘;théagfe sewse
walked: alon i’g‘ltl;e “highway, a l Sfm: houlseu’)’ ) ahou
larafs;’g br;lsiizsntonob;;ctad;eci;t:', - Usually,’ when mc1dents ‘such
figld”andlopse,‘and ‘alpng - +the!'.
highway Not knowmg “what it
was and. ;bemg understandably

iqha;;}n,z he3 crouched,;in a dltCh{

P :

along”the’ road s’ ‘the object, so!
. auits*'shapei

could not be determined in*the|
: giow""“made"what "seemed, . to;

ching passes at'
him tf égf {

s e
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as thls ,are reported -the sight- .
mgs ‘take’ plaCe over a’ period of
a, few seconds but in, this;
ms,tance,‘, the, men observed the
ohject:: for.. 15-or 2.0 :minutes- at
what appeared-to besa, relatively
short distance; 3 1
One Yoftt the' ‘most amazmg.
pomts' ‘which™ Officer /Bertrand]
made ‘whileibeing’ linterviewed
was 'the- complete: absence “‘of:
sound ’as - ‘the¥*flying .~ ob;ect‘
hovered over 'a-‘nearby’ farm
bunldmg,‘castmg -a brilliant‘glow-
over - the - ‘dwelling,: {whiles'the
farm': animals ‘.in ‘i‘the :barn
‘caused- " a:. tremendous:*: ¢ 0:m-
‘motion.:"Horses - whinnied: and
kicked® the walls-of their-stalls.
Then ' the’ whjecbhdnsappeared
rapxdly in3the; distance

._,‘,
I

;' Then at :3:30 p m:- foicer
Hunt reported: from:-his -cruiser
'that) he: hadyagain sighted the
JUFQ,¢:while .~hes was+. at-the|
lmtersectionof the Rte.»101 by-
pass” in- Exeter’ and’ Rte, 87 to
’Newﬁelds from’Exeter), ¢
‘ Toppmg thestrange activities,
Exeter police’ reported’ that “a
te]gphone call from an’ nmdeptl- :
-~ fied*pay station in Hamp.t,tm had
been ‘made by: a hysterical man, .
but that: ‘the"line had’gone' dead|
belore the. ‘call’ “could=be com-
pleted or ‘the pay ‘photte’ station|;
identified”“The :man*had- dialed|’
the- operator" and’ cried’*‘Get. me|,
thepolicé” "and > said"'he had |-
been’ehased by afflying saucer.
Hampton pohce,zwere notified}!,
but’, nothing ‘was’” determined,
about, the" Pomt from ‘wiiich :the
call* was'! 'made, - “what ' *hag
fmghter.ed the man—or. why thef
call~was sp-abruptly’ brokenzofi:];

5
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AN UNIDENTIFIED FLYING OBJECT
over Kensington and Exeter was seen by
three- of the persons in this picture, the
sightings occurring over a 25-hour pe-

. riod, according to the witnesses. Left to
'._right Norman J. Muscarello, 18, 2051 .

Front St., Exeter, who reported to Exe-

ter pulu,e that he saw the UFO near’

Rie. 150 Kensington; Exeter Patrolmen

David Hunt and Eugene Bertrand, who
returned-to the Rte. 150 scene with Mus-
carello: and also'saw the mysterious’ ob-

jeet in same_area, and Exeter Patrolman’

chmald “Seratch” Toland, desk officer

“that night," who' recorded the incidents
in the polme hlotter. 2yt

(Paul E Marstun Photo)




T thc E’dztor.. .

Last week THE' NEWS-LETTER
and ' other papers carried - ac-
Z:unts of a ﬁreball or ﬁreballs

en by many in' this’ regxon;

(unidentified -flying obJec.s)

utting. the reports together;
it seemed’ to ~have been ‘ﬁrst;
seen in. Kensmg'bon over ‘the|:

section of Dnnkwater Rd ‘be- |
tween the main road, Exeter to
Amesbu:y, ,d the old road
(3 bounced élong over the‘
Great Meadowa, beyond Havpr-
hill: Rd. Come;, up;over; Klm-
ball’s ;ull;_& ;nto i Planstow. ete.
Repqr,tg are S| still coming:jn 1 from
thosg-v _’ w‘,,xg,u&other,places.

We. had a. smnlarkincldent in
Maasachusotts arouml Boston,
in Noyember; and Decen;ber of :
1925, V5 *w;,:;’{i*-*, |

 Fedgra]. people’:‘made am.
examination’s asf’«did, sHarva

College andy,%maga@ ;calle
Popular. AstronOmyk qupshed
a senes of artlcles 0 .‘ the;

$

setts» came.. overnfrom' a clty
there; and had; thxsuanter ‘show
him the trall of - the ﬁreball,
ete, .. T Ryt
Around: 100; yeara ago “'the
Bachller falmly heard a‘fireball
or’ shootmg “gtart’ stmke the
marsh.: The next .day<they 'dug
it out and hauled it vhome: te
their front yard where 1t stlll
rests. ke T
We sent a: snapshot Qf it to
Smlthsoman Instltube ‘in
Washmgton, D.! ey who sen
him'a letter of,thanks. tod
! Those who do not ‘accept ‘the
mcxdent as ‘one’ ‘among’ several
‘such think’it's séht to us “from
some of-. the ‘Russian vessels off
our coast vnth whom -we-are in
contest.as to which nation -can
be, 'ﬁrst ‘in* explomtlomof look-

T et vt e
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New UFO Photos
Prove Genuine

New photographs proving UFO reality, analyzed by experts,
may be the most important evidence in the latest wave of world-
© wide sightings, One UFO was photographed at an Argentine
Government scientific base, three more by U.S. and foreign
newsmen, and other pictures are being checked.

Pictures of the UFO below, taken Aug. 8, in Beaver County, Pa,,
were declared genuine by three professional photographers who
examined the negatives. (Signed evaluations given to NICAP ina
five-day on-the-spot investigation.) Because of the close range
(one-fourth mile) these photos have unusual detail.

In the first, the bright spot at the left is the moon. The white
mass under the UFO, like a double exhaust, was invisible to
witnesses. (A NICAP technical adviser suggests the film may
have recorded a force-field emanation, a clue to the propulsion.)
The streak behind and below the disc is believed a trail the UFO
left in maneuvering over the trees.

In the second photo (same negative) the trailand ‘‘exhaust’’ are
blacked out to show the disc more clearly.

Following is the detailed report secured by NICAP investiga-
tors:

(Continued on page 2, column 1)

UFOs PANIC POLICE,
MOTORISTS

In the last few months, there has been a disturbing increase in
public fear of UFOs. Suddenly confronted with these strange
objects, veteran policemen -- formerly skeptics -- have panicked
and fled. In one case Texas police frankly told the AF they had
raced away, badly frightened, at over 100 m.p.h. (Copy of report
to AF in NICAP files.) In other verified cases, women motorists
were found in a state of shock... a truck driver was terrified
when a UFO came at him head-on... and other observers, here
and abroad, were alarmed by UFO encounters, especiallyat close
range.

We do not wish to add to the fear of UFQOs, but the causes
mentioned are already known locally. If such cases continue,
and are not offset by publicizing the thousands of harmless en-
counters, it could seriously add to the problem of educating the
public.

A case at Exeter, N.H., Sept. 3, is a typical example of fear
caused by a closely approaching UFO. Around 12:30 a.m., Exeter
police, investigating a car parked by a highway, found two women
in a state of near shock. Thedriver told Officer Eugene Bertrand
they had been chased 12 miles by a flying object with a brilliant
red glow. Not seeing any strange object, Bertrand reassured the
women and drove off.

Pulsating Lights

Half an hour later, Norman J. Muscarello, 18-year-old Exeter
youth, was walking along Route 150 when a strange, red-lichted
object came over some nearby trees. The almost blinding red
glow came from five extremely bright lights, which pulsated in
sequence.

Frightened, Muscarello crouched behind a stone wall. The UFO
stopped and hovered just above a house owned by Clyde Russell,
of Kensington. Muscarello could see it was larger than the
house -- at least 80-90 feet long. After the UFO silently moved
back over the trees, Muscarello ran to the Russell home and
pounded on the door. But the Russells, thinking it was a drunk,
refused to open the door.

About 1:45, Muscarello reached the Exeter Police Station, two
miles from the sighting spot.

(Continued on page 3, column 1)

BULLETIN

New reports in New England are being investigated as we go to
press.

On Sept. 30, Norwich newspaper photographer Ken Skinner filmed
an unidentified flying object seen maneuvering in the vicinity.
NICAP will attempt to obtain the picture for evaluation.

On Oct. 1, a UFO was seen at fairly close range by three men
and a woman near Charlemont, Mass. The witnesses estimated
that at one time the object was within 75 to 100 feet from them.
As it moved away toward Thunder Mountain it appeared to eclimb,
making a right angle turn. Other residents in the area also re-
ported seeing the strange object.

On the night of Oct. 2-3, a UFO which appeared triangular in
shape was sighted by a large number of witnesses in Boston, and
outside of the city. At one point, it was estimated to be hovering
at about 1800 feet.

On Oct. 4, witnesses reported a UFO landed on a ridge in the
vicinity of Southington, Conn. A NICAP investigator is checking.



_UFO INVESTIGATOR
UFO PANIC (Continued from page 1)

‘‘He was white with fear and hardly able to talk,”” Desk Officer
Reginald Toland said later. Muscarello told Toland and Officer
Bertrand the story, and though it seemed incredible, Bertrand
drove him back to the scene in his police cruiser.

Muscarello and the officer walked into the field where the UFO
had been seen. At first, nothing was visible. Then as Bertrand
pointed his flashlight around Muscarello shouted, and Bertrand
swung around in time to see a large dark object displaying ‘‘a
straight row of extraordinarily bright red pulsating lights.’”” The
UFO, coming into the field at tree-top level, changed course
and flew toward them, just clearing a 60-70 foot tree.

Bertrand reached for his revolver, then thought better of it.
Shouting for Muscarello to take cover in the car, he also jumped
into the cruiser, fearing they might be burned by the blinding red
lights closing in.

As Bertrand radioed for help, he and Muscarello heard a dog
barking furiously and horses in a nearbybarnwhinnying and kick-
ing their stalls.

EXETER, N,H, SEPTEMBER 3, 1965

Brilliant red light pulsed in a smooth sequance:
1=2=3=4=5-4=3=2=1]
taking two seconds to complete a full cycle.

The sequence in which the five lights pulsated -- 1-2-3-4-5-4-
3-2-1"" gave Officer Bertrand the impression that the UFO was
“an intelligently constructed vehicle.”” The brilliance of the
lights created a halo effect; and at close range they were so
blinding he could not look directly at them.

But even though he could not see clearly behind the lights,
their reflection from the UFO’s body indicated a ‘‘large, dark,
solid object as big as a house.... It seemed compressed as if
it were round or egg-shaped, with definitely no protrusions
like wings, rudder or stabilizer.”’

Officer David R. Hunt arrived from Exeter in time to view the
UFO for about six minutes. By then it was moving away slowly,
but he saw red lights pulsating in sequence ‘‘brighter than head-
lights at close range.'’

Moving on a westward course, the UFO disappeared below the
tree line.

That night, Exeter police notified Pease AFB, and next day an
AF major and a lieutenant interrogated the witnesses. Shortly
afterward, NICAP Investigator Raymond Fowler also interviewed
the policemen. They told him the AF officers showed special
interest in the size and shape of the object. The policemen also
said the AF men told them:

1. A USAF check revealed no aircraft in the area during the
sighting. 2. Pease AFB had been receiving other UFO reports
in the New Hampshire area almost nightly for the previous week.

3. There had been a case in late July where a motorist came
upon a UFO hovering over the road directly in front of his car.

Most interesting of all, the police said the AF officers asked
them to keep the story from the press to avoid frightening the
public, But the details were already on the police blotter, and it
was too late for secrecy.

Besides the witnesses, Investigator Fowler talked with several
area residents. Most of them seemed more curious than fright-
ened—but they had not had close-range encounters.

Later, the influential Saturday Review published details of this
case after NICAP discussed it with John G. Fuller, writer of the

Page 3

Review’s “‘Trade Winds’' column. After a careful check with the
Exeter police, Investigator Fowler and Pease AFB, Fuller wrote
a serious report, including a new statement by Officer Bertrand:

‘‘My brain kept telling me this doesn’t happen—but there it was,
right infront of my eyes. .. it hoveredthere, about 100 feet away. ..
I don't know what it was. All I can say is that it was there, and
three of us saw it together.”’

(Mr. Fuller’s report, crediting NICAP, appeared in the Oct. 2
issue of the Saturday Review.)

From an examination of recent fear reports, it appears that
skeptics are the quickest to panic—people who have accepted of-
ficial denials of UFOs’ existence. One such case involved two
Texas lawmen, both graduates of police schools—Chief Deputy
B, E. McCoy and Patrol Deputy Robert Goode, of Angleton.

By coincidence, this incident occurredonSept. 3, the same night
as the Exeter scare. The following details are from the officers’
signed report to NICAP and a signed copy of their statement to an
AF investigator, Maj. Laurence R. Leach, Jr., 25678 Air Base
Squadron, Ellington AFB, Texas.

After midnight, near Damon inBrazoria County, the two sheriffs
sighted an enormous flying object from their patrol car. In the
bright moonlight, they could see it was about 200 feet long, 40-50
feet thick at the center, tapering at both ends. It had a brilliant
purple light at one end, a fainter blue one at the other.

Sheriff Goode turned the patrol car around, drove back three-
fourths of a mile and stopped. As they were watching through
binoculars, the strange craft came down to 100 feet, heading
rapidly toward the lighted police car. In the moonlight, the UFO
cast a huge shadow on the ground, and the officers could see it
moving swiftly toward the highway.

Fifty Yards Away

As it neared them, the brilliant purple light illuminated the
ground and the inside of the car. Sheriff Goode, leaning out the
driver’s side, suddenly felt heat from the approaching UFO. He
hastily started the engine. By this time the huge flying object was
barely 50 yards away.

With understandable panic, the sheriffs fled.

‘“‘We were traveling at speeds up to 110 miles an hour,”’ McCoy
told the AF.

When they reached Damon, the lawmen calmed downand decided
to go back.

‘““We were both scared,’’ McCoy frankly admits. ‘‘Butwe wanted
to find out what it was.”’

But when they returned to the area, the UFO’s lights began to
shift just as they hadbefore its swiftapproach. Again, the sheriffs
raced away.

““We figured the object would start coming toward us again,”’
McCoy said in his AF statement. In describing the UFO, he said
the body appeared dark gray. There was no sound, nor any trail
visible.

“‘I never saw anything like it before,’”” McCoy concluded.

Both sheriffs admitted they had not believed in UFOs before.

“I’ve always been skeptical about these things,”” said McCoy.
“I’m not a skeptic any more.”’

Truck drivers, like policemen, are not noted for being easily
scared. But Don Tenopir, a Beatrice, Nebraska trucker, had
moments of sheer terror on the night of August 4, when a flying
disc buzzed him:

“1 was en route to Lincoln, Nebraska, about 25 miles from
Abilene, Kansas. It was near 1:30 a.m. when all of a sudden the
lichts on my truck went out. Then they came back on, then off,
then on again,

““About then, this thing went over my truck with a sizzling or
wind-like blowing sound. It scared hell out of me; it seemed to
almost touch the cab.

“It just swooped down over the road and hovered there, not
more than 100 feet in front of me. I tell youI was standing on
those brakes. It looked like it wasgoingto fall right in the middle
of the road. When it stopped there was another car approaching
from the opposite direction, and it went into the ditch. Later the
other driver told me it looked like a car accident until he got
closer.

“1 don’t know how long it was there. I was just too damned
scared to tell time. The thing looked aroundto me. It was orange
like the color of a traffic policeman’s jacket, I guess it was about




OUTER-SPACE
GHOST STORY

BY JOHN G. FULLER

Was it delusion? Or did more than 60 people living near
Exeter, N. H., actually see huge flying objects resembling
the one shown in the remarkable photograph above?

Police Officers David Hunt, left,
and Eugene Bertrand of Exeter,

N. H., joined Norman Muscarello back
at the site where he had reported

secing a large, luminous,

flying object. They watched it reappear.

Norman Muscarello, now in the

Navy, says a large, airborne

object hovered over farm near Excter,
then seemed to pursue him,

on the carly morning of September 3.
He went to the police for aid.
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While driving home with her mother,

Sharon Pearce, 13, of Hampton, saw a
disklike object hovering beside

their car. It wobbled and rocked near
them for minutes. Since then,

they have seen similar phenomena.

AT 2:24 A.M. oN September 3, 19065,
Norman Muscarello walked into the
Exeter, N. H.. police station, appar-
ently near shock. Patrolman Reginald
Toland, who was on duty at the desk,
helped him light a cigarette before
Muscarello was calm enough to talk,

He had been hitchhiking north on
Route 150 from Amesbury, Mass., to
his home in Exeter, a distance of 12
miles, The traffic was sparse, he said,
and he was forced to walk most of the
way. About 2 a.m., when he was pass-
ing an open field near Kensington,
N. H., a huge object came out of the
sk)’ dircct]y toward him. “The lhing,”
as he called it, appeared to be 80 to
90 feet in diameter and had brilliant,
pulsating red lights outlining an ap-
parent rim. It wobbled, yawed and
floated toward him, but made no
noise whatever. He was afraid it was
going to hit him and protected him-
sell by diving into the shallow shoul-
der of the road.

The object backed off slowly and
hovered directly over the roof of one
of the two nearby houses. Finally, it
backed off far enough for Muscarello
to make a run for one of the houses,
He pounded on the door, screaming.
No one answered, At that moment, a
car came by, moving toward Exeter,
Muscarello ran to the middle of the
road, waving his arms frantically. A
middle-aged couple picked him up,
took him into Exeter and dropped
him off at the police station.

“Look,” he said to Toland, “I know
you don’t believe me. I don’t blame
vou. But you got to send somebody
back out there with me!”

Toland, impressed by Muscarello’s
sincerity, called Cruiser No. 21. With-
in five minutes, Patrolman Eugene
Bertrand pulled into the station. After
he heard Muscarello’s story, Ber-
trand, an Air Force veteran with ex-
perience in air-to-air refueling on
KC-97 tankers, mentioned another
strange report he had heard. He had
been cruising on Route 101, approx-
imately two miles from Exeter, about
an hour carlier. He had come across
a car |)£ll'l\l‘(| on the |)_\‘|):1$5. and the
woman at the wheel told him that a
huge and silent airborne object had
trailed her from the town of Epping,
nine miles away, The object had bril-
liant, flashing red lights. she said,
and kept within a few feet of her car.
When she reached the overpass, i
suddenly developed tremendousspeed
andsoon disappeared among thes

“1 thought she was a kook,” Be
trand told Toland. “So | didn’t even
bother to radio in.”

“This sounds like the thing you
saw?" Toland asked Muscarello.

“Sounds exactly like it.”

It was nearly 3 aun. when Patrol-
man Bertrand, still trying to caln

-1
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GHOST STORY coxmisuso

The policeman shouted: “I see
the damn thing myself!”

.\!llSl'ill'l'“ll. rl':l(‘ht:l] lllﬂ I‘HTI(‘ IJL'I‘\ ocen
the two houses. The night was clear,
nl(][)"l('.‘*b -'I[l(l warm. .rhl"'E was no
wind, and the stars were brilliant.
Visibility was unlimited.,

Bertrand parked his cruiser near
Tel. & Tel. Pole #668. He picked up
the radio mike to report lo Toland
that he could see nothing at all, but
that Musearello was still so tense
about the situation that he was going
to walk out on the ficld with him to
investigate further, “1I'll he out of the
cruiser for a few minutes,” he said,
“so il you don’t gel an answer on the
radio, don’t worry about it.”

Bertrand and Muscarello walked
down the sloping field, Bertrand prob-
ing the trees in the distance with his
flashlight. About 100 yards from the
roadside was a corral, where the
horses of the Carl Dining farm were
kept. They reached the fence and still
saw nothing, and Bertrand tried to
convince Muscarello that he must
have seen a helicopter. Muscarello in-
sisted that he was familiar with all
types of conventional aircraft and
would have recognized a helicopter.

HEN, as Bertrand turned his

back to the corral to shine his

light toward the tree line north
of them, the horses at the Dining
farm began kicking and whinnying.
Dogs in the nearby houses began
howling. Muscarello screamed, I see
it! Iseeit!”

Bertrand turned, looked toward
the trees heyond the corral. Rising
up slowly from behind two tall pines
was a brilliant, roundish object. It
made no sound. It moved toward
them like a leaf fluttering from a tree,
wobbling and yawing as it did so.
The entire area was bathed in bril-
liant red light. The white sides of
Carl Dining’s house turned blood-
red. Bertrand reached for his .38,
then thought hetter of it and shoved
the gun back in its holster. Afraid of
infrared rays, he grabbed Muscarello
and yanked him toward the cruiser.

Bertrand called Toland at the Ex-
eter station. “My God,” he shouted,
“I see the damn thing myself!”

Under the half-protection of the
cruiser roof, Bertrand and Musca-
rello watched the object hover. It
was about 100 feet above them, about
a football-ficld’s distance away. It
was rocking back and forth on its
axis, still absolutely silent. The pul-
sating red lights scemed to dim from
left 1o right, then from right to left,
in a 5--3-2.1, then 1-2-3-4-5 pattern,
taking about two scconds for each
cycle. They found it difficult to make
out a definite shape because of the
brilliance of the lights—"Like trying
to describe a car with its headlights
coming at you,” Bertrand said.

After several minutes, the object
began moving slowly eastward, to-
ward Hampton. Its movement was
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erratic, defying all conventional aero-
dynamic patterns, "It darted,” says
Bertrand. “It could turn on a dime.
Then it would slow down.”

As it began to move away, Patrol-
man David Hunt, in Cruiser No. 20,
pulled up by the pole. He had heard
the radio conversalions hetween Ber-
trand and Toland.

“I could see that lluttering move-
ment,” Hunt says, “ 1 was going [rom
left 1o vight, between the taps of two
Iai;.: trees. | eould see thoese |m|snlin_°_!
lizhts. I could hear those horses kick-
ing oul in the barn there, Those dogs
were really howling. Then it started
moving. slow like, across the tops of
the trees, just above the trees. It was
rocking when it did this. A creepy
type of look. Airplanes don’t do this.
After it moved out of sight, toward
Hampton, toward the ocean, we wait-
ed awhile. A B-47 came over. You
could tell the difference. There was
no comparison.”

Moments after the object slid over
the trees and out of sight, Toland
took a call from an Exeter night op-
erator. “She was all excited,” says
Toland. “Some man had just called
her, and she traced the call to one of
them outside booths in Hampton,
and he was so hysterical he could
hardly talk straight, He told her that
a flying saucer came right at him,
but before he could finish, he was cut
ofl. 1 zol on the ]JIIlllll'. and called the
Hampton police, and they notified
the Pease Air Force Base.”

The blotter of the Hampton Police
Department covers the story tersely:
“Sept. 3, 1965: 3 a.m. Exeter Police
Dept. reports unidentified flying ob-
ject in that area. Units 2, 4 and Pease
Air Force Base alerted. At 3:17, re-
ceived a call from Exeler operator
and Officer Toland. Advised that a
male subject called and asked for
policedepartment, furtherstatingthat
call was in re: a large, unidentified
Mying object, but call was cut off. Call
received from a Hampton pay phone,
location unknown.”

For days, Bertrand would think
about the object he had seen. “The
world is zoing so fast that it could
he something from outer space. It
makes you wonder. 1 want to keep
my mind open, look for a reasonable
explanation. But then, as I look back
in my mind again, | wonder. When
we walched it, Dave and | and the
kid tried to listen, to hear a motor,
We did everything to check it out.
We weren’t believing our eyes. We
just couldn’t come up with an answer.
I kept asking Dave, *What is that,
Dave? What do you think?® He'd
say, ‘I don’t know.” I have never seen
an aireraft like that before, and 1
know damn well they haven't changed
that much ¢inee | was in the service.”

Lt. Warren Cottrell was on the
desk at § o'clock that morning. He
read Bertrand’s report and called

Mrs. Virginia Hale of Hampton,

a newspaper correspondent, reported a
huge object that floated over her
backyard. It gave off a violet light.

Pease Air Force Base to reconfirm
the incident. By one in the afternoon,
Maj. Thomas Grifin and Lt. Alan
Brandt arrived. They went to the
scene of the sighting, interviewed
Bertrand, Hunt and Muscarello at
length and returned to the hase with
little comment. By nightfall, a long
series of phone calls hegan coming
into the police station, many from
people who had distrusted their own
senses before the police report.

IGHTFALL also marked the
beginning of a three-week
vigil by Muscarello, his

mother and several friends. In the
weeks before he was due to report to
the Great Lakes Naval Training Cen-
ter, he was determined he would see
the strange object again. During this
period, 1 also began a search that
was o continue for many weeks. My
objective was to bring out every fact
possible in a single, limited area re-
garding an Unidentified Flying Ob-
jectl, commonly called a uro.

I found Ron Smith, 17, a high-
school senior, unpacking a carton of
chicken soup in the grocery store
“']H!l’(l ]“3 \\-'Ul‘ks afll:l' ﬁch‘)oi.

A few weeks earlier, young Smith
had been riding around with his
mother and his aunt, shortly after 11
p.m., not far from the spot where
Muscarello had been hitchhiking.

“All of a sudden, my aunt told me
to look up at the sky,” Smith told me.
“I stopped the car and looked up. 1
saw a red light on the top, and the
bottom was white. And it glowed. It
passed over the car once, and when it
passed over and got in [ront, it stop-
ped in midair and went back over
again. It was huge. It headed over the
car a third time and then look off.

Zoomed ofl, fast. Wasn't even ten
seconds gclling away.

“It scared me, and I started to
drive toward the police station to re-
port it. But after 1 got partway, 1
came to my senses. | wanted to be
sure we weren't just seeing things.”

He returned to the place where he
and his mother and his aunt had seen
the object. “It was back there still.
It was oval, not completely round. It
didn’t make much sound, just sort of
a humming noise, like a cat when
it purrs. Altogether, we must have
walched it for about 15 minutes. The
second time, it just passed over the
car once and took off again. It wasn’t
a plane, it wasn’t a helicopter.”

The next lead took me to the oflice
of Rusty’s Taxi, where Lora Davis
gave me her account. “It was about
2 o’clock in the morning,” she said.
“I was silting up on top of Country
Club Hill, and I looked up. I first
thought it was a plane. . . . There was
just a big, huge red light, blinking
on and off, It started mm’illg closcr,
my guess was about three miles away.
It was too big Lo be a plane, the dis-
tance it was. [t was coming in from
the southeast, sort of parallel to the
101 bypass, Then it headed toward
the ocean.”

While 1 was there, a call came in
on the taxi radio. It was the taxi-
company owner. He had just heard
via gshortwave radio that a Mrs, Har-
low Spinney in Stratham had recent-
ly spotted a uro in broad daylight.

“I was driving from Exeter to-
ward Portsmouth, and when 1 first
saw it, it was in the diztance,” she
told me. “When it got between two
and three hundred feet of me, darned
if it didnt turn around and come
back, so | got a perfect view of it in
broad daylight. Tt made no noise
whatever, and it secemed to be intel-
ligently guided. It looked spherical,
but it was definitely not a balloon.
There were no openings. If it had

continued
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After sightings, some women
were afraid to go out at night

been a B-47 or a B-52 jet—I know
them so well because they pass over
here all the time—it would have scared
me to death at that altitude. 1 guess
it was 30 feet or so in diameter, and
it changed direction with a dartlike
motion. Then it suddenly took ofl
at a blinding speed.”

EANWIIILE, another lead
had come in from Russell
Burbank, a reporter on the

Boston Globe. Mrs. Virginia Hale of
Thomsen Road, Hampton, had re-
cently kept a UF0 in clear view over a
five- to ten-minute period, at dusk.
Mrs. Hale, a stringer for the UPI
and a local news correspondent, knew
every conventional flight pattern at
the Portsmouth air base, as well as
those of the commercial planes. “1
was slanding by the sink, looking out
the kitchen window, about 25 min-
utes after G in the evening. The rea-
son it caught my eye was because it
was bright and because it was going
slow, very slow. So I automatically
figured something was wrong. Then
it stopped dead over by that house—
about three times the height of the
chimney—it just stopped dead. Now,
you know four minutes is a long
time, and that’s why I hesitate to say
that, but I'm pretty sure it was about
that long. I marked my window here
with a smear from my dishwater so
I could remember where it lined up
with the spot. Suddenly, this thing
cut back toward the southwest, com-
ing directly back and losing altitude
fast. It was going so fast I thought it
would crash. At this point, I could
see underneath too. It was dome-
shaped and flat underneath. ...

As lalked to policemen, taxi oper-
ators, high-school youngsters and

housewives in split-level or farm

homes, the other-worldly aspects of
the sightings aroused strong curios-
ity after the initial shock.

A new lead took me to the home of
Mrs. Rudy Pearce, on the Exeter-
Hampton line. A delegation of neigh-
boring housewives was waiting for
me in her living room. Their accounts

of multiple sightings continued for

over an hour. Some of the women
were afraid to go out alone at night.
“Some of these things,” said Mrs.
Alfred Deyo, “sit in the air for as
long as half an hour. Just sit there.”
So many leads began coming in
from the police blotter, newspapers
and ordinary citizens that it was im-
possible to follow them all up:
® Near Bessie's Lunch, in Fremont,
dozens of cars would gather nightly
at the base of the power lines, along
which the objects would hover.
e The Jalbert family, living beside
the power lines, reported constant
sightings, dull-orange disks moving
erratically along the lines.
® The Chief of Police of Fremont,
along with a half-dozen members of
his family, saw an object hovering
over his house and barn. An outside
light, operated by a photoelectric cell,

went out when the object appeared.
o Charlotte McFarland of Sandown
stopped her car when a red, round-
ish object came down the power lines
and headed toward her. It hovered,
went up and down and moved errat-
ically sideways.
e Mrs. Parker Blodgett, a corre-
spondent of the Haverhill, Mass., Ga-
zette and president of the New Hamp-
shire rra, saw a bright orange disk,
“bigger than the moon™ hover just
outside her living-room window.
Meanwhile, Norman Muscarello
continued his vigil on Route 150 dur-
ing the three weeks before he joined
the Navy. “He would sit all night
long,” says his mother, “and many
times, I joined him. One night, all of
asudden, I saw it myself. You couldn’t
see the shape, but it came out behind
some trees, like if it was just parked
and just rose up. No sound at all. It
was huge. There were lights on the
bottom going around like pinwheels.”

RECORDED lengthy interviews
I with over 60 people. From

the tapes, certain common de-
nominators emerged:

Many observers were reluctant to
report their findings because of the
fear of ridicule.

Most people reporting sightings
were familiar with commercial and
military craft, could even tell the dif-
ference between B-47’s and B-52’s be-
cause of the constant traffic at the
nearby Pease Air I'orce Base.

Most observers reported luminous
disk-shaped objects, either white or
orange, or changing in color. Many
people said they saw the red pulsat-
ing lights around the rim, which
often would speed up and whirl, Some
noted cigar-shaped crafts. The phe-
nomenon known as St. Elmo’s fire
was dismissed by experts as an ex-
planation because the objects seen
were constantly defined as structured
craft rather than fire balls.

Many observers reported extreme
low-level encounters, not more than
five or six feet above the ground.

Most reported absolute silence by
the objects, although in some cases a
high-frequency hum was noticed.

A few noted the odd behavior of
animals, as well as electrical, ignition
and broadcast disturbances.

In some 200 pages of typed tran-
scripts, 73 mentions were made that
the UFO’s were observed near or over
high-power transmission lines.

None of this information js par-

ticularly new to nicap—the National
Investigations Committee on Aerial
Phenomena in Washington—the pri-
vately-sponsored organization that
has been collating statistics reported
over the past 20 years. Bul an inten-
sive investigation has not been fo-
cused on a single arca to any mea-
surable degree before.

While Nicap pushes its demands
for public enlightenment on the sub-
ject, the Air Force maintains an at-
titude of almest complete silence. Any

continued
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GHOST STORY coxminusn

Coastguardsmen seem to
support the witnesses

air base receiving a UFO report sends
an officer to investigate. The infor-
mation is relayed to Wrizht-Patter-
son Field in Dayton, Ohio, where it
is analyzed by scientists and tech-
nicians. The report is forwarded to
the Pentagon. which claims that only
7.7 percent of the thousands of ob-
jects remain unidentificd. The rest
of the cases are ascribed o other
causes such as temperature inversion,
weather balloons, mistaken identity
of planes, stars, planets, clouds, re-
flections and so forth.

It was through nicar that | learned
that the amazing Uro picture shown
on the first page of this article had
heen taken by a youthful astronomer
in Beaver County, Pa., northwest of
Pittsburgh. I went immediately to
western Pennsylvania to investigate,

James Lucet, 17, the ]J||nln;_j|‘;l]:|n:1‘.
had an exeellent school record and
the finest possible character stand-
ing in his community. He was taking
a time exposure of the moon at 11:30
p-m., in the presence of his brother
John, a biology major at Geneva Col-
Both watched it for several min-
The picture was taken with a
Yashica 635, with Altipan 120 film
(asa 100). The lens opening was
[ 3.5, set at infinity. developed with
fresh D 76 at 70 degrees, with agita-
tion. Four members of the photo-
graphic department of the Beaver
County Times, a highly respected
area paper, told me that the negatives
of the two pictures Lucei took were
not the result of faking nor the re-
sult of photographic accident.

A canvas of Lucei’s neighborhood

brought out a rash of stories almost
identical to those of Exeter.

In l'ilt']'\' November, | returned to
Exeter to gather more confirmation
on the sightings, A particularly
graphic one came from Joseph Jal-
bert. 10. a high-school junior with an
excellent scholastic record. His house
is almost under the poles supporting
the power lines on Route 107. One
evening at dusk, toward the end of
October, he noticed a reddish cigar-
shaped object high in the sky and
was startled to see a smaller reddish-
orange disk emerge from it and be-
gin a slow descent toward earth. It
drew nearer, then skimmed along the
power lines and sluppcll within two
hundred feet of him, just a few feet
over the wires. Then, very slowly. a
silvery. pipe-like extension descended
from the disk until it touched the
wire. It remained in contact with the
power line for several seconds, then
was retracted into the disk. It took
off toward the sky with tremendous
speed, found the cigar-shaped object
again, and disappeared inside it
Joseph’s mother, oddly enough. had
sighted a similar object on a differ-
ent night some 20 miles away.

Confidential comments made to me
by coastguardsmen and military in
the area support the |:l'\'mu:l.s testi-
mony and confirm the reports of ra-
dar sightings and scrambling by jet
fighters. Collusion, hoax or mistaken
identity by so many pesple seems im-
probable. The continued official
silence surrounding the subject of
UF0's seems as mysterious as the Ex-
eter story itsell.

END

ROBERT CENSONI
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It’s Exeter again. We were fortunate
to learn, although more than a year later,
of an interesting venture undertaken by
students in the Science Fiction classes at
the Exeter Area High School, Exeter,
N.H. Fifteen years after the famous UFO
sighting in Exeter, so well-described in
John Fuller’'s book INCIDENT AT
EXETER, the students undertook to
reopen the case. They conducted inter-
views with as many of the principal wit-
nesses as they could find, including, of
course, the main witness, Norman
Muscarello (who proved to be hard to find
and had not given any interviews on the
subject for 15 years).

In a special issue of TALON (Vol. 5,
No. 1, 1981), their high school paper, they
presented their results. Most of the 20
pages (tabloid format) were devoted to:
interviews with some half-dozen people
about both the specific Exeter case and
UFO events occurring there at about the
same time and pro and con articles about
UFOs in general. As a result, interesting
new material was brought to light forming
a valuable addition to our knowledge of
this classic case.

The following material is excerpted
from that special issue of TALON with
many thanks and acknowledgement to its
editors. They and the students are to be
congratulated on their initiative in thinking
up the project and on the excellent man-
ner in which it was carried out.

The Exeter case is a classic known to
many, but if readers wish to refresh their
memories, reference to Fuller's book is the
best suggestion and next would be the full
summary of the case in the Hynek UFO
Report (pp. 154 ff). Briefly, however, it hap-
pened about 2 am. on Sept. 3, 1965. A
young man, Norman Muscarello, about to
be inducted into the Navy, was thumbing
his way home just outside Exeter (Rt. 50)
when a noiseless, large, brilliant set of lights
approached from nowhere at tree-top level.
It was a clear night, and the stars were out
in full. He became terrified. Unable to raise
anyone at a nearby farmhouse, he franti-
cally waved down a car by standing directly
in its path. He was driven to the local police
station. When he, with a police officer,
returned to the spot of the encounter, the
UFO reappeared, witnessed now by both
men and, shortly thereafter, by another
officer who joined them after hearing their
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radio conversations. The officers had no
explanation for the pre-dawn appearance of
a strange set of lights at tree-top level. Nor
has any viable explanation been offered in
the intervening years.

During those 15 years, Muscarello
spent 36 months in Viet Nam, was dis-
charged, got married, divorced, went to
California, then back to the navy where he
“couldn’t hack it anymore,” worked for a
recreation vehicle company, got homesick
because he “missed the snow,” and then
came back to New England.

Now that the high school science fic-
tion classes have tracked him down, let's
go directly to their interview with him and
listen to his recall of the UFO event of 15
years before and the things which im-
pressed him most of all on that eventful
night. The interview brought out some
things that are very important for the
record. He is now telling of his trek along
the lonely road. Nearing the Dining farm,
he sees the light approaching:

114
There was absolutely no sound,
other than | heard horses in the Dining field
raising holy hell kicking the barn. Crickets
just seemed to have quit.

“My eyes were like, you know, seeing
spots...like when somebody takes a picture
with a camera. Got my eyes cleared and...
son of a gun...here it comes again.

"I ran across the street. | didn’t actually
dive. | fell, because | tripped on something
and | fell into the ditch, and | lay there with
my head down. Then | looked up...and it
was like the whole side of this house [next
house down from Dining's] seemed to turn
out like blood red.”

Muscarello now ran to the door of the
house, pounded on it; the people heard
him but they weren't going to open the
door “with this crazy nut pounding at two
o'clock in the morning, no car out front or
anything..." He ran out to the middle of the
road as he saw a car approaching. “l wasn’t
going to let it go by. | stood right out in the
middle of the road waving my arms.”

The car, with a man and a woman he
assumed to be the man's wife, stopped.
Later he realized he knew the man, but
never disclosed his name, then or later,
because the woman was not his wife. The
couple took Muscarello to the police station

and waited outside for him. “He didn't
know if | was cracking up or what."

His story, however, was accepted at the
station by Officer Toland with less surprise
than Muscarello expected. Toland had just
had two UFO reports from nearby towns,
the descriptions of which tallied with
Muscarello's story.

Officer Bertrand at that point arrived in
his cruiser and shortly went with Muscarello
to the scene of the UFO event. They found
nothing. Just then Officer Hunt, who had
been monitoring their radio conversations,
arrived on the scene. He was in the process
of chiding the other two and dismissing the
whole matter when, according to Muscar-
ello, he 'suddenly yelled, “What the hell is
that?” .

“We looked up, and here she comes
again. Gene (Bertrand) reached for his gun
...I'm not kidding.

“So we boogied back to the cruiser
and Gene got on the blower (mike) and he
says, ‘Scratch (Toland) | see the damn
thing myself!”

Shortly, Muscarello was driven home.
“And my mother was having a fit because
she didn't know where | had been. She sees
the cruiser out there and says, ‘What did he
do now.'

“The next day my mother's kitchen
was full of. all kinds of people she'd never
seen before...one being a Maj, Kehoe [not
Maj. Keyhoe of NICAP] from Pease Air
Force Base.”

The interview the Exeter High School
journalists did with Muscarello (and later
with the police officers and various towns-
people) brought out some new facets of
the story told in a refreshing, down-to-earth
way. For example:

“Maj. Kehoe raised holy hell with me in
the living room, telling me to ‘shut up, don't
say anything, don'’t sign anything.’ He asked
me, ‘Have you signed up for the Navy yet,
and when 1 said, ‘'no, | haven't, he said,
‘Well, if you had, I'd haul you right down to
the base, right now.' You see, then I'd be
military property...but | didn't actually get
sworn in until Oct. 4."

It appears that Maj. Kehoe's sergeant
had an attache case handcuffed to his wrist
(real cloak and dagger) and sometime dur-
ing the morning he was unprofessional
enough to detach it from his wrist and set
it, unattended, on the kitchen table. Mus
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carello’'s mother, no retiring character her-
self, sees it there when she goes in to make
more coffee for the 'guests’ and finding it
partially open, starts looking through it. Maj.
Kehoe discovers this as he comes around
the corner and swears at her.

“I'm not even going to use the lan-
guage he used,” Muscarello told the young
journalists. “Then she blew up ... This is
my house, that's sitting on my table, and ['ll
look at it. If you don't like it, then get the
hell out of here! And | said, "That's right
ma, because if he won't I'll throw him down
the stairs, And that's a fact.”

It must have been quite an occasion!

Officers Bertrand and Hunt were
also interviewed by the High School journa-
list. There are a few minor discrepancies in
the three stories, certainly to be expected
from memory recall after that many years.
Muscarello said the UFO appeared after
officer Hunt had arrived, but Bertrand told
the young journalists this: “"We got out
there, we saw nothing. It was pitch dark...|
walked down the field with him (Mus-
carello), and he started yelling. [ looked
over and | saw some object come skim-
ming across the treetops, about 75-80 feet

in the air. And it looked like it might be
spinning.

"I grabbed ahold of the guy; | yanked
him out of the field because | didn't want to
get caught in an open field with something
swooping down. We got back to the cruiser
and officer Hunt showed up. The three of
us watched it for a minute. It took off and
headed for the coast, making no noise.”

The two officers watched it disappear,
concluding that it probably had passed
over the town of Hampton when, "...we got
a call on the radio. Hampton talking. They
had just got a call that some man in
Hampton had a red object swoop down at
his car... They sent cruisers out. They
called Pease and they sent out a couple of
fighter planes.”

The next day, according to Bertrand,
two Air Force officers requested an inter-
view with the two police officers.

According to Bertrand, the Pentagon
issued a statement saying that what the
officers had seen was a refueling mission.
"They changed that when they found out |
had been in refueling; then they said we
had been looking at a planet inversion.”

This picture appeared in the Manchester Union Leader Sept. 6, 1965. From left are teen-
age Norman Muscarello, former Exeter policemen David Hunt, Eugene Bertrand, and
“Scratch™ Toland.
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Norman Muscarello tells Exeter High
School journalism students about his UFO
encounter.

The UFO issue of the TALON pre-
sented a wide spectrum of opinions in sev-
eral ancillary articles, ranging from entirely
negative reactions such as: "l Hate UFOs,"
"“Spotting Fake UFO Photos” and “Project
UFO: How to Build Your Own Space Ship”
[Instructions for making a hot air balloon]
to more positive reactions like: “What to Do
If You See a UFQO,"” "Pilots View Strange
Phenomena,” plus articles on UFO books,
UFO toys, etc.

The Exeter Area High School must be
commended for their initiative and compre-
hensive effort in presenting a most excel-
lent 15-year flashback and intelligent
discussion. It may be remarked that while it
took a Science Fiction class to think this
up, the result of their efforts went a long
way to demonstrating that they were deal-
ing with ANYTHING BUT science fiction!

One other article deserves mention:
One of the local people interviewed was a
Braniff pilot, and his statement to the
journalists was rather bold.

K. Schumaker...Braniff pilot: “As far
as UFOs go, two out of every five pilots |
have talked to admitted to the fact that they
have seen ‘objects’ that they couldn't
explain.

“Probably the reason that the statistics
are two out of five, and not three or four out
of five, is the fact that in the early days of
flying (1950s) many pilots who talked of
seeing such objects were thought to have
had mental problems, and had their
licenses revoked. These cases aren't heard
of these days but many pilots still have

(continued on page 14)
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A “Yorg” in Kansas

TYPE: CE-1 (NL)
DATE: May 4, 1983
TIME: 3:50 AM.
DURATION: 3 min.
WITNESSES: 1

PLACE: Lawrence, Kan.

Prof. E.J. Zeller, of the University of
Kansas, kindly investigated this sighting
on behalf of CUFOS. There follows a brief
composite account of Dr. Zeller's inter-
view with Officer James Philips of the
Law Enforcement Center, Douglas Coun-
ty, Kansas, and Philips’ own official
report. The interview was made three
days after the sighting and was con-
ducted, as interviews should be
whenever possible, while re-enacting the
event on location, Dr. Zeller rode with Of-
ficer Philips in the latter's vehicle, cover-
ing the route taken at the time of the
sighting.

ln general, we do not give great
weight to single-witness cases, for ob-
vious reasons, but, in this instance, we
present it not only because of the stature
of the witness (who used binoculars) and
investigator, but because the case is
another good example of what we might
dub *“YORGs” Yellow-Orange-Red
Globes. Generally, it is only the bright
globe of light that is seen, often so bright
that it obscures whatever may be the
origin of the light. These have been wide-
ly reported from around the world. Here,
then, is a very recent case to add to the
present impressive collection.

The very early hours of May 4 were
clear over the outskirts of Lawrence,
Kans. The moon was at last quarter and
there was only a slight breeze from the
northwest. A “flame orange” ball, about
the size of a nickle held at arm’s length,
suddenly caught Officer Philip’s atten-
tion. It was first sighted above a power
pole just to the west and south of his
position, but already high in the sky,
within 20 degrees of the vertical. It ap-

peared to Philips to be very close, about
300-400 feet above the ground, making
its slant height (because of its closeness
to the vertical) less than 500 feet, It was
completely noiseless.

“l stopped my car, shut off the
engine, and got out to look at it. It passed
over me so | turned the car around and
went east . . .." The globe was moving
southwest to northeast at an estimated
speed of 30-40 m.p.h. (A balloon is thus
completely ruled out . . what little wind
there was, was from the northwest.). He
drove nearly one-half mile east at about
50 m.p.h. and parked once again. Dur-
ing this interval he reported no radio or
engine interference. Getting out of the
car, he looked at it again, this time
through binoculars. Now the object was
almost directly overhead, only 5 degrees
to the left of vertical.

“I looked at it through the binoc-
ulars (7x35). | saw stars disappear as the
object went by. I still heard no noise”. A
dark superstructure was observed to
eclipse stars as the luminous globe mov-
ed along. The total size of the light and
superstructure was between that of a
quarter and a half-dollar held at arm’s
length. A rough calculation indicates
that the object was about 20 feet in
diameter, larger, of course, if its distance
was underestimated.

The illuminated portion had the
appearance of “flame jets.” It was
spherical in shape and slightly smaller
than the moon which was visible at the
same time. Its actual size would,
therefore, be only about 5 feet. The idea
of a hot air balloon immediately comes
to mind, but the speed and direction
¢ompletely contradict this. Besides,
there have been many cases of orange
balls of light to which this explanation
would not apply.

Reentering the patrol car, Officer
Philips continued east rapidly for a half-
mile and then drove 0.3 miles north, and
parked once again.

“l again looked at the object
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through the binoculars, but by the time |
had them focused the object sped away
quickly, the flame went out, and the ob-
ject went straight up quickly and disap-
peared. | could not locate it using the
binoculars.”

Officer Philips has had six years ex-
perience in police work and gave Dr.
Zeller the impression of being a very cool
and precise observer. He states,” | have
no reason to doubt that the events he
described actually took place essentially
as he reported them.” O

Tale of an “Exeter

Terrestrial” — cont.
(continued from page 13)

superstitious feelings about telling others of
their experiences. “The objects they have
described were those unexplainable by
commercial and Air Force propuision
standards.

“All of these objects (the many objects
reported by civilians which prove to be
IFOs) are different from what the pilots
have seen by one common denominator;
the speed and agility of the objects...a
weather balloon simply will not move at a
speed approaching that of sound, stop and
reverse direction. It just isn’t possible.”

In answer to a question from the inter-
viewers as to whether the object viclated
the laws of aerodynamics, Bertrand an-
swered, "It did defy them. ['ve never seen
anything fly that way. It was just floating like
a leaf.”

To that, officer Hunt added in his inter-
view: “It moved more or less with a flutter-
ing motion...like a leaf falling back and
forth.” His interviewers concentrated more
on his reactions to the incident rather than
on a retelling of the tale itself.

“"How do you feel about this thing now
that it's fifteen years later?”

“It's just a thing that happened and we
reported it the way it happened at the time,
which you know is about all you can do, |
guess.”
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Many of our readers are ac-
quainted with John Fuller’s masterful
UFO investigation in Exeter, N.H.,
from his book, Incident at Exeter. If
not, reference to it should be a must
because its resemblance to this very
recent UFO event, just a few miles
east of the town of Exeter, is striking.
Further, the investigation of this New
Incident at Exeter has brought to light
an event that may have a close bear-
ing on the Old Incident at Exeter (see
Box).

The scene is, once again, a lonely
country road. It is shortly after 10 PM.
on a cool, crisp clear moonlit New
England evening. Four women, all
management personnel of the New
England Bell Telephone Co., are com-
ing home from a County Fair in a town
some distance north of Exeter. They
are riding in the Mercedes owned by
one of them (Mary Ann Poland, the
driver); they are tired from their day's
jaunt and are looking forward to stop-
ping at Studio Two, a roadside tavern,
for drinks. They do not need 1.D. cards,
for their ages average 38, and they are
all mature career women holding
responsible management positions
with the phone company in different
nearby towns. And then:

TYPE:. CE-l

DATE: Sept. 30, 1982
TIME: 10:15 PM. ,
DURATION: 3-5 minutes
WITNESSES: Four

PLACE: Exeter, N.H.

“Jeez, Mary Ann, that's not a
plane,” I said. “No,” she replied, “That's
not a plane! There's no way it's a
plane.”

Rose Messina, the front seat pas-
senger, continued her story during our
long interview: “So we all started shout

ing, ‘Stop the car! If you're not going
to stop the car, we're going to jump
out!. So we opened the door, and
Mary Ann braked the car, but we got
out before the car came to a stop...the
two of us (she and Mary LaMontagne,
the passenger on the right rear seat)
got out and started chasing it. It
stopped. It was standing perfectly still,
but there was no noise.”

RN Ray of light

Sketches by Mary LaMontagne (above) and
by Rose Messina (below) of what they say
they saw on a country road north of Exeter,
NH. The sketches of all four women, drawn
separately, were extremely similar.

\DT THE FAMOUS EXETEIR.
Exeter Revisited

In our interview with Mary Ann, the
driver, she told how it all began: “| was
driving, heading toward a local bar...
clear, crisp night, nothing on the road,
and then | saw what appeared to me to
be a very low flying airplane. | watched
it as | drove, and it was coming toward
me and all of a sudden it looked like
one big bright light coming toward me.
So | still thought it was a plane. |
reached over and touched Rose, who
was dozing, and said, ‘Rose, that plane
is flying very low...you're supposed to
be the copilot...so wake up! She
didn’t say anything for a bit and | said,
‘Hey, wait a minute, that's no plane'...
and it came toward us, and with that |
got the attention of the two in the back.
They're looking at it and they say,
‘That's no plane, stop the car! Well,
I'm still looking at it and applying the
brakes and meanwhile these two nuts,
as | call them, started hopping out of .
the car before it was even stopped. [t
was right there, on top of the car practi-
cally. It wasn't doing anything...it was
just like stationary.”

Now let (Mary LaMontagne) the
passenger in the back seat who had
jumped out to chase the strange
object, take up the story: “It was so
close that if 'd had a rock | could have
hit it. | have a pretty good arm! It came
and hovered right over the trees, and it
was huge. It was very, very quiet. |
didn't hear a thing...only thing | heard
was the rustling of the leaves.”

The fourth passenger, the oldest
in the group, who had been sitting in
the back next to Mary LaMontagne
before she so hastily jumped out along
with Rose Messina, confirmed in her
interivew the essentials of the accounts
of the others. She had gotten out of
the car momentarily, but could not
keep up with the younger two, who
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rushed along a side road (actually it
was someone's driveway) to try to
chase the object, which seemed to
have a decidedly hypnotic effect on
them...so much so (as they related
later) that they felt no fear whatever
and indeed, would have gone aboard if
the opportunity had presented itself!
To this day they find it hard to explain
the compelling influence the object
seemed to have on them. This despite
the fact that “ordinarily I'm chicken. If it
had been an accident or a plane crash
| would have wanted to get out of
there. But | just didn't feel that way,"
(Mary's words) and, “Ordinarily, I'm
afraid of my own shadow...I'm petri-
fied of dark” (Rose’s words).

“...they felt no fear
and would have
gone aboard if the
oppovrtunity had

presented itself...”

What then was this UFO like? Piec-
ing together now the composite testi-
mony of all four, we get this picture:
(sketches by the two who followed the
object in Pied Piper fashion, and who
therefore had the best view of it, are
shown to the left).

An egg-shaped, very large, seem-
ingly solid and metallic object, wing-
less, and completely noiseless, with
swirling red lights along its equator,
and a beam or ray “as wide as a wall”

coming down from its side (as shown
on both independent sketches) like “a
ray of sunlight when it comes down
through clouds.” The beam was white
in color and did not move about; that
is, it did not appear to be a searchlight,
but a coherent beam of light which,
however, did not appreciably illuminate
the surroundings.

All observers were impressed by
how close to the ground it flew. “It's
going to hit the trees,” one said, and
another, “The thing was so low that |
thought it was going to crash, and yet
it made no noise,” and, from another,
(while she still thought it might be a
plane) “Gee, that plane looks like
there's something wrong with it.”

In response to the question, “What
commonplace thing would you put up
in the sky, if you could, that would
most closely resemble the object in
shape™?, the answers varied from “an
egg,” to “an old collander | bought a
few months ago” and to “just some-
thing oval.” To the question, “What
convinced you that it couldn't be a
plane or a balloon?” the answers were
direct and emphatic. As for a plane, *1
put my window down, to listen to this
thing, because | never saw anything
hover like that. If it had been a heli-
copter we would have heard the chop-
ping sound...it was that low we surely
would have heard the whirling of the
blades. And no ordinary plane could
have gone that slowly without crash-
ing...and there was absolutely no
noise.”

As for its not being a balloon
(which would satisfy the observed
motion) we are indebted to Mr. Tom
Jenkins, editor of the “Atlantic News
and Advertiser” of Hampton N.H. who
not only was the one who notified us of
this new Exeter incident, but who
investigated the possibility of any bal-
loons in the vicinity on that night. His
results were totally negative. He found
that there hadn't been a balloon
around since some time back when
one had been used in a car dealer's

—
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advertising. Furthermore, swirling
lights and light beams, and intensely
bright while lights require a power
supply it would be difficult for a balloon
to support in flight.

As to size and distance, detailed
answers varied, but there was consen-
sus that whatever it was, it was very
close, and very big. Estimates of
apparent size are among the most diffi-
cult things for a UFO investigator to
obtain; people do not understand ‘sub-
tended angles’ and tend to estimate
size in terms of an assumed distance.
In this case, agreement was general
that the object was truly close by, a
definite Close Encounter, and so they
gave sizes in terms of known objects:
“Bigger than a house” and “as large as
a cargo plane, but thicker,” “a dime at
three inches” and “almost the length
of a football field” and “I've seen many
jumbo jets...and I'll tell you, it was
larger than that!” And, even, “an ice
skating rink..”

As to brightness of the lights:
“They were very bright...we could
have taken a picture, they were so
bright. In fact, Rose is a pretty good
photographer and she was very upset
that, because she was riding in some-
one else's car, she didn’'t have her
camera along. [What a missed oppor-
tunity!] f it had come directly at us
instead of toward the left, | doubt we
would have seen any shape...those
lights were so bright!”

All agreed that it disappeared by
sinking down behind the tree line (later
inspection of the terrain revealed that
immediately in back of the front line of
trees there was a considerable cliff-like
drop-off). And agreement was fair on
the duration of the sighting; in any
case it was not very long, just a few
minutes. From the time it was first
sighted and discussed among them-
selves, and the two passengers jump-
ing out of the braking car, the chase by
the two along a side road, and its
disappearance, probably not more

(continued on page 6)



“a ray of light came down from it like a

than three or four minutes were con-
sumed...perhaps even less. The driver
of the car, who did not get out but
sought to turn the car around by find-
ing a convenient place in the road
ahead, found the object gone when
she retumed.

What, then, of the total experience,
and how does it compare to others?
Firstly, it was not greatly different from
the original Incident at Exeter (the
same oval shape, that time both rising
and sinking behind trees, and the mov-
ing lights along its equator), but also, it
was very similar to many of the cases
described in the REPORTER in just the
past year. Once again we have an
object that defies our ordinary princi-
ples of flight. We just do not have craft
that can hover, completely noiselessly,
at tree-top level!

The ladies tried pursuing the idea
that somehow the craft was something
of our own and put in a call, later, to
Pease Air Force Base, which is not far
away from Exeter.

“l called Pease Air Force Base
wanting to know if they were doing
something special. They wouldn't even
talk to me. | said, 'I'm in earnest. This is
what we all saw. What are you doing
up there?' But | couldn’t get anyone to
talk to me. Well, anyway | don't think
they could have anything that's that
noiseless, and, |'ve never seen anything
around here that's that shape even.”
(Compare John Fuller's attempt to get
similar information at the time of the
original Incident at Exeter.)

What were the reactions of the
ladies after it was all over? When
asked, “Years from now, what will be
the one thing that most stands out in
your minds?" Nicky LeClair (the
second passenger in the rear) replied,
“The brightness and size of it." Mary

LaMontagne, however, said, “The thing
that impressed me most was that | ran
toward it...the fact that | wasn't afraid
...that | wanted to get out of the car
and see what it was...that | could have
followed the thing on and on if | hadn't
been stopped by the trees."

Rose Messina said, in answer to
that question, “The vastness of it...
then that ray of light that came down
from it like a beam of sunlight when it
shows through the clouds” and the
driver, Mary Ann Poland, “Well, it was
exciting...l'll tell you that! Since | was
driving, the thing that will stand out in
my memory was that this thing was so
low and so close that | thought it was
going to crash and, yet, it made no
noise.”

What did they do afterwards; did
they talk about it with others, and were
they ridiculed?

“After all this happened, nobody
said much...but we went down to
Studio Two and had a drink. We sort of

asked each other, ‘Do you believe what
we saw? We just sort of sat there...we
were excited but it wasn't an ‘excited’
kind of excited, do you know what |
mean?

“We didn't mention anything to
anybody. We just couldn't believe what
we had seen and we were apprehen-
sive about talking to anybody. | told
some people at work. We finally called
Washington, D.C.

“This Thanksgiving we had an
Open House, and the article in the
Advertiser had just come out, so lots of
people asked us about it, and the gen-
eral reaction was ‘O.K. O.K. Yeah, |
hear you, and all that! | finally said,
‘Look, it happened. | wouldn't be telling
you it happened if it hadn't happened,
because there's no sense to that! " (a
situation that has been faced by many,
many other bewildered witnesses to
UFO events!).

There is still another part of this
story that must be told. It has often

The four who encountered the UFO on Exeter Road in Hampton on September 30, 1982. From
left: Nicky LeClair, Mary Ann Poland, Rose Messina, and Mary LaMontagne.
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happened that a Close Encounter has
had lasting and profound psychologi-
cal, and even physical effects on wit-
nesses. In this case it was Mary
LaMontagne, the one who had been
the most anxious to run after the
object, who felt the least fear, and who
most felt the hypnotic attraction of the

2 beam of sunlight”

object, who seems to have been the
one most affected.

Mary had been an ardent cigarette
smoker for 14 years, smoking about
2% packs a day. She relates, “One
night, about three days after the sight-
ing, | woke up in the middle of the
night,...1 just bolted out of bed, and

AF Coverup on Exeter 1

A most interesting sideline has surfaced as a result of the
investigation of this new Incident at Exeter. Those of you who have
read John Fuller's book about the original Incident at Exeter will
remember his futile attempts to pry some information from Pease
Air Force Base about the presence of jet fighters in connection with
the UFO sighting. The Air Base stated that there had been no such
activity and that no UFO had been chased by the jets.

Now it has been found, through the efforts of Tom Jenkins, the
reporter who is also the editor of the Atlantic News and Advertiser,
and who made the initial investigation of the present Incident at
Exeter, that Pease Air Force Base did indeed scrambile jet fighters to
chase a UFO, probably on the very night of the original Exeter
Incident. In conversation with Robert Mark, now Chief of Police in
Hampton, Conn., where the Advertiser is published, Jenkins found
(and this was confirmed by Larry Fawcett who, as a police officer
himself was granted an interview with Police Chief Mark, and who
obtained Mr. Mark's permission to tell the story) that at the time of
the original Incident, Mark had been security guard at Pease Air
Force Base and had personally witnessed the UFO fly-over and its
subsequent chase by fighters scrambled immediately after its
passage.

A brilliantly illuminated ‘craft’ overflew the Air Base and as it
flew along low overhead, the lights at the Base along its route were
extinguished in succession “as if someone had shot them out,” only
to return after the UFO had passed on. The two companion guards
of Mark at the Security Gate were profoundly affected, according to
Mark. One fainted, and the other fell to crying.

Security Guard Mark, however, rushed to the communications
tower and listened to the conversation of the jet pilots. He recalls
their saying that they couldn’t catch up with the intruder and that it
disappeared in the distance as a red glow.

Unfortunately, Mr. Mark cannot be sure of the exact date,
except that it was close to the time of the original incident and may
well have been on that date. In any event. Mr. Mark’'s testimony
confirms our suspicions that the Air Force does not always tell us
the truth when it comes to UFOs!

\
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had maybe a minute with the shakes,
but since then | had no desire to
smoke at all. | had no ‘withdrawal
symptoms.’ | just stopped smoking,
and | haven't had a cigarette since
(three months).”

“Did you feel that you had had
some sort of religious experience?”
she was asked. “No, nothing like that,”
she replied, “but just a private feeling
of being peaceful and serene. | don't
feel stress at all anymore. There's
much stress at the phone company
and | never could relax. Now, 'm not in
a rush anymore. | see people around
me being extremely nervous, but |
don't feel that way anymore. I've
changed my life considerably,” she
concluded.

There is little point if, month after
month, we merely record one case
after another without making any
attempt to look for relationships
between UFO events. It is important,
we feel, to examine the after-effects on
people, both physical and psychologi-
cal. Investigation of UFO cases should
not end with the mere recording of the
bare facts of the observation, but there
should be a follow-up, even extending
down the years, if facilities permit.

There have been cases of healing,
of profound changes in character, of
changes in philosophy of life of UFQ
witnesses. Could it be that these may
be as important, or even more so, than
the bare facts of the sighting itself?
What, indeed, is the message of the
UFO? Is there one?

There just doesn't seem to be a
plausible, simple, physical explanation
of this new Incident at Exeter, but even
if one should be found, how could it
explain these deep and lasting psycho-
logical and physical effects in the lives
of the witnesses? Sighting the Good-
year Blimp or an advertising plane has
not been known to produce profound
changes in life-style!

What is going on in and around
Exeter? a




" E
I have been deeply intercsted in UFO's, or Unidentified Flying
Objects, since the first reports in 1947. Shortly thereafter, I
Joined NICAP, or National Investigating Committee on Aerial
Phenomena, soon after it was organized, and was a member for
several years. When sightings dropped off and reports became a
rehash of earlier reports, and the organization seemed to take on

a new purpose, that of proving the Air Force was hiding information
relative to UFO's, I let my mebership lapse.

I did not lose interest in UFO's, however, and attended several
meetings throughout the intervening years that were quite unim-
pressive. I was in Washington during a period of numerous UFO
sightings over the Capitol, and although I spent a considerable
amount of time searching the skies I was not fortunate enough to
see anything,

My feelings relative to the authenticity of UFO's flared anew
wvhen approximately six years ago I had lunch with several rocket
scientists from White Sands, New Mexico who told me that during
many firings of experimental rockets, UFO's were seen to flash in
over the degert and o up with the rockets. These were tracked
with theotélytes and picked up on local radar.

About six or seven months ago I had occasion to see and hear

Sherman Larson who is the Director of the Chicagzo branch of NICAP,
on television, contacted him and rejoined the organization. Recent-
ly a sub-committee was formed in the Chica;o area, Unit 1, to handle
investigation of reported UFO's in our area, and I became a member
of this committee.

Several weeks ago my wife and I decided to take a business and
pleasure drive through the New England states and after given a
routing from the Chicago Motor Club, I noticed that our route took

us within 20 milecs of Exéter, New Hampshire, which was the site of

a now famous story called Incident at Exeter. This story, in my
opinion, was the most authentic and most exciting researchh on the
subject I had ever read. Inasmuch as the Air Force has been directed
by the Government to turn over to the University of Colorado all of
its records for a complete scientific investigation by that University,
I felt that the Exeter story should be high on the list for their
investigation.

It was my thought to speak to the police officers involved at that

time and some of the witnesses if they were in the area to determine

for myself whether or not Mr, Fuller's stay was an honest recount of

the actual experiences. I also felt that if they were I would suggest
that our investigative body contact the University of Colorado, sug-
gesting strongly their investigation of this strange series of sightings.,

Armed with a letter from the National Investigating Committee on
Aerial Phenomena, advisihg that I was an investigator of Unit 1 on
the sub-committee of NICAP and that cooperation would be appreciated
by Mr. Murdock, the sub-committee director, my wife and I were on
our way.

On VWednesday, October 12, 1966, I left my wife at 9:30 in the morning,
and as she has no great interest in UFO's she decided to browse in
the stores of downtown Boston. I headed north towurd Exeter, New
Hampshire.
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After consulting a wmap of the area, I decided to get off of route
95, which is the state north-south highway, at the town of Amesbury,
which is approximately ten miles south of Exeter. It 1s the start-
ing point of John Fuller's story where one Norman Muscarello walked
north toward his home in Exeter on September 3rd at approximately

2: A.M., Route 150 i8 a beautiful winding road, heavily treed, and
at this time of the year displays breathtaking beauty. After going
through the town of Kensington, I began to watch the numbers on the
telegraph poles, and shortly arrived at pole #668 where Norman
Muscarello and the Exeter police saw the UFO rise from above a clump
of trees, I took several photographs of the corral behind the Carl
Dining farm on which the episode took place, and the house next door,
belonging to Clyde Russell, and at least at this point the facts as
stated were scrupulous correct. I planned to speak to the people in
this area relative to these sightings, but was not sure of their
reception of a stranger inasmuch as for a time after the sightings
they wvere beseiged by scores of people, suriousity seekers, who
swarmed into the area. I decided to contact the Exeter police force
first, to see what kind of reception I might receive.

I had been asked before I left home, by Sherman Larson, director

of a Chicago division of NICAP, to particularly note whether orxr not
there were any high tension lines in the immediate vicinity of the
Carl Dining farm. Although to this point I had noticed none, I
continued up route 150 just as it connected with 108, going north

to Exeter and there was a line of high tension poles which I esti-
mated to be one-third of a mile from the Dining farm, and photo-
graphed same, Turning right on 108 I drove in to the outskirts of
Exeter and saw a mail carrier walking toward me and decided to ask

a few questions. I pulled over to the curdb and asked him in view of
the fact that he was probably familiar withimost of the people in
town, if he recalled anything of the sightings last year at about
this time, and I introduced myself to him. He identified himself as
Mr. Robert Sargent and said that not only did he know all of the
pcople involved in the sighting referred to, but that just recently
a Mr. Leo Scharron who operates a Donut King Restaurant had sighted
a UF0, and suggested I speak to him, I asked him if he thought the
Exeter police would be cooperative in giving me the information I
was looking for. He thought they would be extremely inter:sted in
my reason for being there. I proceeded into town wherc I located
the police station, which was part of the Court House, in a building
I thought quite large, and modern for so small a town. I p:rked my
car and went into the police station and walked up to the patrolman
at the desk, introduced myself, and showed him my letter from NICAP,
He identified himself as patrolman Arthur Wiggan and said he would
be happy to try to help me. I wanted to know if he had read Fuller's
account of the Incident at Exeter., He said that he had. I then
asked him whether, in his opinion, the accounts given by the other
police officers from the Exeter Station were reported accurately by
John Fuller. He said that in his opinion Mr. Fudler had been
extremely accurate, and then dropped the bomd shell. He said, "If
you are interested in UFO's, why go back to last year? One of our
men on patrol in a cruiser sighted a UFO last night." If I wanted
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to speak to him, he'd be happy to call him in by radio. This, of
course, was much more than I had bargained for, and I was not able
to conceal my excitement.

Within a few minutes police officer Robert Hoxie entered the station
and was introduced to me by Officer Wiggdn. He was a well-built,
serious young man whose age I would estimate to be about 28, I asked
him if he would tell me exactly what occurred on the previous night,
and followin; is essentially his story, taken from my memory and
rough notes that were made as I listexded.

The scene was route 101C and 88; the time 11340 P.M., on October

11, 1966, I was cruising in wmy car near the above mentioned inter-
section of the two secondary roads, and passed a ear parked off to
the side of the road, and at the moment thought nothing of it.

After continuing another quarter of a mile, I decided to turn back
and investigate the parked car. When I pulled up behind the car

and got out, I saw 2. women in the car. They rolled the window down
and excitedly told me to look up where they were pointing. I turned
and saw a cluster of lights - red, green and white. The white light
was steady, the red and green light was blinking. The object, what-
ever it was, was approximately 50 fcet above the ground and was
moving towvard the southeast at a speed not exceeding 40 miles per
hour, The object stopped several times, climbed vertically, then
dropped suddenly. 1t was visible for approximately ten minutes.
There was no audible sound, no effect on my car engine or lights.
The last view I had of the object was as it climbed above the top

of the County Records Building (which I photographed later tl.at
morning), and disappeared. The two women in the car were Mrs, Alice
LaRoche and Mrs, Lillian Pierce, both area residents.

The name Lilliaen Pierce rang a bell, I recalled that a woman by
this name was involved in the sightings the year before, as nammted
by Mr. John Fuller, and I asked Patrolman Hoxie about her. He said,
vyes, this was the same woman and that she spent a lot of time in the
last year driving up and down the roads of the area, late at night,
looking for UFO's. According to hery she has seen them many times.
I thanked Officer lloxie for this information, and asked him 4if a
record of last night's sighting was on the police blotter. lHe
advised that it was not inasmuch as there are so many sightings in
the area they no longer record them,

I then returned to Officer Wiggan and thanked him for his assistance
whereupon he told me that he had made a sighting of a UF0O on September
22nd. I asked him to describe the c¢circumstances., Following is
essentially the story as told to me by Officer Wiggan.

On the night of September 22nd, Just before 12:00 A.M. we received

a call to proceed to route 85 and 101 Expressway to check on an
Unidentified Flying Object reported by two women in that location.
Converging on the scené were four police officers from the town of
Hampton and four police officers from Exeter. Arriving on the scene,

I was told by the women that before we arrived the lights which we

could see in the distance as z series of white lights, had been moving
but were now stationary. The sighting lasted from approximately 12 A.M,
until 1:15 A.M, during which time we radiozd Pease Air Force Base which,
incidentally, is the newest and largest SAC Base in the world., Ve asked
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them to corroborate our sightihg. They agreed and sent aloft an
observation plane which circled the lights for a peridéd, and then
left. Suddenly the lights dimmed, and them seemed to go out like
electric light bulbs being turned off. Again, we called Pease
Air Force Base for a report and they advised that they had made
*no contact",

Officer Wiggan also advised that one of the women who had called

in the sighting and was in the car when he arrived was Lillian Pierce,
I asked him whether or not this woman was the one who had made sight-
ings as reported in the story, Incident at Exeter, and he said yes,
she made tours of the area at night quite a few times each week and
probably made more sightings of UFO's in the area than anyone else.

Officer Wiggan also suggested that I contact Mr. Leo Scharron,
proprietor of the Donut King Restaurant] previously referred to

by the post man, Mr. Robert Sargent, but added the information that
his sighting was at approximately 1 A.M. on the night of September
22nd.

I thanked Officer Wiggan for his help and after taking several
pictures of both him and Officer John Hoxie I left to look up Mr.
Scharron at the Donut King Restaurant on the edge of town. Upon
arriving at the restaurant I was told that Mr. Scharron was not in
but was expccted shortly. His wife, who was managing the restaurant,
advised me that liere husband would not under any circumstances discuss
the sighting with me or anyone else., After advising her of my
references in order to get her to talk, she refused and mcrely tried
to brush me off, While I was waiting I spoke to the cashier, Mable,
an attractive woman in her late fifties, who was quite talkative and
offercd to tell me of the entire sighting by her employer. Inasmuch
as I was interested in hearing 1t directly from him I asked her to
walt and see what his reaction was first. While talking to her, she
mentioned that just recently Mr, Barney Hill who was the principal

in a recent story appearing in Look Magazine had recently been in

town and spoke before the Lions Club. Jler son had heard the discussion
and told her that Mr. Hill seemed quite intelligent and repeated a
story that secmed forthright and honest.

She also mentioned to me that if Mr, Scharron would not discuss the
sighting with me, that he had made a tape recording far radio station
WKXR, in town, and they might play it for me, After a wait of about

40 minutes, Mr. Scharron returned. I introduced myself, but he
absolutely refused to discuss his sighting and merely said that since
radio station WKXR had played his tape he had been ridiculed and
hounded to the point of a nervous breakdown and that he would discuss
it no further with anyone. I was a little disappointed in his attitude
and left to find the radio station to see if I could get the manacer to
play the tape for me., Upon arriving at the station, I found that the
manager was not in and that the personnel would not play the tape
without his approval. I proceeded to his home at 5 Sommer Street, in
Exeter. I spoke to Mr. Ronn Allard and persuaded him to meet me at
the station at 3 P.M. 8o the tape could be played. It was now 1:30,
but I felt I would have time to drive to Hampton and see if I could
find Mrs, Lillian Pierce w o, according to the Exeter police, worked

in 2 beauty shop in Hampton.
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. The town of Hampton which is primarily a summer resort, was about

7 to 10 miles from Exeter. I proceeded to drive there and looked

up their police chief, Leavitt, and told him who I was and why I
wanted to find Mrs. Lillian Pierce. Ille advised me that he knew
nothing of UFO's in the area, but that soumeone else from NICAP

had contacted him in June or July. He did not know which of the
five beauty salons in Hampton employed Mrs. Pierce, so I left to
call on eachione in an attempt to locate her. The first shop had

a sign in the window, "closed for Columbus Day" and then I realized
that perhaps my efforts to find her would be to no avail., I continued
on to the next beauty salon and found the owner and several women
sitting in the store. The owner's name was Russell Williams and as
luck would have it, told me that Mrs, Pierce was working for him
occasionally as a trainee and willingly gave me directions to find
her home. It was located Just off route 101C, between Hampton and
Exeter, on Warner Lane. By this time it was almost 23115 and I began
to feel the pressure of not having enough time to accomplish all
that I would have liked to do that day. I knew that my wife was
walting for me at our hotel back at Boston as I had phoned her after
realizing I would be late. Because of Columbus Day all the stores
wvere closed and time was hanging heavy on her hands.

I left immediately to find Mrs. Pierce's home and after travelling
about 2 miles I knew that the instructions as I remembered them did
not coincide with the roads I had been c¢rossing. I stopped the car,
turned around and decided to head back toward Hampton and watch
more closely for Warner Lane., I had no sooner started east azain
on 101C when I noticed a car approaching. The car was not a police
car, but a Ford Thunderbird and I would not normally stop on the
road for any car flashing its lights. Inasmuch as I was lost, I
didn't know whether to turn around once again or not, I decided

to pull over to the side of the road if this car was really signal-
in-me. Sure enough, he pulled off the road on the other side,

got out of the car, and I recoghized liim as Russell Williams from
the beauty salon in town. Ille walked over to my car and asked if I
was herc to question Mrs. Pierce about UFO's. When I told him that
this was what I planned to do he suggested that I follow him and

he would lead me to her house inasmuch as he was going neardby to
pick up a woman who had also seen a UFO the previous night and was
going to return with her to his shop for a beauty appointment. He
then said to me "4if you want her story, why don't you stop back at
the shop when you are through with Mrs, Pierce, and, incidentally,
I saw one last night, tool"

This was an unexpected windfall and I essured him that as soon as

I had finished talking to Mrs, Pierce I would return to Hampton and
asked him to stay there with the woman he had mentioned and wait for
e return, He then led me to Mrs, Plerce's home and continued on by,
pointing out the house to me, where I stopped. Mrs. Pierce's home

is situatéd in a residential area between Hampton and Exe€er on Warner
Lane, and was relatively new as compared to other homes in the area.
As I approached the door, one of her children, who was Jjust returning
from school, ran past me and I asked him if his mother was home. He
opencd the door, yelled for Mom, and she, from somewhere in:the back-
ground called for me to come in. I entered what appeared to be a
family room and she entered from the other side, whereupon I introduced
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myself, Mrs. Plerce is an attmactive woman, blond, in her middle
thirties, and was attired in a robe and slippers. Her first words

to me when I told her why I had come, "Please excuse Lhe way I am
dressed as I did not et any sleep at all last night. I've been
trying to get some rest during the day." I was extremely frightened
last night by a UFO and don't intend to go out again late at night
under any conditions," Her attitude was totally disarming and
direct, but to me she did not appear frightened in the lcast. She
invited me into the living room and I asked her if she would tell

me the story of her frequeamt brushes with UFO's in the area. She
seemed to be trying to suppress great excitement. I found that dwuring
her conversation I had considerable difficulty keeping her on one
track at a time. She wanted to Jjump from case to cas@§, making it
difficult for one who had never seen a UFO to follow. I finally

got her to start at the begihning with the sighting which took place
on July 29, 1965 when she was returning home with her daughter, Sherry.
Her daughter is a nice looking teen-ager about 15 years old who
corroborated everything her mother said with the nod of her head.

Mrs. Pierce advised that they were returning by car on route 88 from
Hampton Falls at approximately 11:45 P.M. on the above mentioned date.
Suddenly ahead, they saw what they thought was an accident on the road,
They approached what appeared to be red and white lights near the edge
of the road which they took to be a police car with the domne lights
revolving., As they drew adloser they realized that there was nothing
on the road, but that across the read, like a barrier, were two red
beams of light and a powerful white beam between them. They stopped
their car just before they rcached the beams, looked beyond the edge
of the road into the field, when suddenly the white light went out,
They were both struck dumb at the sight of a disc-shaped object

about 12 feet in diaceter, with a high, silvery dome hovering approxi-
mately 10 feet off the ground and about 10 feet off the edge of the
road. It was rocking and wobbling from side to side with the two red
lizhts shining acposs the road, but at 90 degrees to the red lights
and parallel to the road was a green light shining in either direction,
There was no sound and the craft had no effect on their lights or the
operation of their engine. Thoroughly frightened now, Bherry cried,
"let's get out of herel"® Mrs, Pilerce stepped on the gas and sped off
toward home, At this point, Sherry asked to be excused and left the
room while her mother continued. "Since that night I have driven these
roads approximately four nights a week and have seen Ur0*'s both near
and far away, as many as three out of four nights that I have made the
€ircuit of what is referred to as UFO Alley, with the majority of the
sightings taking place in the vicinity of route 88 and 101C, which is
Just outside the town of Exeter," She told me that during the summer
from 1966 there were practically no sightings for several months, but
ithat as Fall approached,once again they started. She said of her
closest sighting that the UFO was only six to ten feet away and drew

a picture for me which, in her epinion although she admitted to be a
poor artist, was what most of the UFO's appeared to look like. The
only way I could desecribe what she drew was an object that looked
something like a hammerhead shark with the hammer area being considerably
larger than that of the shark. It had a long body and a tall that was
splayed out. Underneath there hung a cabin so that from an edge-on
side view the UF0O might look like a dirijgible. The size, according
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to her, secmed to be similar to a large Jjet of the Boeing 727 type.
Mrs. Pierce describes the surface of the object as appearing like
hammered aluminum, such as you'd see on cookware, with a dull,
pitted surface. The surface, at close range, was covered with

red, orgnge and white lights and larger red, green and white lights
blinking around the rim. The cabin, which was slung under the
object had what appeared to be a row of windows and because she

was s0 close she said she could look into the cabin, but all she
could sce were light green walls and nothing more. She commented
that she felt that most UFO's are approximately the same shape,

but that in the distance at night they change appearance by changing
their light patterns., She said the date of this sighting was approxi-
mately Septamber 17th or 18th of 1966. I have in my possession the
drawing she made for me, depicting the UFO as she remembered it.

The third sighting we discussed, and the one I was most interested

in, was that which occurred on Octolier 11thg the day before I

arrived in town., Mrs., Pierce was driving on route 88 just outside

of Hampton, with Mrs. LaRoche, a neighbor. They first sighted the

UFO in a field. It appeared to be about 12 to 14 feet in diameter.

It seemed oval in shape and hovered approximately 10 feet above the
ground, Jjust above tree-top level. They slowed to a stop, the UFO
moved toward them with a rocking motion, with bright blinking red

and white lights on the rim and a brilliant white beam directed right
at them, Mrs, Pierce noticed what appeared like stick type protrusions,
which dropped down from the bottom side of the UF0O and hung there,

She said they were both guitec shaken and she started the engine,
deciding to leave the area, but the UFO moved to the center of the
road and blocked her progress. She then backed the car domm the

road in an attempt to turn around and go the other way, but the UFO
moved in close and stayed just a few feet away from the car. At this
point they were on the verge of panic when the UFO moved off the road
and the sped ahead toward the town of Exeter. Before arriving in town,
they had composed themselves sowmewhat, and once again pulled off to
the side of the road and turned off the lights to watch, This was

the time then when Officer Hoxlie had passed them on the road, turned
and headed back to see who was in the car, and why they werc parked.
As preyiously mentioned, when Officer Hoxie returned the UF0O was again
in sight but at a distance, and the three of them watched it until it
disappeared over the County Records Building toward the southeast.

During our conversation, one of her children asked to go outside to
visit someone and she told them they could not go alone, but to take
somebody with them. She was afraid for anyone in her family to be
outside at this time. Again, she did not seem to be in the least
frightened.

My time was now running out. It was almost & o'clock. My wife was
wvaiting for me in Boston, the manager of the radio station in Exeter,
Mr., Ronn Allard was waiting for me there, and Mr. Russell Willianms,

and the lady he mentioned were waiting at the beauty shop in Hampton.
Reluctantly, I said good-~bye to Mrs. Pierce, ::ave her my card and asked
her to please advise me of any unusual happenings in the near future.
She slowed nme a letter on her desk which was addressed to Mr. John
Fuller whe:ein she described what had occurred the previous night, as
he had also asked her to keep him posted., I did not ask her to pose

7.



for a picture for me because I felt she would be embarrassed as
women are generally reluctant to have thefr picture taken with their
faces not made up and wearing a bathrobe at 3 in the afternoon,

I took a picture of the outside of her liome and left, heading back
toward Hampton and Russell ¥Williams' shop.

As I entercd the shop Mr. Will:ams introduced me to, of all

people, Alice LaRoche, who was in his shop for a beauty treatment,
She was a very pretty young lady, in her middle twenties, and

hardly needed it. I asked Mrs. LaRoche if she would tell me of

the sighting she had made and she described the visual contacts

of five or six occasions within the last ycar. She said that two

of them were close-up. Once, on September 22nd at route 85 which
was a night Mr. Leo Scharron had made the sighting he had refused

to discuss and the same night that Officer Wiggan and the three
Exeter policemen plus the four police officers from Hampton had
converged on the car with the two women. Obviously, Mrs. LaRoche

was one of these women, the other being Lillian Pierce. Her
description was of a reddish-orange object which rose from the

trees at right, wobbling, with a large bright source of light

and red and white flashing lights. She said the object appeared

to be slightly off the ground, pancake shpped, rather oval, with

a blue light at either end of the long axis of the oval. She said
the lights around the edge seemed to come from square shaped windows.
The object moved away from them into the distance and then hung thore
with all lights turning white. This was the point where Officer
Viggan approached and confirmed the sighting of a atationary white
light. I would like to note at this time that in all of these accounts
unless the objcct was very close up, distances seemed to be very vague
in the minds of the sighting witnesses.

Mrs. LaRoche then contined with the next close up sightihng, which again
was the one on October 1llth, the night before, at 11%:5 PM, and she
described the object she saw while with Mrs., Pierce. Hercdescription
was that of an oval shpped object with lights around the cdges, with

a blinding white light pointing at them. She estimated the size of
the object to be that of a small plane., She noted that something
metallic seemed to drop from the underside and just héing there. The
lights eround the edges again appeared to be coming through slotted
windows, and increased and decreased in intensity regularly. VWhen the
lizhts dimmed, the interior of the object appeared to be vaporously
misty. She also confirmed that the objeet was very close and moved
forward and back with a change in direction of their automobile. She
continued her story which corroborated Mrs. Pierce's story of being
along when Officer Hoxie confirmed the sighting.

One of the strangest stories, however, was that of Russell Williams.
He had sat quidly listening to Mrs. LaRoche as she told her story.
Here was a man who had been a confirmed sceptici had lived in the

area for some time, but had never before seen a UFO, In fact, when
I mentioned to Mrs. Pierce that Rus Williams had directed wme to her
home, she made some remark to the effect that he had been needling her
on and off about her UFO adventures, and indicated that he had to

some extend held her up to ridicule. During that conversation, I
mentioned to her that Russdll Williams had just advised me that the
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previous night he had seen a UFO, and her comment was, "Good! Now
he's a kook like the rest of us". It was ebvious that Rus Williams
was no longer a sceptic as it seems that on the previous evening at
about 11:45 PM he was on Lafayette Road out of North Hampton when he
noticed a cluster of red, green and white lightw, rather high up and
supposed it was a plane. He thought it unusual, however, that it had
bright white landing lights turned full oh. It was then he realized
that if this was a plane somethihg was indeed wrong because it emitted
no sound. It crossed back and forth in front of his ear and then
suddenly shot ahead into the distance with all but the white light
disappearing. Suidenly, it turned and shot back along side his car,
approximately 100 feet away and about 30 feet up, He described how
it paced his car for about 2Y2 miles, shot overhead once more, then
dipped down below the tree line and disappeared. A side wview of the
object, according to Mr, Williams, appeared as a bright forward rimit
white light with red and green lights, as per a sketch that he drew
for me, and appeared something like a boat in shape. He commented,
however, that when the object was directly overhead he could see no
outline of a body of any sort and got the feeling that these were
merely lights at the end of numerous crossed rods,

He then mentioned that I might talk to a Mr,. Fred Miller who was a
garage owner in ilampton who was called by his wife recently from th
washroomt when theilr whole back yard was lighted up by a UFO hovering
over a tree behind the house. On the ground, around the tree were
five small saucer-shaped objects. Mr., Miller lives next to route 88
but Mr, Williams assured me that after making one statement after the
sighting first occurred Mr, Miller has refused to discuss the sighting
with anyone,

As I arose to leave I phoned Mr. Allard in Exeter at the radio station
and apologlzed profusely for my inatility to see him and then as I got
ready to lecate the shop Rus asked Mrs. LaRoche if she would take a run
around the roads tonight with him to see if they could see anything.

She said she w.:uld not, but one of the operators who was in the shop,
named Pat, agreed to accompany Rus Williams later that night., As I
prepared to leave the shop I left a card where I could be reached that
night in Boston and later, my office in Chicago, if anything unusual
should occur. I thanked these people for their cooperation and headed
for route 95 back to Bouton and a very irate wife. All the way back

to Boston I c.uld not help but think about how all of these peces had
fallen into place. The fact that hey had sightings the night before I
arrived and that Mrs. Plerce was again involved in them plus the un-
likely meeting that I had with Rus Williams on the road when I stopped
and pulled off as he flashed his lights, something I would mot ordinarily
do. And the thought, that here was the place that if I was ev:y going to
have anopportunity to see a UFO, thig might be it, With all these though
racing through my mind, I thought I had better transoribe my notes
immediately before they became uncipherable. After I told my story to
my wife, Theresa, she agreed to write long-hand as I dictated from my
notes. I completed this chore about 8:30 and decided to have dinner.

As we vere eating I could not help but think that here we were about

to lenve the Boston area and perhaps an unusual opportunity to see
something I had been uanxious to discover for myself for many, many ycars,
During dessert, I broached the sub ject to my wife of driving up to Bxeter
right now to see what we could see. She thought I was out of my mind,
but did not object. Somewhere around 10 o'clock we had headed out of
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Boston over the Mystic River bridge, the fifty miles to Exeter,
New Hampshire. I had no intention of looking up my witnesses,
¥hile in the area that night I decided my wife and I would merely
drive the roads for about an hour to see if anythin;; occurred.
With Thresa at the wheel, we turned off of route 95 onto the 101
Fxpressway to Exeter, at about 1ll1l: P.,M, As we got on the Express-
vay, 1 asked Theresa to pull off to the side so I could get my
camera which was loaded with 160 ASA Supeifast film, and my

" binoculars, out of the trunk. I had the feeling, as I got out of
the car, that here was blackness and quiet like I had never quite
experienced before. The sky was absolutely clear, and millions of
.8tars hung low above us. I got back into the car and we continued
on into the town of Exeter via route 108. Ve drove through the
town at about 11315, and there was not a soul to beusseen anywhere.

We continued out route 88 toward route 1 and on toward Hampton,
straining our eyes in every direction for some sighting of anything
unusual, We stopped several times along the way and looked around,
but saw nothing., The dead silence and the blackness was very eerie.
The air was chill, and we were always glad to get back into the car,
turn on our lights and start moving. We went through the town of
Hampton which was shut down tight, and out of Hampton west on the
Exeter road 101C. I decided that as long as we had seen nothing

we would drive past Mrs., Lillian Pierce's home, and if there were
lights on we would stop and I would ask if there was some particular
place she thought I should spend some time looking. As we reached
Yarner Lane and turned left, we noticed that a car had been following
us on 101C and turned left also. I told Theresa to pull past the
Pierce home as I did not want to stop in front of the house with a
car following., Ve made a left turn at the next corner and the
following car did likewise. I told Theresa to pull off to the side
of the road and let the car pass so we could turn around and go back.
As we did so, the car pulled along side, the door opened, and in it
were Russ Williams at the wheel, Alice LaRoche, William's girl, Pat,
and huddled in the back seat a male friend of Russ Williams who I did
not meet, and huddled in the corner, no one but Lillian Pierce. I
got out of the car and asked them quite flippantly if they were out
saucer-hunting. They said that not only had they been hunting, but
they had seen the same thing that Russ ¥Williams had described to me
earlier that afternoon. Russ said that we had passed him on route
88, and he hacd flashed his lights, which we had not noticed. He said
that he had followed us and had a feeling that we might be coming
this way to stop at Mrs. Pierce's home, Mrs. Pierce said she wanted
to be dropped off at her house as she had left there upon Russ'
insistance, and had left company there with her husband. I asked
them where they saw the UFO's, and could they direct us to the arca.

Russ was highly exci€éed and prevailed on them all, including Mrs.
Pierce, to go ' back with us for a short time to see if they could
spot it and show it to us. Ve followed them to the darkened area

of 101C and 88, “"UFO Alley". ¥We pulled off the pavement at approxi-
mately 12: A.M., turned off the lights, and got out of the car., I
got my camera and binoculars out of the car, and we crossed the road
to the edge of a large field, facing nmorth., I turned and noticed
the others had gotten out of their car, with the exception of Alice
LaRoche and Lillian Pierce, who were still huddled in the bLack seat,
I walked over to the car and asked if they were going to get out,
Alice LaRoche said nothing, but Lillian Pierce said she would not
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get out, and said she was scared to death, and this time she

really looked it. There we stood at the edge of the field. It
stretched far out in front of us to the north, and we could see

a low line of trees in the distance which appeared to be about a
mile or so away. Above the trees there was a whiteish glow in

the sky, and Russ Williams pointed out this area and said it was

the lights frowm the Pease Air Force Base. I said to myselfl at this
point, "Brother, if you do see a UFO, try your damndest to remain
calm and cool so you can make an accurate description later on. Try
not to get caught up in the extitement of the moment and wind up
with a confused story." Theresa was standing next to me and
commented through rattling teceth, YI think we're all nutsi" Just
then someone yelled, "There it 18!®" I can remember hollaring, where.
Because no matter which way I looked I saw nothing. But then Russ
graibed my arm and pointed out in the distance over the row of

trees to the north. I saw a string of blinking lights, stepped
slightly up and down, not exactly in a straight 1line, but red,

gren and white, and moving very slowly from left to right. I
estimated the distance at about 1¥2 miles. We heard a low,

humming sound, something like a motor running at a constant spped

at a distance. I was relatively sure it was a plane taking off,
because it moved so very slowly and the fact that I could see red,
green and white lights all at the same time, indicated to me that
the plane was moving away from us. But it seemed to get no smaller,
then suddenly it speeded up, crossing in front of us ahove the trees.
It then came to a stop. My mind was still runnin,. behind this
phenomena, and I thought to myselfl, how can I still be seeing red,
white and green lights 1f the side of the plane is exposed to me?
These colors would not be visible in this type of airplane movement.,
The way it was moving, I would see only one white light and one grecn,
Suddenly, the obJect climbed and dived rapidly, in darting Jjerks,
adding more colored iights which seemed to change the object's size
and shape. The additional lights went on and off and then went back
to the original coloring, mewing slowly to the right end of the field
where the lights stopped, reversed direction, and returned to
approximately the point where we first saw it rise and disappeared
behind the trees. This sighting was repeated almost identically
approximately five minutes later., The time was now 123115 A.M, and
after the second sighting Mrs. Plerce insisted on leaving. So,
reluctantly the others piled into their car and said good-night,

and left,

Here wmy wife and I were standing in the middle of a dark road in

the middle of a chilling mystery in the middle of a very cold and
unfriendly looking night, After a few minutes when the object did
not return we climbed into the car and continued down 88 for about

a quarter of a mile, but that area back there had a magnetioc
attraction for . me. I turned the car around and headed back to the
field where our sighting was made. Ve saw nothing and continued on
into Exeter and decided to take 101C back to state road 95 to Boston.
¥e went a mile out of Exeter on 101C and was watching the area where
we had previously seen the UFO, and I again saw the same flashing
lights rise up from below a line of trees and head east. Just then
a clump of trees blotted out the view, I slammed on the brakes, backed
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the car up, but by the time I had cleared the trees the object
was gone, This time my sighting hed lasted for approximately ten
seconds,

At this point we returned to route 95 and went back into Boston to
our hotel where I immediately st down and drew a picture of the
flight of the colored lights, tryihg to detail its action through-
out the flight as I saw it.

I don't think that any two people see exactly the same things

when they are excited and viewing something unusual for the first
time. But I feel that the description I have given of the sighting
that night of October 12theis true and accurate,

The phone number at the radio station, WKXR in Exeter, New Hampshire

is 772-4757. 'The address of Mr. Ron Allard is 5 Summer Street, Exeter.,
The owner and general manager of station WKXR. Mrs. Alice LaRoche,

7 Robherts Drive, Hampton,Exeter. Mr., Russell Williams, 352 Lafayette
Road, Hampton,Exeter. Mrs, Lillian Pilerce of Warner Lane, Hampton,

New Hampshire.
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REACHES SOME SURPRISING CONCLUSIONS

® The book Incident at Exeter was no sooner completed than
UFO reports began to break out in unprecedented numbers all
over the country. After my research in Exeter, New Hampshire,
I was, as a former skeptic, now convinced that this would hap-
pen, surprised that it had not happened sooner. For the first
time, the general press began treating the subject with respect.

I knew that Exeter was only a microcosm, a small sample of
a much bigger story that was taking place and was certain to
take place with increasing frequency all over the world. Since
one reporter cannot hopscotch everywhere to track down an
effective story, I decided to concentrate on Exeter because of a
well-documented case there involving the police. It could have
been any number of other places with similar reports.

When the now-famous Michigan cases broke in March, 1966,
House Republican leader Gerald R. Ford formally requested
a congressional investigation and the wire services furnished
front-page stories for the nationwide press. But when an Air
Force investigation indicated that some of the sightings might
be attributed to methane or marsh gas, the press again back-
tracked and seized on this as a blanket explanation for the UFO
phenomenon.

This distortion was deplored by Dr. J. Allen Hynek, head
BY JOHN G. FULLER

of the Astronomy Department of Northwestern University, who

Condensesd from the book, Incident At Exeter, copyright @ 1966 by John G. Fuller. 31
AUGUST 1966 To b published by G, P, Pulnam's Sons.
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PHOTOGRAPHED FOR TRUE BY ERNEST GAY

Mrs. Virginia Hale saw a dome-shaped object
hovering over neighbor’s house in daylight.

himself had advanced the marsh gas theory. In a letter
to me on March 29, 1966, he wrote: “I am enclosing
the actual press release I gave out at Detroit because
I wanted you to have the full story. The release was
not handled in the papers as released.

“You will note my insistence that the swamp sight-
ings and their highly-likely explanation does not con-
stitute a blanket explanation for the UFO phenomenon.
I’'m afraid this point was missed, too.”

In the official release so badly distorted by the press,
Doctor Hynek states:

“The Air Force has asked me to make a statement
of my findings to date. This I am happy to do, provided
it is clearly understood that my statement will refer to
two principal events as reported to me. . . . It does not
cover the hundreds of unexplained reports. . . . I have
not investigated those. . . . I have recommended in my
capacity as Scientific Consultant [to the Air Force]
that competent scientists quietly study such cases when
evidence from responsible people appears to warrant
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Exeter patrolmen Bertrand, left, and
Hunt point out spot where UFO rose.

such study. There may be much of potential value to
science in such events. We know a very great deal more
about the physical world in 1966 than we did in 1866,
but, by the same token, the people in the year 2066
may regard us as very incomplete in our scientific
knowledge. . . .”

The Michigan sightings showed marked similarity
to the astounding, repetitive series of UFO cases that
were continuing on such a regular basis in the Exeter
area. At Ann Arbor, Michigan, at least 40 people, in-
cluding a dozen policemen, turned in reports of four
strange, glowing objects, hovering over a swamp near-
by. The craft was described as football-shaped, about
as wide in diameter as the length of a car, with a gray-
ish-yellow hue and a pitted surface like a coral rock.
(A witness in Exeter who experienced a UFO hovering
directly beside her car described the surface as looking
like “hammered aluminum.”) The object closest to
the observer was reported to have a blue light on one
end, a white light on the other and a large red light
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A Pennsylvania hobbyist accidentally snapped this UFQ while making time exposures of the moon.

in the center. As in most of the Exeter cases, it was
silent as it hovered just a few feet over the swamp.
Frederick E. Davids, state police commissioner and
also director of civil defense for the state, commented:
“I used to discount these reports, too, but now I’'m not
so sure.” Stanley McFadden, a Washtenaw county
deputy sheriff, reported that he and deputy David Fitz-
patrick watched the object fly over their car about the
same time farmer Frank Mannor and his 19-year-old
son saw it take off.

At Hillsdale, Michigan, 87 college co-eds took copi-
ous notes on an object that hovered over a swamp out-
side their college dormitory. Joining them was a col-
lege dean and a civil defense official who confirmed
their stories.

Later, in April of 1966, two deputy sheriffs of Por-
tage County, Ohio, chased an object described as being
40 feet wide and 18 feet high, for some 90 miles, from

Atwater, Ohio, all the way to Freedom, Pennsylvania.
Police Chief Gerald Buchert, of Mantua, Ohio, con-
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firmed their story. All the observers emphasized they
had seen some kind of a vehicle, as opposed to natural
phenomenon such as fireballs or St. Elmo’s fire.

I became involved with the UFO subject almost by
total accident. As a columnist for the Saturday Review,
I keep a drawer full of interesting press clippings on
a wide variety of subjects, especially if they are news
stories that are likely to appear briefly in the press and
then disappear into limbo.

During the summer of 1965, I came across a clip-
ping in the conservative New York Times that reported
on the rash of sightings in Oklahoma, Texas and New
Mexico during which the teletype network of the Okla-
homa State Highway Patrol was jammed for three
nights with reports from between 30 and 40 of its
officers that varicolored objects were tracked in vari-
ous parts of the state at both low and high level. The
sightings were announced as confirmed on radar
screens by Tinker and Carswell Air Force bases and
then later denied [Continued on page 107]
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LConlinued from page 33]
y the Air Force. I felt that it was incredible that this many
police officers could report a phenomenon like this without it
being based on fact. I tore out the clipping and waited for a
follow-up. Nothing happened; the story disappeared from the
pages of all the New York papers.

Facing a deadline for a column, I checked with the National
Investigations Committee on Aerial Phenomena in Washington

.and learned from its Assistant Director Richard Hall that not

only were these cases unexplained, but that two sheriffs in
Texas had sped away from an enormous object some 250 feet
in diameter that came down to road level and hovered a few
feet off the ground. At the same time, I learned about the Exe-
ter case, also involving competent police officers, one of whom
was an Air Force veteran.

I knew next to nothing about the UFO subject and in fact
was extremely wary of it. I knew that a certain element of UFO
believers was wildly irresponsible and 1 was detcrmined to
avoid this element in any research I might do on the subject.
On the other hand, the prevalence of recent police reports sug-
gested that there must be substance to the story and, if there
were, the press was certainly not giving it proper coverage.

As a naive and unbiased observer, I approached the story
with extreme caution and resolved that I would follow one
rule: To overdocument and undérstate.

THE UFO'S ARRIVE

t 2:24 a.m. on September 3, 1965, Norman Muscarello,
three weeks away from joining the Navy, plunged into the
Exeter, New Hampshire, police station in a state of near shock.
He was white and shaking. Patrolman Reginald “Scratch”
Toland, on duty at the desk, helped him light a cigarette be-
fore he calmed down enough to talk.

His story came out in bursts. He had been hitchhiking on
Route 150 from Amesbury, Massachusetts, to his home in Exe-
ter, a distance of 12 miles, The traffic was sparse, and he was
forced to walk most of the way. By 2 that morning he reached
Kensington, a few miles short of his home. Near an open field
between two houses, the Thing, as he called it, came out of the
sky directly toward him. It was as big as or bigger than a house.
It appeared to be 80 to 90 feet in diameter, with brilliant, pul-
sating red lights around an apparent rim. It wobbled, yawed
and floated toward him. It made no noise whatever. When it
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seemed as if it was going to hit him, he dove down on the shal-
low shoulder of the road. Then the object appeared to back
off slowly and hovered directly over the roof of one of the houses.
Finally it backed off far enough for Muscarello to make a run
for the house. He pounded on the door, screaming. No one
answered.

At that moment, a car came by, moving in the direction of
Exeter. He ran to the middle of the road and waved his arms
frantically. A middle-aged couple drove him into Exeter and
dropped him off at the police station.

The kid had calmed down a little now, although he kept light-
ing one cigarette after another.

“Look,” said Muscarello, “1 know you don’t believe me. I
don’t blame you. But you got to send somebody back out there
with me!”

The kid persisted. Officer Toland, puzzled at first, was im-
pressed by his sincerity. He kicked on the police radio and
called in Cruiser 21,

Within five minutes, Patrolman Eugene Bertrand pulled into
the station. Bertrand, an Air Force veteran during the Korean
War with air-to-air refueling experience on KC-97 tankers, re-
ported an odd coincidence. An hour or so before, cruising near
the overpass on Route 101, about two miles out of Exeter, he
had come across a car parked on the bypass with a lone woman
at the wheel. Trying to keep her composure, she had said that
a huge, silent, airborne object had trailed her from the town
of Epping, 12 miles away, only a few feet from her car. It had
brilliant, flashing red lights. When she had reached the over-
pass, it suddenly took off at tremendous speed and disappeared
among the stars.

“I thought she was a kook,” Bertrand told Toland. “So I
didn’t even bother to radio in.”

Toland turned to the kid with a little more interest. “This
sound like the thing you saw?”

“Sounds exactly like it,” said Muscarello.

It was nearly 3 am. when Patrolman Bertrand and Mus-
carello arrived back at the field along Route 150. The night was
clear, moonless and warm. Visibility was unlimited. There was
no wind and the stars were brilliant. Bertrand parked his
cruiser near Tel. & Tel. Pole #668. He picked up the radio
mike to call to Toland that he saw nothing at all, but that the
youngster was still so tense about the situation he was going
to walk out on the field with him to “investigate further.
“I'll be out of the cruiser for a few minutes,” he said.
“so if you don’t get an answer on the radio, don't worry
about it.”

Bertrand and Muscarello walked down the sloping field in
the dark, Bertrand probing the trees in the distance with his
flashlight. About 100 yards away from the roadside was a corral
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whére the horses of the Carl Dining farm were kept. When they
-reached the fence, and still saw nothing, Bertrand tried to re-
assure the kid, explaining that it must have been a helicopter.

Then, as Bertrand turned his back to the corral to shm_e 'hls
light toward the tree line to the north, the horses at the Dining
farm began to kick and whinny and bat at the sides of the
barn and fence. Dogs in the nearby houses began howling.
Muscarello let out a yell.

“I see it! I see it!” he screamed.

Bertrand reeled and looked toward. the trees beyond the
corral.

It was rising slowly from behind two tall pines: a brilliant,
roundish object, without a sound. It came toward them like a
leaf Auttering from a tree, wobbling and yawing as it moved.
The entire area was bathed in brilliant red light. The white
sides of Carl Dining'’s pre-Revolutionary saltbox house turned
bloodred. The Russell house, 2 hundred yards away, turned the
same color. Bertrand reached for his .38, then thought better
of it and shoved it back in its holster. Muscarello froze in his
tracks. Bertrand, afraid of infrared rays or radiation, grabbed
the youngster and yanked him toward ‘the cruiser.

Back at the Exeter police station, Scratch Toland was nearly
blasted out of his chair by Bertrand’s radio call. “My God. /
see the damn thing myself!”

Under the half protection of the cruiser roof, Bertrand and
Muscarello watched the object hover. It was about 100 feet
above them, about a football field's distance away. It was rock-
_ ing back and forth on its axis, still absolutely silent. The pul-
. sating red lights seemed to dim from left to right, then from
right to left, in a 54-3-2-1, then 1-2-3-4-5 pattern, covering
about two seconds for each cycle. It was hard to make out a
definite shape because of the brilliance of the lights. “Like
- trying to describe a car with its headlights coming at you,” is
the way Bertrand puts it.

It hovered there, 100 feet above the field, for several min-

"utes. Still no noise, except for the horses and dogs. Then, -

slowly, it began to move away, eastward, toward Hampton. Its
movement was erratic, defying all conventional aerodynamic
patterns. “It darted,” says Bertrand. “It could turn on a dime.
Then it would slow down.”

At that moment Patrolman David Hunt, in Cruiser #20,
pulled up by the pole. He had heard the radio conversations
between Bertrand and Toland at the desk and had scrambled
out to the scene. Bertrand jumped out to join Hunt at the
edge of the field.

“I could see that fluttering movement,” Hunt says. “It was
going from left to right, between the tops of two big trees. I
could see those pulsating lights. I could hear those horses kick-
ing out in the barn there. Those dogs were really howling, Then
it started moving, slowlike, across the tops of the trees, just
above the trees. It was rocking when it did this, A creepy type
of look. Airplanes don’t do this. After it moved out of sight,
toward Hampton, toward the ocean, we waited awhile. A B-47
came over. You could tell the difference. There was no com-
parison.”

Within moments after the object slid over the trees and out
of sight of Bertrand, Hunt and Muscarello, Scratch Toland took
a call at the desk from an Exeter night operator.

“She was all excited,” says Toland. “Some man had just called
her, and she traced the call to one of them outside booths in
- Hampton, and he was so hysterical he could hardly talk straight.

He told her that a flying saucer came right at him, but before
he could finish he was cut off. I got on the phone and called
the Hampton police and they notified the Pease Air Force Base.”

The blotter of the Hampton Police Department covers the
story tartly:

‘ | Sept. 3, 1965: 3 a.m. Exeter Police Dept. reports unidentified
flying object in that area. Units 2, 4 and Pease Air Force alerted.
At 3:17 am., received a call from Exeter operator and Officer

Toland. Advised that a male subject called and asked for police
department, further stating that call was in re: a large, unidenti-

fied flying object, but call was cut off. Call received from a
Hampton pay phone, location unknown. l

At 4:30 2.m. that morning, Mrs. Dolores Gazda, 205 F Street,
Excter, and mother of Norman Muscarello from a previous
marriage, was in her own words “pretty shook up.” Without a

phone, she had had no word from her son since- early the
previous evening. Nervous and wakeful, she watched the police
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cruiser pull up outside her second-floor flat, where she keeps a
spotlessly clean apartment in the face of a restricted budget.
She ran to the outside wooden stairs and watched officers Ber-
trand and Hunt escort her son up.

“You know what a shock this could be to a mother,” she says.
“And of course I could hardly believe this fantastic story. It
wasn't until I talked to the two police officers that I knew what

“they went through. When he came in with the police, he was

white. White as a ghost. I knew he couldn’t be putting me on.

Thank God the police saw it with him. People might never

believe him.” .

Lt. Warren Cottrell was on the desk at 8 o’clock that morn-
ing. He read Bertrand's report, a rough piece of yellow manu-
script paper hunt-and-pecked as a supplement to the regular
blotter. :

Cottrell called the Pease Air Force Base to reconfirm the
incident and, by 1 in the afternoon, Maj. David H. Griffin
and Lt. Alan Brandt arrived. They went to the scene of the
sighting, interviewed Bertrand, Hunt and Muscarello at length,
and returned to the base with little comment. They were in-
terested and serious.

By nightfall that evening, a long series of phone calls began
coming into the police station, many from people who had dis
trusted their own senses in previous sightings before the police
report.

II)\Jightfall also marked the beginning of a three-week nightly
vigil by Muscarello, his mother and several friends. In the
short time left before he was to go to the Great Lakes Naval
Training Station, he was determined to see it again. He did.

checked in at the desk of the Exeter Inn on the morning of
October 20, 1965, and waited over 10 minutes for a bellhop to
take me to my room. Two tape recorders, a Polaroid camera
and a suitcase took up most of the space, but the room was
cheerful and I would be spending little enough time in it.

I was armed with extensive background material supplied
me by Maj. Donald Keyhoe's organization, the National In-
vestigations Committee on Aerial Phenomena (NICAP). Both
Richard Hall, assistant director, and Ray Fowler, their Massa-
chusetts ficldman, had been most generous with their time and
information about a subject I knew literally nothing about.

I met officers Bertrand and Hunt for lunch that day in the
sprawling, tearoomish dining room of the Inn. Only a few
hushed patrons were lunching at the time and Hunt's bulk as
he came through the door o: the dining room dominated the
room. He looked twice the size of Bertrand in every dimension.
He had a quiet, wry New Hampshire accent and a salty sénse
of humor.

Bertrand was wearing zylonite glasses, was soft-spoken and
serious-looking. Although he appeared slight and scholarly, I
recalled that his lieutenant had told me over the phone that
he was invariably assigned to the tough cases. Over a porter-
house steak I learned more about what had happened and—I
was surprised to learn—was still happening in Exeter follow:
ing Muscarello’s UFO sighting, more than six weeks earlier.

“For quite a stretch there,” Hunt said, “three or four phone
calls 2 night would come into the station. Most of them were
pretty sensible people and a lot of them came pretty close to the
description of the things we saw.”

“I think you'll find,” Bertrand said, “that a lot of people
are really afraid to report seeing these things. I know I was
damn glad when Dave pulled up in his cruiser that night, if
nothing else than to check me out. Some people might be
making mistakes, but I'm convinced a lot of them aren’t. When
I was in the Air Force, I used to work right on the ramp
with the planes. I could tell what kind of plane might be
around just by the sound of it. Right after this thing went
away on September 3rd, an Air Force jet came over, Dave and
I both saw it. It was very clear what it was. No comparison at
all between it and the object, in either lighting or configuration
or sound, or anything else. And, of course, the B-47 was high
and the object was low. Right down over the trees. It was im-
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possible to make a mistake in comparing the two. On the way

-out to the place with Muscarello, I thought the kid for sure had

seen a helicopter. But it wasn't. Not by a long shot.”

“He's a pretty cool kid, Muscarello,” Hunt said. “It would
take a lot to shake him up. And he was shaken up, there's no
doubt about that.”

Hunt went on to say that Muscarello was now at the Great
Lakes Naval Training Station, but suggested I could get some
details from his mother.

After lunch, Bertrand and Hunt got in my car, a smallish
Volvo sedan which sagged a little under Hunt's weight. We
droye out Route 108, then turned left on Route 150 southerly
toward ‘Kensington and Amesbury. Hunt pointed toward an-
other road slanting up a hill ahead of us.

“Up this road another kid, Ron Smith, saw the thing too.”

“When did that happen?” I asked.

“About three weeks after we saw it. Said it passed over his
car twice.”

“Anybody with him?”

“Yes, his mother and aunt. They were all scared to death

_when they pulled into the police station.”

“What kind of kid is he?” I asked.

« “Pretty decent, from what I know,” Hunt said. “Works in
the grocery store after school, right across from the police
station. You might be able to find him this afternoon.”

I made a mental note to interview Smith, just as we ap-
proached Tel. and Tel. Pole #668. We pulled up ncar it and
got out of the car. Stretched across the field was a heavy wire
with a metal sign on it, reading KEEP oUT.

“The owner had to put this wire and sign up right after it
happened,” Hunt said. “Dozens of cars out here every night
for ‘weeks afterward. Pecople dropping beer cans and cigarette
butts all over the place. Some of 'em used to wait here all
night to see if it was coming back.”

We looked out over a wide, sweeping field of some 10 acres,
rimmed by tall evergreens. To the left was the tidy neo-Colonial
residence of Clyde Russell. To the right, about a hundred yards
away, was the rambling, ancient saltbox farm, its timbers tidily
restored by Carl Dining, a gentleman farmer who kept several
horses and other livestock. Behind the Dining house was a
split-rail fence forming a corral, where the horses were romping.
The ground sloped down toward the evergreens, and in the
far distance we could see the Atlantic shore at Hampton, a
half a dozen miles to the cast.

I asked Bertrand to reenact the scene in as much detail as pos-
sible. He pantomimed the motions in detail, reliving the inci-
dent.

“Well, we both got out of the cruiser, walked down the ficld,
down the slope, down to over by that fence there.”

He pointed to the split rails of the corral, about 75 yards
down the slope. “I was shining my light all around to see if I
could spot anything. Especially over toward those woods.”

He pointed toward the woods several hundred feet away, in
the direction of Hampton.

“When he yelled, ‘I see itl I see it!’ I turned fast and looked
up. He pointed near the trees over there—the big ones. The
leaves arce off them now, but they weren’t then. It was coming up
behind them. It hovered, looked like it banked and came for-
ward toward us. He seemed to freeze, and that's when I grabbed
him and ran back to the cruiser. We got in the cruiser and I
called in saying I was seeing it. Dave came. Dave came, and
it was moving down toward the end of the field, across the
tops of the trees.”

“Just to the right of the big trees,” Hunt said. “That’s when
I saw that fluttering movement. And the pulsating lights.”

Bertrand pointed back toward the two big trees. “These
trees must have been blocking the light when we first got here,”
he said. “It was somewhere, but I didn’t see it. Then it came
up from behind the trees, it’s thick there, thick enough to hide
it. It came up and it looked like a big red ball when it was still
behind the trees.”

“About how far, above the trees did the thing seem to be?" I
asked.

“Well,” said Bertrand, “I figure those trees to be about 70
feet high. And it was about 30 feet above them. That's how I

. figured the altitude of the thing was about 100 feet.”

“A little lower,” Hunt said, “and it would have looked like
it was skimming the trecs. And it was rocking over them. An
airplane couldn’t do this if it tried.”

“And here's another interesting thing,” Bertrand said. “Right
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alter the thing disappeared toward Hampton, we waited, and
that's when we saw the B-47 going over—a conventional jet
we sce all the time around here. Everybody knows them—and
the B-52's and the Coast Guard helicopters. Kids in their knee
pants know them here. Grandmothers know them. Anyway,
when we got back to the station and Scratch Toland told us
about the hysterical man calling from the Hampton phone
booth, Dave and I back-timed what happened and figured that
the man made this call just about the time the craft had
moved from us to Hampton.”

“And then I saw it later,” Hunt said. “About an hour later,
down on the 101 bypass. But it was too far away then, and I
didn't make any big fuss about it.”

“You couldn’t identify it for sure?”

“Not positively,” Hunt said. “But I could pretty well say it
was the same thing. And it was still over Hampton.”

We got back in the car and Bertrand directed me toward
Drinkwater Road, and then over Shaw Hill, where Ron Smith
and his mother and aunt had reported their sighting scveral
weeks later,

“They were scared, there’s no doubt about that. Shaking.
Really white. The second time he saw it, Smith said it backed
up over his car. Like it went into reverse gear. Said it was round
with bright lights over the top of it. On the bottom, some dif-
ferent colored lights. Said it looked like it was spinning, like
a top.”

ext to the tiny room housing the police desk is a small
courtroom to handle those cases requiring immediate atten-
tion. It is spotlessly clean, with shiny brown woodwork out of
respect for the serious business of the dispensation of justice.

It was in this solemn room that afternoon that I interviewed
young Ron Smith. He was a pleasant-looking 17-year-old
whom I had found in the grocer's across the street, unpacking a
carton of chicken soup. His boss at the store, skeptical of the
UFO situation, had let him off for a few minutes, on the assur-
ance that I wouldn’t let him take a ride in a flying saucer. “He’s
too good a worker to lose,” he said.

Young Smith was used to this gentle ribbing, he said, ever
since he and his mother and aunt were driving that night first
on Drinkwater Road, then on Shaw Hill, not more than a half
a mile from where Bertrand, Hunt and Muscarello encoun-
tered their inexplicable craft. “They can kid me all they want,”
he said. “I know what I saw. Nobody can tell me I didn't see it.
Nobody. That's all there is to it.”

Smith, a senior at Exeter High, was planning to go into the
Air Force after he graduated. His marks in school were fair to
good, averaging around a gentleman's C. His boss at the store,
in spite of the ribbings he liked to tender Smith, thought he
was a top worker. Mrs. Oliver, at the police desk, knew the
boy and described his character as exceptionally good.

Sitting at the attorney’s desk in the tiny courtroom, I asked
him to describe his experience in as much detail as possible.

“Well,” he said, “I was riding around with my mother and

aunt. It was a warm night, I guess around 11:30 p.m., and this
was just about two or three weeks after the officers here saw
this object. All of a sudden, my aunt said, ‘Look up at the sky!’
I thought she was kidding, but I looked up and then stopped
the car. I saw a red light on top and the bottom was white and
glowed. It appeared to be spinning. It passed over the car once
and when it passed over and got in front, it stopped all of
a sudden in midair. Then it went back over the car again.”

“Stopped in midair?”

“Stopped in midair, went back over a second time, stopped
again. Then it headed over the car a third time and took off.
It scared me, it really did. And I started to come back into Exe-
ter to report it to the police. I got partway back—all the way to
Front Street—when I came to my senses. I wanted to go back to
make sure it was there. To take another look to make sure 1
wasn’t seeing things. We did go back. And sure enough, it was
in the same spot again. It passed over the car once, and that was
the last time I saw it.” '
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“Did it take off fast or slow?" I asked him. .

“Well, it didn’t rush. It just sort of eased its way along. Then
it took off fast.”

“How about sound? What kind of sound did it make?”

“It didn’t make any real sound. Just sort of a humming noise,
like a cat when it purrs. And incidentally, I got up again that
morning, about 4 a.m. to sec if I could see it again. But I didn’t
see it.” :

Shortly after the interview with Ron Smith, I learned that
Bob Kimball, a newsreel cameraman and stringer in New Eng-
land for all three of the major television networks, lived in
Exeter and had been very interested in the Muscarello-Bertrand-
Hunt incident. 1 had worked with Kimball before, on several
documentary films I had produced, and knew him to be a hardy
and pleasantly cynical man, traits which often characterize the
newsreel cameraman in any area. -

When I saw Kimball, he frankly admitted that he was puz-
zled and baflled. He had a long-standing habit of spending a
great deal of time at the Exeter police station, especially late at
night when he found it hard to sleep. Used to the irregular
hours his profession demanded, Kimball ws essentially a night
person. His habit was to drop by the police desk about midnight,
chat with Officer Toland at the desk and follow up on any in-
teresting cases which came in over the radio. Along about 3 in
the morning, he would join Rusty Davis, owner of the local taxi
company and another one of the night people, and the two
would drive over to a bakery in Hampton, in the rear of a small
restaurant called Sugar'n Spice, for coffee and hot doughnuts,
just out of the oven. This was a ritual for both of them.

“Unfortunately, 1 wasn’t around the night of the Muscarello
case. I was sleeping, which is something I don’t usually do and
don’t approve of. I would have given my left arm and an Arri-
flex camera to have caught a picture of that thing. Gene Ber-
trand finally did wake me up—about 4:30 a.m., I guess it was—
but by the time we got out there, nothing was in sight and I was
still half asleep. And Gene was still shaken, which is very un-
usual for Gene. He's a tough cookic. So is Hunt. They're not
the kind to go around making up any story.”

I asked him what he made of it all.

“I just don't know,” he said. “I can’t figure it out and I find it
hard to even guess at it. Something was there and somcthing is
continuing to happen. That much I'm sure of. Too many people
all around the area are reporting this seriously and a lot of them
aren’t dummics by a long shot. I kept thinking if I could only
get a picture, a good picture, a closc-up, then we'd have some-
thing to work on. I carry a loaded camera in the car with me
all the time, but still no luck.”

‘Kimball offered to drive me around the area after midnight
and invited me to join him and Rusty, the taxi man, at their
nightly ritual at the bakery. He also offered to point out several
of the many spots from which reports of UFO sightings had
been made both before and after the September 3rd event.

“UFO hunting has become a popular sport. All along Route
88, on the way to Hampton, and 101-C in the same direction.
You see cars waiting out there every other night.”

The streets of Excter at midnight are ghostly and quiet. The
shops on Water Street, which sprawl along the bank of the
Squamscott River, are dim and silent. Across from Batchelder’s
Bookstore, featuring cards, gifts, stationery, the faint blue fluo-
rescent light poLicE flickers and glows uncertainly from the side
of the Town Hall building. Inside, Desk Officer Scratch Toland
holds a nightly rein on cruisers #21 and #22, most frequently
manned by patrolmen Bertrand and Hunt on the midnight-to-
8 a.m. tour of duty.

Scratch Toland, with a round and impish face, is a veteran
officer on the force, with a sharp and dour Yankee tongue and a
pleasing wit. With his help, I was able to cull the names of over
a dozen witnesses to UFO incidents, many more than I had

- anticipated, from the police blotter. It was my plan to interview
as many of these people as I could.

“This is interesting,” I told Toland. “I didn’t know you had
so many leads.” .

“Lot of people were keeping 'em quiet,” Toland said. “Afraid
people might think they were nuts. Thing that brought so much
attention to the September 3rd sighting was that there were two
officers on hand to testify directly.”

“Do you think there are many more sightings unreported, not
on the blotter?” '

“I know so,” said Toland. “Keep running into people who
tell me they saw such-and-such ‘quite a few weeks ago, a few
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"nights ago, or whenever it was.. It's geuting now so, that people

aren't even bothering to report them.” .

It was ncarly 2 in the morning when Kimball and Rusty Davis
showed up at the station. There was a lot of kidding around and
then the nightly pilgrimage for the coffee and doughnuts got
under way. We would have a chance to look at some of the
favorite places the UFO hunters haunted on the way over to
Hampton. . )

We piled into Kimball's car, a big Chrysler especially
equipped for his newsreel and documentary camera work, with
a shortwave radio, a mobile telephone, cameras, lights and film
stock. It carried a licensc plate CBS-TV, although he worked
for all three networks. “We'll check a couple of these places-on
the way down,” Kimball said as we moved out of the empty
strects of Exeter and onto the Hampton road. “But don’t expect
to see anything. Rusty and I have been looking every night since
it happened and we haven't had any luck. There's one spot on
Route 101-C where some reports have come in—and another
field on Route 88 where a lot of them have. We'll go by there
first.” :

Rusty, in the back seat, mumbled, “As long as we don’t forget
the doughnuts.” A shaggy, congenial man with an enormous
appetite, he had heard a lot about UFO's as he taxied the citi-
zens of Exeter and environs around the area.

oute 88, from Exeter to Hampton Falls, is dark, winding
and lonely, a fit place for a tired UFO to rest, if indeed UFO's
did exist. In spite of the evidence, some of it rather startling,
it was hard to overcome the resistance of a skeptical outlook,
born of the scientific age. And yet one of the prerequisites of
science is to keep an open mind.

For the first time the idea began to grow on me that, in spite
of official protestations, the Establishment (in the form of offi-
cial government, Air Force and scientific agencies) was actually
in as weak a position as the protesters or witnesses, if they could .
be called that. Regardless of official proclamations, the Air Force
offered no definite proof of nonexistence (a paradox, of course,
but everything in this case was a paradox, an ambivalence, a
dichotomy). But ncither ‘'did the witnesses offer proof. They
offered only conviction, sincerity, dedication and resolute re-
‘sistance to any who would call them false witnesses. What was
most distressing to these people was that. the Establishment—
mainly in the form of the Air Force—was responsible for calling
them liars and incompetents with almost unforgivable blunt-
ness. There seemed to be shaping up here a mammoth con-
frontation between the Air Force and the growing number of
reliable observers.

The threat of the UFO was still psychological, however. No
instance of any physical harm befalling a human being had
been reliably reported in the 20-year history of the phenome-
non’s most yeasty occurrences. Even those observers who had
had close and {rightening encounters experienced no physical
harm. Interstellar beings who could conquer the forces of na-
ture to the extent of defying gravity (if thousands of observers
were telling the truth), harness electromagnetic forces, and defy
G forces which the entire NASA space program showed no in-
dication of conquering, should easily be able to do harm at will.

The UTFO’s had apparently made no attempt to communicate
with earth people, unless, of course, they had communicated
directly with the scientific elite, who, having reported it to the
government, were promptly restrained from releasing it to the
general public. ‘

And then of course the question would come up: Could scien-,
tists be squelched like this? Wouldn't some intrepid scientist say
to hell with politics and everything clse, he was going to bring
the Truth to the public because he believed that truth was
Eor«:i ;mportant than both politics and the Establishment com-

ine :

On the other side of the fence, if you presupposed a benign
and intelligent group of political leaders, or Air Force gen-
erals, who were faced with definite evidence and proof of the
fact that UFO'’s of extraterrestrial origin -did exist, wouldn’t
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they, out of concern for the entire organized structure of so-
ciety, feel that they must be most cautious in the manner in
which this intelligence should be released to the general popu-
lace? The Orson Wells “invasion” in the late 30’s, a single
dramatized radio program, resulted in mass hysteria. Would the
same thing— or worse—happen if official government sources
announced blandly that we definitely had visitors from another
planet? What would a reasonable and prudent man in a posi-
tion of complete authority—such as the President of the United
States—do when confronted with such a decision?

" There have been, I learned after I started this research, fre-
quent and continual rumors (and they are only rumors) that

. in a morgue at Wright-Patterson Field, Dayton, Ohio, lie the

bodies of a half-dozen or so small humanoid corpses, measuring
not more than 414 fect in height, evidence of one of the few
times an extraterrestrial spaceship has allowed itself either to
fail or otherwise fall into the clutches of the semicivilized earth
people. What would any of us do if we bore the responsibility
of releasing this news to the citizenry? If we were the “reason-
able and prudent man” our law courts always use as the meas-
uring stick of judgment, we would probably be very circumspect,
We might even delay judgment.

As 1 drove down the twisting, darkened curves of Route 88 in
Bob Kimball’s newsreel-equipped Chrysler, thoughts like these
were going through my mind.

Another ritual assumed by Rusty and Kimball was to deliver
a parcel of doughnuts and hot coffee to the police station at
Hampton Beach, the resort section of the town, swarming with
visitors during the summer, now deserted and boarded up in
October. We drove along the ocean, past the shells of the sum-
mer hot-dog stands and curio shops, and pulled up in front of
the police station, the only light visible in the entire seashore
community. It was close to 3 in the morning by now and the
only sound was the echo of the breakers on the beach.

Sgt. Joe Farnsworth was on night duty, a gray-haired gentle-
man who tendered some friendly insults to the regulars for

~ being so late with the coffee.

He recalled the night of the frantic phone call from the man
in the unknown phone booth, pulled out the blotter and showed
me the record of it. :

“There's another story, though,” he said, “much more inter-
esting than this one. It’s not on the blotter because we turned
the whole thing over to the Coast Guard station and they took
it from there.”

“Tell me about it,” I said.

“Well,” the sergeant said, “this was about two months ago.
That would make it some time in early September or late Au-
gust. I don't have the names of the two fellows involved, but the
Coast Guard does, if they're allowed to give them to you. Any-
way, I was cruising up on the boulevard. It was late, about 4 in
the morning, I think. This car was parked along the side and
I eased up to it to see what was up. There were these two boys
in it, I guess they were in their late teens. As soon as they saw
me, they came running to the cruiser. And they were scared to
death, I mean scared to death. Both of them. And this one boy
said, ‘You'll never believe what I'm going to tell youl’ Right
away, the way they were acting, I checked to make sure they
were-both sober. And they were. No liquor on the breath, noth-
ing like that. They were just plain hysterical. So they told me
they were going down the boulevard, and this thing come in
from ‘the ocean right over the top of their car, and it stayed still
over the car. And they stopped short, they thought it was a plane
that was trying to land and they didn’t want to get involved
underneath it. Then this thing stopped, too, whatever it was.
Right.in the air. Pretty soon, they got scared and took off—and
when they did, this thing did, too. But when they went up the
boulevard straight, this thing suddenly came right at them.
That'’s when' they pulled over, the thing shot off out of sight,
and they were too hysterical to do anything until I pulled up,
I guess. So I took them up to the Coast Guard station.”

“How far is that?” I asked.

“Couple of miles up the shore from here. Right on the beach.
So anyway, the Coast Guard had these guys write out state-
ments about what they saw, and everything. And they had
somebody come over from the air base, I don’t know who it
was, and check on it. And I don’t know what they found, but
these kids definitely saw something.”

“Yon don’t have the names of the kids anywhere?”

“No, I'm afraid I don’t. But the Coast Guard does. And the
next day, the story was flying around so much I was believing
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it mysclf. Especially the way these kids were so hysterical. They
couldn’t have faked that in a million years.”

“Any other cases come your way?” I asked.

“Oh, a couple of weeks ago,” the sergeant said. “‘After the
beach closed. About a week or two after Labor Day. We got a
report, you might have heard about it, that the thing was over
the marsh, back of the police station here. I went out there,
but I didn't see anything. Then there’s a woman who works at
the high school in Exeter. I took her to school one morning,
her car had broken down. She saw it. She was going up the ex-
pressway toward the Exeter line when she saw it and she said
the thing stopped off to one side of her car. She got petrified
and stopped the car and couldn’t make up her mind what to do.
All of a sudden, she said there was a big white flash from the
thing, and it was gone.” The sergeant paused a minute, and
leaned back in his chair. “Now I still don’t know what to make
about all this,” he said. “Do you suppose it’s something the
government is working on?”

“That's one possibility. All I can say is that it's anybody's
guess.”

“It secems to me, and 1 might be wrong,” said the sergeant,
“that every night we got a report on this, it's been foggy, hazy.”

“Most of the time,” Kimball said, “in Exeter, it’s been clear.
So I don’t think that holds up.”

“That night the kids went up to the Coast Guard station, it
was quite foggy. But you know—on a second thought, I don’t
think it could belong to the government, because the govern-
ment can’t keep its mouth shut that long. They'd be so proud
of themselves if they had a vehicle that could do all this, they'd
have it on TV the next day.”

“Well,” said Rusty, “they can’t be dangerous. Because they've
been around enough that they could have done plenty of dam-
age by now, if they wanted to.”

It was almost dawn when I got back to the Exeter Inn. Tired
as I was, I found it difficult to get to sleep; everything that had
happened during the long day of October 20 ran through my
mind. : ’

The possibilities seemed to boil down to one of three things:
first, a revolutionary government secret weapon, unannounced
and unpublicized. Second, it might be a foreign craft. Russia’s
perhaps, that was so fast, maneuverable and invincible that it
could thumb its nose at our own Air Force, and survey the
country at will and without fear of being captured or shot down.
Third, it could be an interplanetary craft, coming from a civili-
zation far advanced beyond our own.

These were, it seemed to me, the only speculations possible
unless it could be assumed that the sightings were psychic aber- -
rations. From the quality of the official and technical witnesses
making low-level observations, such as the one Bertrand and
Hunt had reported, mistaken identity could almost surely be
ruled out. The Air Force explanations of some of these sight-
ings were actually harder to believe than the sightings them-
selves. Psychic aberrations? Maybe—but highly unlikely. There
was photographic and radar evidence, too. Bertrand had refused
peint-blank to believe the reports of the lone woman on the
101 bypass, of Muscarello, too, until in the company of both-
Muscarello and Hunt the thing suddenly loomed above him.

Of the three major speculative possibilities, there seemed to
be arguments against any one of them being likely. If it were
an experimental aircraft of our own design and making, it
would be required to carry conventional running lights simply
for air safety, if nothing else, regardless of its secret nature. And
the Federal Aviation Agency would prohibit it, secret or not,
from zooming straight at automobiles on the highway and forc-
ing people into nervous shock. It would most certainly not be
permitted to hover and maneuver in populated areas at night,
skimming over housetops and cars. And if it were that secret
the Air Force would not want it in populated areas anyway.
If it were not secret, as Sergeant Farnsworth had said, it would
be all over TV along with the astronauts, whose feats would be,
overshadowed by the power and maneuvers of the UFO’s.

If the craft were of foreign origin, why had it not set off
vociferous complaints about violation of air space in our coun-
try, or any other of the countries which had reported UFO's so
frequently? The single U-2, which had flown over Russia at
60,000 feet, had created a major international incident, blasted
the hopes of a summit conference and brought before the
United Nations a case which still echoes through its halls. Logic
would seem to rule out this possibility, also.

If the UFO's were extraterrestrial, why had they not at-
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tempted to communicate with us? Certainly a civilization ad-
vanced enough to create interplanetary or even interstellar
craft should be able to make it plain to us that we had visitors
from space for the first time in recorded history. Unless, of
course, they had already communicated with authorities who
had decided to withhold this intelligence on the theory that the
public might panic.

The latter possibility is at once the most logical and still most
illogical (again the paradox). It is more logical than the other
two only because the other two possibilities (advanced U.S. or
foreign man-made craft) are so totally illogical.

he next morning, October 21, I had an appointment with
Mrs. Virginia Hale—a UPI stringer and a reporter for the
Haverhill, Massachusetts, Gazette. She lived in a generous ranch
house on a trim residential strcet in Hampton, not far from
the ocean. Mrs. Hale was an experienced observer. She knew
every conventional flight pattern of the nearby Portsmouth
Air Base, as well as the commercial air lanes reserved for air-
liners on their way to Boston. 4

She took me immediately to her kitchen window, set above
her spotless stainless-steel sink, and pointed out the portion of
the sky in which she first saw the unknown craft. She had kept
it in clear view over a five- to 10-minute period. She pointed to
a soapish smear on a pane of her window. .

I put my finger in the dishwater the minute I saw this thing
in the sky,” she told me, “because I wanted to clearly mark the
position where it was when it first came into view. The only

_ thing I had handy to do this was the soapy water, and you can

still see it there—faintly of course. But it’s there.”

-1t was. Enough of 2 mark to line up a fix on a certain portion
of the sky, above the rooftops of her neighbors’ homes and out
over the Atlantic a short distance. It was from this general por-
tion. of the sky, I recalled, that Sergeant Farnsworth had de-
scribed the craft coming in over the two hysterical young men
on the Hampton boulevard that early morning when they had
been whisked to the Coast Guard station to make their report.

“I don’t know the date I saw this,” Mrs. Hale told me, after
she had poured a cup of black coffee in the kitchen. “I'd say
two to three weeks ago. I was standing right here by the sink,
about 25 after 6 in the evening. It was dusk, it wasn’t quite
dark, and there was still plenty of light. The reason it caught
my eye was because it was bright and because it was going slow,
very slow. Not at all like the path of the planes as they come
over. So I automatically figured something is wrong. Then—it
stopped dead over that house—"

he pointed to the roof of her neighbor’s house, just out the
kitchen window. “It was about three times the height of that
chimney,” she continued, “and it hovered there. Now you know
four minutes is a long time and that’s why I hesitate to say
that, But I'm pretty sure it was that long. Then I marked the
window with the smear from the dishwater, so I could remem-
ber where I lined up the spot.”

We moved outside, as she reenacted what had happened. “At
the moment the object stopped I came out here on the terrace.
Now, I would estimate that it was out beyond the Coast Guard
station which is right on the shore, just over these houses here.
After it started up again, it moved much faster. The B-47’s go
further east and further north before they cut back. And when
this thing cut back toward the southwest, coming directly back
and losing altitude fast, coming in really fast, and coming, al-
most, I swear I thought it was coming right at me. Of course,
to be frank, I was hoping it would land. And it cut over this

- house behind us here, and I knew I would lose sight of it. But

also, it was going so fast I thought it was going to crash.”

“Could you get a clear look at it at this time?”

“Well, at this point I could see from underneath, too. It was
dome-shaped, and underneath, it was flat. Its altitude was now
about twice the height of that chimney. By the time it was over
here, I could see the bottom and the front of it plainly. And here
I got a full view of the bottom and the back and tail, maybe
you'd call it a fin. Then I went into the house and looked out
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the front window.”

“You could definitely rule out a plane?”

“Definitely,” she said. “If you're around here any time at all,
you'll notice the B-47's come by here on their landing pattern,
and they go just about directly over this house. Then they head
out to sea, to the east, turn slightly west, and come in by Rye
and North Hampton. So I am familiar with all that. And, oh,
there was one thing I forgot to tell you. Right after I saw this,
there was a commercial plane moving on a steady flight pattern
and I used that to contrast it with this thing, and to check the
altitude and erratic movements of the object. Now what exactly
did it look like? I'd say maybe it looked like a golf ball, sliced
off more than half, and with another slice taken off where this
fin was. As close as I can describe, it was very bright, not like

any kind of light I can think of. I know I've seen something-

like the texture of this light, not a regular’electric light. Matter

" of fact, the Puritron was the first thing I thought of.”

“What's a Puritron?”’

“It’s an ultraviolet light, an air purifier. I have one here and
I'll show you. The light was bluish-green, but more green and
white than it was blue. It had very definite outlines, and that
was what I wasn’t quite sure of at first. It did have a little glow
around it, but that could casily have been a reflection of what
was coming from within.”

“Can you tell me what portion the glow was coming from?”
- *Well, more or less from around the rim, that’s what I no-
ticed when it was going north along the coastline. And it sort
of spread up the top part of the dome.”

“Was it a bright light? Anything like neon?”

“You're getting close,” she said, “When I described it to my
daughter—she’s 14—she said you mean something that makes
heat? But I would say more like one of these modern streetlights
that glow so brightly, Except that it seemed more contained.
It seemed to have more substance.” ‘

“Could you tell if the surface was metallic or not?” Mrs. Hale's

description was so articulate, I wanted to get every possible,

detail. .
“I could not say that it was,” she said.
“Any portholes?”
“No, nothing like that.”
“Jet trail?”
“No."
“Sound?” .
“Absolutely none. None at all.” »
“When it stopped, you say it stopped still?”
“Absolutely.” .
“Il\)lid it wobble at all? Rock?”
[ 0."
“Absolutely stationary?”

“Yes, That’s the thing that struck me. It hovered only in the

sense that it remained suspended. I had heard of some of the
other reports and they had said that it rocked or wobbled.”

“Did it behave aerodynamically like a plane at all?”

“Well, when it came back toward me, it was going too fast
for anything that I know. That’s for sure. And in the pattern
that it was coming, none of the planes around here would use
that pattern. Not even the local ones. When it was out in the
east, I thought it might have been a reflection from' the chute
that the B-47’s use just before they touch down on the runway.”

This, I noted, showed an inclination to check out her own
sighting against other possibilities. It helped support the ac-
curacy of the testimony.

‘;About the shape again. Could you give me any more de-
tail?” :

“Well, if you turn a real deep, very deep saucer upside down,
you do come close to it, if you break out a corner on it. If I
could think of the right type of light I've seen and the right
type of plastic to put it inside of, that’s the impression I had.”

“A glow from within that left a halo effect?”

“That’s about it.” _

“And the size of it? Could you give any estimate of that?”

“It was big.”

“If you saw a B-47, which you know so well, going over in a
landing pattern, how would it compare?”

“If it were strictly on its landing pattern, I would say that
a B-47 would be half as big.” .

1 had gotten a number of leads from Scratch Toland and
other policemen in Hampton and Exeter. The next one I fol-
lowed up was Mrs. Rudy Pearce. Her home is in a miniature
Levittown-type development on Warner Lane. It is a split-level
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house surrounded by well-kept shrubbery with the usual quota
of bicycles on the lawn. I rang the bell and waited a moment
until Lillian Pearce, a large, handsome woman with a shock
of blonde hair, opened the door and let me in. I was almost
stunned by what 1 found inside. Sitting in a semicircle was a
group of a half a dozen or so of the neighbors, waiting for me,
and anxious to tell me of their many experiences with UFO’s.
Also in the room were several teen-agers, mostly of high-school
age, who were ready to volunteer their personal stories. I had
been expecting a single description from Mrs, Pearce and, in-
stead, I was faced with a neighborhood meeting. It was helpful,

" of course, because I could compare several stories with the others

I had heard. For the first time in the research, I began to get
the feeling that UFO incidents were far more widespread, more
frequent and more recent than I had suspected.

The room was so crowded that it ws difficult to keep the
meeting coherent. Mrs. Pearce dropped the opening bombshell
by announcing that she had encountered a low-level UFO only
the evening before as she was driving her children and those
of a neighbor home from a dance. I quickly scanned the other
faces—both the houscwives’ and the teen-agers'—to see if any
disbelief was registered. None was. There were only nods of
assent. I was a little numbed by this, but went on with the ques-
tioning,

“This was a real odd cralt last night, I kid you not,” Mrs.
Pearce said.

“It was definitely not a plane” I asked.

“Definitely. It was treetop level and had an enormous span.”

“Where was it in relation to your house here?” ’

“It was up by the next farm,” Mrs. Pearce said. “Just as you
turn the corner here on Route 101-C.”

We were on Warner Lane, just off this road, one of the main
highways from Exeter to Hampton.

“About what time?” I asked,

“About 10,” Mrs. Pearce said. “These kids here were with me.”

I looked around. the room at the teen-agers. If there is any
prodlivity that can be said to be certain, it is that of teen-agers
to debate or necutralize any parent who tries to cxaggerate in
front of them, I was watching carefully for this reaction. “All of

‘you saw this?” I asked the teen-agers.

They rcplied, almost in concert, that they had.

“It was real wide,” said Mrs. Pearce. “It went right over our
ar. I'm not kidding you. Mrs. Deyo—Doris here—was with us.”

I looked in Mrs. Deyo’s direction. She nodded in assent.

“How can you be sure it wasn't a plane?” I asked.

“Do planes make no noise?”

“This was silent?”

“This was absolutely silent. This was not a plane. All of us
here know planes, day or night.” ‘

" Mrs. Deyo spoke. “It looked like it had a lot of little, 1 call
them portholes, ‘except they were square. The light coming
through them was solid white.”

“There were other lights on it, but they were dim,” said Mrs.
Pearce. “Several colors, red, green, orange. All over., And the
surface seemed to be metal. I don't mean that metal can change
shape, I mean the lights all around it, they can change the
pattern and make it seem to change shape. I say the lights can
camouflage it in the air, they definitely can. I believe that 100

rcent.”

“This thing just dropped down toward the car,” Mrs. Deyo
said. “It dropped down, and it secmed to take on red lights,
and it followed us. My son was in another car near us, and he
saw it over our car.”

“How close over the car?”

“I mean close,” Mrs. Pearce said. “Not more than eight to
10 fcet above it. The lights scemed to circulate, rotate around
it. Airplane lights don’t do this. They flash on and oft.”

The atmosphere in the room was tense and electric. It was
still hard to control the group, to keep cverybedy from speak-
ing at once.

“Let's go back,” I said to Mrs. Pearce, “to your first cxperi-
ence. And the objects you saw closest to you.”

“The first experience I had was on July 29th, this past sum-.

mer. This was before anybody had seen anything around here.
That I know of, anyway. And I thought I was losing my head.
1 was with my daughter here, my l4-year-old, and we first

- thought it was an accident down the road. With these bright,

flashing red lights. It. seemed to be right on the road. When we
got near it, I could sce this wasn’t an accident. It was a huge
craft, right on a field beside the road. Then it suddenly took
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off. My daughter won’t go out at night alonc anymore, since
then. I'm not a brilliant brain, but I'm not stupid, cither, I
can tell you what I saw. I don't care if anybedy belicves me or
not. These things I saw. And nobody's ever going to try to con-
vince me any way different.”

Like the others in the room, Mrs. Pearce was passionate in
her testimony. It was a little difficult to keep her on the track,
but she was a basically intelligent woman, and I encouraged
her to go on.

“It's gust like I told the colonel at the air base: You show me
the cralt, I said. He said he couldn’t show me the craft, the Air
Force had no such thing. I said, Then what is it? He said, It's .
a UFO. All right, I was told that over the phone, when I called
the base after this July incident. I wasn’t even going to call
them. I told one of ‘my friends that they'll think I'm nuts. Ac-
cording to the officers, none of them have scen these things.
When the major and the colonel came down, we looked at what
appeared to be a star, except that it was blinking red, green
and white. It didn’t appear to be a star to the major, but he
didn’t know what it was. The colonel did sce two very puzzing
red things in the sky, and he had some very, very poor excuses
for it. Very poor, as far as I'm concerned.

“At one point, they thought we might be seeing the strobe
lights of the runway. The colonel sent the major and a lieu-
tenant back to the air base to have the strobe lights turned on.
This was after Doris and I had gone up to the air base to talk
with them. We were all down on Route 88. While we werc
waiting to sce what would happen, we were talking, and a
strange object went across the sky, not low, the way the ones
which have scared us, but high. I asked him. What do you call
that thing there? He said, Well, that's an airplane. I said, Oh
is it, well how come it doesn’t make any noise? Well, it’s too
far away, he said. I said, No it isn’t, Colonel, and there were
about 15 or 20 cars there by the field piled up. He asked me
why they were there and I told him. Then I said, What kind -
of plane is it, are you going to tell me it’s a jet? He said, No, it
isn’t. Well, what is it? I said. Then he sort of, you know,
couldn’t quite name it. Then he came up with a name, I can't
even remember it. I said, I'm sorry, 1 don’t agree with you,
Colonel. 1 didn't. So then another object started over the road,”
right down on Route 88, right across the road. By the Apple-
crest Orchard. So the other one starts over, and 1 said, O]an,
what's that? Oh—that’s a plane. I said, Oh, you think it is. Okay.
So one guy there in the crowd had binoculars, I didn’t have
any at this time, I went out and bought some later. I asked if
he’d let me use them, and he did. The colonel looked through
them and his face dropped. It did, I could tell. Now what is
that? 1 said. Well, he says, you know there are passenger plancs
that come into Boston along here. I said, Oh, you mean they
stop in the orchard to have apples? I said, That's pretty stupid.
I said, I'm sorry, I don’t agree with you. No, I mean it, I don't
care what I say. Nobody's going to tell me I can’t see something.
So, anyway, one woman was standing in the background, shc
said, I'll tell you something, I've scen those things and they're
not airplanes. She said, There's no noise to them. She said, I
never saw a plane look like that. I belicve that woman down
there, she said, meaning me.” :

I had to admit that I was spellbound by Mrs. Pearce’s vivid
recollection of the scene. She continued.

“Now he’s a colonel in the Air Force, he should have much
more intelligence than that. So, anyway, finally he decided he
had to leave, I said, Oh, Colonel, what about the strobe lights?
You were trying to tell us that we were having hallucinations
or sceing reflections from the air-base runway. By this time, the
major had returned and admitted that the lights had been
turned on and off on a regular pattern, and we had seen noth-
ing unusual at all while they were doing this.”

Mrs. Pearce took a deep breath. “All I can say is that if they're
from another planet, the Air Force being the way it is, I hope
they're friendly people.”

1 had come up to Exeter expecting to explore a single inci-
dent. Now it seemed to have developed into a constant, steady
flow, not just from the group on Warner Lane, but in scattered
places throughout the area. : :

My talk with the Pearce neighbors and the tecn-agers con-
tinued for over an hour. Reports on Route 88 and on 101-C
near some high-power transmission lines were the most fre-
quent, but some of them had seen the unknown objects along
Drinkwater Road and near the sighting by the Exeter police
officers. I kept questioning their capacity to distinguish what-
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---ever objects they saw from ordinary planes, military-or com- -

mercial. They insisted that regular planes continually passed
.over, day and night, and that the objects they were reporting
had nothing to do with them.

“How would jou feel,” Mrs. Pearce said, “if you had a daugh.
ter who wouldn't go out the door at night because of these
things?”

1 %isgured that mass hysteria here could not be discounted,

that it had to be seriously considered as part of this cluster of:

sightings. Meanwhile, I was going to reserve judgment. When

Mrs. Pearce and Mrs. Deyo asked me if I wanted to look over .

the locations they had described, later on in the evening, I said
that I would. I had to admit I felt a little odd; this would be
the first time I had ever gone UTFO hunting, and I made a men-
tal note to ask Bob Kimball to come along. If by the remotest

chance we did see anything, I would want to have a solid man .

like Kimball around, who, in addition to being a newsreel cam-
eraman, was a fully licensed pilot, familiar with all types of
" running lights on airplanes. He agreed to join us.

- That night we covered two or three locations on Route 88
that both Mrs. Pearce and Mrs. Deyo described as places where
they had seen the objects. When we reached the field where
the colonel and the major had been confronted by Mrs. Pearce’s
wrath, we got out of the car to see if any strobe lights were vis-
ible from the runway of the air base, over 10 miles away, and
to study the landing- and running-light patterns of planes
which might be over the area. Both Kimball and I wanted to
do this to examine with Mrs. Pearce and Mrs. Deyo the possi-
bility of mistaken identity of planes. :

Over a 15-minute period, we saw the running lights of four
planes which, Kimball pointed out, would be making a landing
pattern for the air base. Both Mrs. Pearce and Mrs. Deyo im-
mediately recognized them as running lights on planes and
didn't, as I had half expected, attempt to convert them into
UFO’s. This was a strong point in their favor,"and helpful in
making a better assessment of the amazing testimony given

me that afternoon.

" The night was dark, moonless, with a very high overcast. No
stars were visible, of course, so that the winking running lights
of the planes stood out clearly against the gray void above.

Just as we were getting ready to get back in the car, Kimball
noticed the running lights of a smaller plane, moving at a con-
siderably faster speed than the lumbering B-47’s and B-52's.

“That boy is really moving,” Kimball said. “If he’s anywhere
near the landing pattern of the field, he’s breaking speed limits
at that altitude.”

The plane was coming toward us, moving southeast at a rapid
clip. Its running lights were plainly visible in conventional
aircraft pattern. It took perhaps 20 seconds for it to get almost
abeam of us and the roar of its jet engine could now be heard.
Its altitude secemed to be about 6,000 to 8,000 feet, according to
Kimball, We were both watching it rather intently because its
pattern was entirely different from the other planes we had
‘observed.

Just before it drew abeam of our position, Kimball nudged
me. “What the hell is that?” he said.

I looked and saw a reddish-orange disk, about one-fifth the
size of a full moon. It was about three or four plane lengths in
front of the jet, which appeared to be a fighter. The plane was
moving as if in hot pursuit. The disk was perfectly round, dull
orange more than red. It was luminous, glowing, incandescent.
The plane was not closing the distance between it and the ob-
ject. We followed both the plane and the object for 18 or 20
seconds until they disappeared below the southeasterly horizon.

If Mrs. Pearce or Mrs. Deyo were saying anything, I didn’t
hear them because Kimball and I kept up a running commen-
tary with each other on what we were seeing as the plane moved
from abeam of us until it went over the horizon.

“Check me,” Kimball was saying. “What exactly do you sce?”

“An orange disk,” I told him. “Immediately in front of the
running lights of an apparent jet fighter.”

“A little to the port of it, too, wouldn’t you say?” Kimball
asked.

*Maybe. Not much to port.” .

“Do you see any running lights on the disk?” he said.

*“No. Nothing but the orange glow.”

“Right,” said Kimball,

In almost precisely the time in which we carried on this con-
versation, both the plane and the object had disappeared. The
whole thing happened so fast that I'm not sure how I reacted.
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I said to Kimball, “Well, that sure as hell is the most interesting
thing I've seen.”

Mrs. Pearce, however, seemed to shrug it off. “That was noth-
ing,” she said. “Wait until you see one close up.” '

Fremont, a dozen miles from Exeter. I found my target, Bessie’s
Lunch, in a lonely wooded clearing not far out of the village.
It was a rustic diner, homespun and friendly in atmosphere,
with barely enough room behind the long row of stools to stand.
A tall, angular Yankee behind the counter turned out to be Mr.
Healey, husband of Bessie, in whose honor the diner was named.

Mr. Healey was friendly, but reserved. I ordered a cup of
black coffee, and finally confessed that I was on the track of
UFO reports, and perhaps he could help me.

“Understand you got several reports down here about them.

Is that right?” 1 asked. “Several” turned out to be a low estimate. -

“Ran into one couple here,” Mr. Healey told me, “who saw it
pretty close. Right along the power lines down here. They all
secem to describe it pretty much the same, that's what gets me.
No matter what place they sce them in. If the people were mak-
ing it up, I don’t think they'd come in with the same descrip-
tions. This couple come in from South Hampton or Hampton, I
don’t know which one it was. I've known the father ever since I
was a kid, and I know he wouldn't lie about it. And his was the
same description as all the others has given—dozens of “em.
And we have so many that come from different parts dropping
by here. We had a woman in here who come all the way from
Epping. She claims she saw it, and she described it the same way:
a round flying object with bright lights, and then it’s got this
orange and red light. And she says it flies along that way—no
noise, not one of them. They all say close to the same thing,
that's what gets me.” Another customer, Jim Burleigh, had also
heard a good many reports. :

We were interrupted when Bessie, a plain and honest-looking
woman, came in with her daughter, a smiling girl in her twen-
ties. I lost no time in questioning her daughter, who mentioned
her own sighting first. It had happened as she was standing in
her backyard in Fremont.

“The first one I.saw,” Bessie said, “went right down in back
of the trees. It was white and then it turned red. Dark red.
But first it looked greenish-like. And then there was a plane
that seemed to be trying to circle it. And I was with my other
daughter, we both saw that. She has seen it 'more times than
that, too. We saw it two nights in a row, the same time of night.
Early evening. I went out.on Tuesday night—just last Tuesday,
out at the clothesline, and I said, Gee, am 1 seeing things? It
was recally close. That night it was round, just as big, and you
could sce these silver things coming down from it. So I went
in and called my neighbor, and I said, Come out on the ficld,
quick. But her husband yells, We can see it better from the
attic, and he called down he could see it real good. Then it
went down behind the trees, and came up again. It's just like
the one we saw the other night. It went right down the power
line. That's what it always seems to do—hover over the power
lines.”

Bessie could not be called an expert witness, but there was
no question that she recalled the incident vividly and genuinely.
And here again the power lines were indicated, miles away from
Exeter., :

Jim Burleigh finished his coffee and agreed to take me to the
Jalbert family, a few hundred yards down the road. It was a
small house by the side of the road, not more than 40 or 50-
feet from the poles of the high-tension power lines which crossed
the road at that point. The lines, part of the Northeast Grid,
interlock communities with electrical power, and permit differ-
ent utility companies to exchange power when a peak demand
requires “borrowing” electricity from another community. Some
transmission lines are mounted on huge, gaunt steel towers;
others use oversize lighting poles, as was the case here. When
they are constructed, a wide ribbon of clearing is made extend-
ing dozens of fect on each side of the lines, in order to keep the
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wires free of any entanglements with foliage or tree branches.

* This creates, in cffect, wide highways or swaths of clearing

which sweep across the country.

Before we went into the Jalbert house, I examined the power
lines carefully. The swath must have been over a hundred fect
wide, and you could look down it in either direction for several
miles. Overhead, some 10 or 12 heavy wires were suspended,
sweeping along the open swath until they disappeared in the
distance.

Mrs. Jerline Jalbert, a pleasant and unassuming widow, had
made a modest home for her boys, Joseph, Jr., 16; Jerle, 14;
Kent, 12; and a smiling four-year-old. They were bright kids,
standing high in their classes at school, innately friendly and
curious. The entire family often stood watching by the power
lincs at dusk. Mrs, Jalbert told me what she had seen the pre-
vious week.

“It was a funny-looking shape,” she said. “Very hard to de-
scribe. This was Tuesday night. About quarter of 7 when I
saw it. We had just been outdoors and we happened to look
and we saw this bright-red thing in the sky there. It was really
close, because you could see something hanging down from it
that night. I don’t know what it was. When I had gone in the
house to call a neighbor, it had moved across the ficld by then,
Then it slowly disappeared out of sight.”

“Can you recall the shape a little more clearly?”

“Well, it was big and it was round. Like a glowing light.
You'd think it was just like the moon rising out of the sky, but
of course it wasn’t that. It was the size of the moon, or big-
ger, though, when I first saw it.”

“What was your rcaction?”

“It doesn’t scare me any. I'd just like to know what it is.”

“How about the way it moves?”

“Well, it does both. First it goes fast and then it goes slow.
Slows right down. Then it seems to go up and down. It’s the
darndest thing.”

“Now this thing that was hanging down. What was it like?”

“It was silverish. Several things. And you could see them,
because it was glowing in that part of jt.”

“How long were you able to watch it?”

“A good half hour,” Mrs. Jalbert said. “And you sce, this is

_only one time. We see it rcgularly along here. Always seems

to be somewhere necar the power lines. It often comes around
7 o'clock, and by quarter of 8 it’s gone. Monday night we saw
it—" She turned to Jim Burleigh. “Was it Sunday I called you
up about it? Anyway, it goes way up in the sky finally, and it
gets smaller and smaller as it goes up, and gets more orange.
And a lot of times, this airplane comes out and chases it.”

I turned my attention to Joseph Jalbert, the 16-year-old.

“When we saw it the first time,” he said, “it was even with
the power line. Right beside it.”

“That low?” I asked. I was fascinated because for the second

. time in as many days I had run into a cluster of people who re-

ported secing the objects regularly. Thesc people had no con-
nection with Mrs. Pearce’s group and were not even aware of
the others’ existence.

“All of a sudden,” Mrs. Jalbert added, “it'll disappear. Then,
just as sudden, itll come back. Then little red lights will
sometimes come on top of it, and one on the bottom. Off
and on.” .

“Now you say it seems to stay pretty close to these power
lines?” i

“Yup,” said Mrs. Jalbert. “It scems to stay over these lines
most of the time it's been down through here. It's always over
those wires.”

hat evening Kimball joined me and we went to see Fre-
mont's Chief of Police Bolduc and his numerous family who
lived in a rambling old farmhouse. Kimball and I were ad-
mitted by the chief into the sprawling country kitchen, where
an assortment of children and adults were in varied stages of
finishing up dinner. Mrs. Phyllis Bolduc, plump and cheerful
in spite of the confusion, was as cordial as her husband.
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At the head of the large kitchen table was Meredith Bolduc,
the 22-ycar-old daughter-in-law of the chief. Jesse Bolduc,
married to Mercdith, leaned back against the wall in a wooden
chair underneath a rack packed with hunting guns, while chil-
dren and grandchildren of assorted ages made occasional ex-
cursions in and out of the room off the kitchen which housed
the television set. The scene created the impression of a Yankee
version of a Bruegel painting of friendly family confusion.

I told the group that the chief had suggested earlier in the
day that they might be able to give me some information on
Unidentified Flying Objects.

Meredith, an attractive young housewife with short black hair,
spoke first. “Go no further,” she said. “I tell you that the ex-
perience I had is enough to make your hair curl.”

“Tell me about it,” I said, slinging the battery recorder oft
my shoulder and turning it on.

“Oh, dear,” she said. “Am I going down in history?”

“Doesn’t make you nervous, does it?” ’

“Not really. Maybe a little.”

“Just relax and forget about it.”

“It’s these men of mine here who really make -me nervous,”
she said, referring to her father-in-law and husband. “But any-
way, I know exactly what I saw and I'm going to tell you about
{)t, no matter how much they kid me. Actually, they know

etter.”

“You're darn right they do,” said Mrs. Bolduc. “They know
this is no joke.”

“Anyway,” Meredith Bolduc continued, “this thing was com-
ing up the power lines toward the road, this was going from
Fremont toward Kingston, at the power lines right down near
the town line. It was coming and it didn't stop. I just kept on
going on to Kingston, to my folks. And when you sce one of
these things, you don't forget them. This was last week, just a few
days ago. But I saw it much closer two weeks ago Wednesday,
that would make it—that would make it October sixth. This 13
the closest it ever camc to me.”

“Where were you at the time?” 1 asked.

“On the Raymond road. Driving.”

“Did you stop?”’ :

“No. I didn’t know whether to goose the car or turn around
and go home.”

“It was close?”

“Yes. Came right down toward the car.”

“What was your reaction?”

“Scared! Scared to death. In fact, a couple of minutes after
that, I saw a light shining over my shoulder and I turned around
and jumped a foot—but it was only the moonl

“This was the only night I was really afraid of it,” she con-
tinued. “The other nights it was fascinating, it was way off in
the distance. What good is it going to do to reach for a gun or
to goose your car and make it go faster?”

“About how high up was it when you saw it that close?”

“I'd say a couple of treetops high. You just had to look up
a little, right in front of the windshield, and there it was.”

“Could you make out any detail?”

“Well, it was bright, and white, with sort of fluorescent
red around the rim. Like a big light bulb, the way the white
part of it shone. It might have been more whitish-ycllow, the
main part of the thing was.” ‘

“What about the shape?”

““It wasn't ‘flat, but it wasn’t round either. Not oval like
an egg, but it was oval—not quite as oval as an egg. You could
tell it wasn’t round, but it wasn’t square and it wasn’t flat.
It was a funny shape.” ] .

“Where was the red?” I asked. I was continuing to ask the
same question more than once, as a double check on-accuracy.

“On the outside of it. Around the rim. And I'll tell cf'ou
this much—I don’t particularly care about sceing it that close
anymore.”

The men chuckled. Meredith reacted quickly.

“By.God, you guys laughl” she said. “But wait until you see
it up close! And T'll also say this: I absolutely refuse to drive
alone at night anymore.” :

Kimball and I were silent on the first part of the drive back
to Exeter. Finally I spoke.

“Now what do you think?” I asked.

Kimball just shook his head.

“I certainly never expected to run into so many reports, two
days in a row,” said Kimball. )

“All these things that keep repeating themselves,” I said.
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“Like where do the cars always seem to congregatc?”

“By the power lines,” said Kimball. “Both Fremont and
Exeter.”

“How many people have had the damn things come right at
their cars?” :

“Let’s see,” said Kimball. He was driving slowly because the
fog was still rather thick. “There's the woman that Bertrand re-
ported on the 101 bypass. There's Mrs. Pearce, down on the
Exeter-Hampton line. There’s the two young fellows the Hamp-
ton police took to the Coast Guard station. Muscarello, he wasn’t
in a car, but he had to dive down on the road to get away from
it. Actually, it came right at Bertrand, too, wouldn't you say?
When he was out on the field with the kid?” T

" “Well,” I said, “he started to pull his gun on it.”

“That’s close enough,” said Kimball.

Before leaving Exeter, I made a point of visiting Norman
Muscarello’s mother. She is Muscarello’s mother from.a pre.
vious marriage and her name now is Mrs. Dolores Gazda. She
lived in a modest but spotless apartment on Front Street in
Exeter, about a mile out from the center of town. An out-
door wooden stairway with a small landing on the top led to
the door, and she sat me at the kitchen table for a cup of coffce.
She was young-looking and trim, barely old cnough, I thought,
to have an 18-year-old son.

“Do you want me to tell you something interesting?” she said
as she poured the coffce. “When this whole thing started, I
told my son I really couldn’t believe him. He had been out all
night, and he came walking into the house at about 4 in the
morning. I was really concerned and very upset. You see, he’d
sold his car because he was going into the Navy in a few weeks,
so he hitchhiked all the way to Amesbury to see this friend,

~ and that's how the whole thing started. Well, of course, I could

hardly believe this fantastic story, but when the two police offi-
cers told me what they went through, I knew that all three of
them couldn’t be pulling my leg.

“Now my son says it was as big as a house, and that’s about
the description of it when some friends of mine saw it over the
hospital. And then one night I went down with these friends
on Route 88. I hadn’t had ‘any luck on several nights when I
went with Norman. But this night, we weren’t there more than
10 minutes when all of a sudden this thing, you couldn’t see
what it was shaped like, came out from behind some trees, like
if it was just parked dnd rose. Now I describe it as being beau-
tiful. It went right along the top of the trees, oh, several hundred
yards away. It was hard to tell the distance. It was huge, it
looked awful big even from that far away. What it looked like
to me, there were lights on the bottom going around it like
pinwheels. Red ones. And it was very bright and it was beau-
tiful. Since then, I've seen it right over the house here. And the
other night, the whole neighborhood was shook up. I could
see it right here from the landing. And I went and told all
the neighbors and they all saw it with me. It was very low, and

.spinning like always, with these red lights. So a few minutes

later, an airplane came over and made a circle around it. And
darned if that thing didn’t just turn around and take off like
a bullet.”

It was nearly 2 in the afternoon on October 23 when ]
checked out of the Inn and began driving toward my home in

-Connecticut. I had to admit my head was spinning. For nearly

four days I had been talking to everyday people who were dis-
cussing in infinite detail what might become the most important
news story in history. But why hadn’t it broken? What was
holding it back? ’ )

1 had talked with and interviewed, either singly or in groups,
nearly 60 people. I had nearly 20 hours of tape recordings.

Driving along the broad, straight superhighway toward Bos-
ton, I tried to summarize in my own mind just what specific

~ conclusions could be drawn from these long and involved days

in and around Exeter. What had I been able to gather that was
irrefutable evidence?

First, it was uncontestably true that Unidentified Flying Ob-
jects had been reported and verified in many’ cases by more
than one reputable person at regular intervals over a wide area

~ of southern New Hampshire.
Second, it was uncontestably true that the reports were com-’

ing in very frequently.

Third, it was uncontestably true that many reports indicated
the objects sighted over, near and along high-power electrical
transmission lines, although sightings were not confined to such

locations. ‘
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Fourth, it was uncontestably true—to Kimball and me, at
least—that we had seen an object that could not be identified
as any known aircraft in existence.

Fifth, it was uncontestably true that some people were in ac-

tual shock or hysteria as a result of extremely low-level en-
counters with these objects.

The tape recorder was beside me in the front seat of the car
as I circumvented Boston on Route 128 and continued along the
Massachusetts Turnpike. I picked up the microphone and began
dictating 2 memo to my agent and editors inan attempt to give
them a brief picture of the progress of the research to date. I in-
dicated that I could not understand why some kind of major
newsbreak should not be forthcoming on this subject in the light
of the material I had gathered. _

“I say this after several days of intensive research in Exeter,
in which I interviewed nearly 60 people and tape-recorded hours
of testimony,” the memo began. Then it continued:.

The people who have given this testimony have been checked
out as far as character and reliability are concerned. For the
most part I would say that their judgment and capabilities
range from average to better than average.

The testimony adds up to this:

There is overwhelming evidence that UFO’s or “flying saucers”
do exist. . '

They seem to exist in uncountable numbers, '

They move at incredible speeds and in aerodynamically im-
possible patterns. '

They are reported, checked and verified almost continuously.

They hover for considerable time, often at less than tree- -

top level. .

At low altitude, they sometimes assume a domelike shape with
an inner red or white glow. A pattern of red pulsating lights
is frequently observed. In others a red whirling pattern is re-
ported around the edge. . A :

They are usually absolutely silent, although in some cases a
high-frequency hum is heard.

They move almost directly overhead of cars and people, at
times causing fright and panic. .

At least four women, living in widely separate areas, are
afraid to go out alone at night and they refuse to do so.

At least four people report extremely large objects, 60 to 80
feet in diameter, rising up silently from behind trees.

The low altitude movement has been reported to consist of a
yawing, kitelike motion, wobbling in the air and moving slowly
bact}g and forth, sometimes with a fluttering pattern, like a
leaf.

At times, it is reported to throw a brilliant red light glow
which paints the side of white houses a brilliant red. It can
light up a wide area on the ground around it. ,

At high altitudes, in some cases, it seems to assume a shape
of a small disk, in the relationship of a pinhead (star) to a
tennis ball (UFO).

Reliable, but off-the-record information from the Pease Air
Force Base in Portsmouth indicates frequent radar blips and
fighters are constantly scrambled to pursue these objects, This
information is not official, but it comes from a reliable source.
. The objects are often reported in the vicinity of high-power
transmission lines: Some of these locations have been crowded
with cars many nights, with group sightin%s sometimes reported.

No one has ever been harmed physically by any of these ob-
jects, although psychological trauma has been evident.

The area covered by the research extends from Hampton,
New Hampshire, on the coast some 20 miles west to Derry, New
Hampshire, near Manchester. .

In most interviews, I was able to determine the reasonable
capicity of the respondent to differentiate between a helicop-
ter, balloon, jet, prop plane, planets or stars. Some sightings
have been described in daylight.

n October 27, I drove from Pittsburgh north some 30 °
miles to Beaver, Pennsylvania, in'a rented car to investigate a .

dramatic UFO photograph NICAP had sent me. The Beaver
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County Times, an extremcly able newspaper covering a large
population in the Pittsburgh arca, had covered the picture
and story in depth, I had learned, and I planned to talk to
their reporter first. before interviewing the youthful photo-
grapher directly.

One especially interesting thing had shown up in the picture:
under the upside-down luminous dinner-plate shape was a
whirling halus, a misty cloud extending bencath it like a
ghostly tail of a kite, which had not been visible to the naked
eye-but which had shown up on the photographic negative
clearly. Since film will pick up some invisible infrared and
utraviolet light, this might provide a clue to the power source
of the objects.

I found Tom Schley, a reporter for the Beaver County Times

. .who had covered the story, at his desk in the large, modern
. building of the paper.

He had plunged into the subject cold, and was as mystified as
I. He was convinced that the 17-year-old James Lucci, who had
taken the picture, was sound and able, an amateur photogra%)her
who often took pictures of the stars and moon as part of his
hobby. His father was a professional photographer for the Air
National Guard, and both the family and the boy were highly
rcgarded in the community. At the time of the observation
and the taking of the picture, James Lucci was with his brother.
A third witness, Michael Grove, saw the UFO from his home
across the road, James was making time exposures of the moon
in the driveway of his home in Brighton Township, Beaver

_County, at about 11:30 p.m. A round, thick object, glowing

brighter. than the moon, came into the field of the camera
from over a high, steep hill behind his house. Realizing the
camera must have caught it. James closed the shutter quickly,
wound the film down for another shot. Beforc he could get
a third shot, the object climbed rapidly out of sight.

‘The entirc Lucci family was afraid, as many other people
were, of ridicule and publicity, but {riends persuaded James to
bring the picturc to the Beaver County Times, where three
photographers superimposed negatives and made other tests
which showed the UFO had slowly moved dloser, left to right,
as described by the witnesses. After a full evaluation, they
labeled the photograph genuine. The boy's character was
vouched for by the chicf of police, Brighton Township, the
high school principal, and Beaver County police.

With reporter Schley's help, I was able to catch two of the
photographers on the newspaper who had made the examina-
tion of the Lucci negatives, Harry Frye and Birdie Shunk. We
joined them in the cafeteria.

“How do you go about checking out the negatives?” I asked.

“The only way,” said Frye, “is to make completely surc that
there's no double exposure involved, or anything like that. If
the negative is faked by a double exposure you have overlap-
ping images. Now I studied the negatives for considerable time
and I don't think they could possibly have been double-ex-
posed. Everybody else in the department agreed on this.”

“It wasn't a lens-reflection freak in the development, cither,”
Shunk added. “We examined the negatives thoroughly for that
possibility. o

“After we all had studied them, we couldn’t help but come to
the conclusion that the image was a definite picture. There was
no other way it could have been done.”

“How did you go about matching up the two negatives?” I
asked. ‘

“Well,” said Frye, “we put the two negatives, two separate
exposures, we put them together and lined up the trees, the

. horizon line, the moon, and other things that were in both nega-

tives. And you could see where the object had moved across the
film. From my judgment, the object had moved from a position
closer to the camera to a position a little farther away and
across.”

“And that.would have been difficult to fake?”

“It would be, yes,” said Shunk. “I would be difficult to fake
it in another way—to put something up there and photograph
it, and still get the things that are seen in the background.
Just about impossible. I'd say. You also noticed that tail of
mist’ coming down from the object.”

“That wasn’t scen by the naked eye,” I said. “What sort of
thing does 2 film pick up that the cye doesn’t? Infrared? Ultra-
violet?”

“Ultraviolet will appear on a film and not to the eye,” said
Frye. “It would.tend to produce a white image.”

" “Then is. there a possibility that these rays coming down
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[rom the object could be ultraviolet?” .

“Well,” said Frye, “this is something 1 couldn’t answer. It
could be, and it could be also something else. There is a lot
of light outside of the visible spectrum that you can photo-
grap 'l'

“How about infrared?” I asked.

“That will also photograph on a plate to a certain extent,
especially with certain film.” ‘ . ,

“We discussed ways that the picture could have been faked,”
said Shunk, “and we couldn’t come up with a logical way you
could do it.” ' ' T :

“In other words,” said Frye, “if somebody asked us to go out
and duplicate this picture, we would find it impossible.”

I thanked Schley and the photographers for their informa-
tion and then left to see James Lucci and his brother John to
reenact the way the"f)hotograph was taken, and to see what other
information I could pick up in their neighborhood.

James Lucci was quiet, soft-spoken and shy. His brother
John was 20, three years older. He was a student at Geneva
College nearby. Both were articulate and friendly. The Lucci
house nestled at the bottom of a steep hill, so typical of western
Pennsylvania. I got both boys to take me to the exact spot
where their camera had been set. It was in the gravel driveway,
directly beside the house, and we stood there, looking up at
an angle toward the hill. The trees stood out sharply in sil-
houette against the sky, the same tree line which had showed
up in the pictures.

I asked James Lucci to point out the exact spot where the
object was when the picture was taken.

He pointed to the high ridge, at about a 45-degrece angle
from where we were standing.

I looked up, following the direction of his finger, and caught
my breath.

For immediately below the part of the sky he indicated were
the sweeping wires of a high-power transmission line, extend-
ing from a tower on top of the ridge and stringing across the
valley to the next hill. It was Exeter all over again, this time
with a striking photograph to go with it.

I returned to Exeter on October 31. On the following morn-
ing, 1 followed up half-a-dozen leads by phone; they were in-
teresting mainly because they indicated the high frequency of
sightings’in the area.

At noon, I stopped by the power plant on Drinkwater Road
in Exeter and spoke to a couple of the engineers for the Exeter
and Hampton Llectric Company. They had heard many stories
about UFO's but had not been aware that so many people were
reporting them above or near power lincs. They were intrigued
with the idea, though, and planned to investigate it. They
said that high-voltage power lines do create an electromag-
netic field, and that if the objects had any kind of affinity for
clectromagnetic fields, the power lines would be an obvious
attraction. There had been no unusual voltage losses reported
on the meters, but, they added, it would be possible for an ob-
ject to enter an’ electromagnetic field without affecting the
voltage.

In midafternoon, I went to Officer Bertrand’s house to get
his reaction to a story the Pentagon had released to the local
papers about his and Officer Hunt’s sighting. It was such a
garbled distortion of facts that I could not understand how the
Pentagon could release it. Later, an officer at the Pease Air
Force Base told me he was “shocked at the Pentagon's stupidity.”

With a Washington, D.C., dateline of October 27, 1965, the
news story read:

I The Pentagon believes that, after intensive investigation,
it has come up with a natural explanation of the UFO sightings
in Exeter, New Hampshire, on September 3.

A spokesman said the several reports stemmed from “mul-
tiple objects in the area,” by which they mean a high-altitude
Strategic Air Command exercise out of Westover, Mass., was
going on at the time in the areca. ’

A second important factor was what is called a “weather in-
;'crsion" wherein a layer of cold air is trapped between warm
ayers. ' :

The Pentagon spokesman said this natural phenomenon
causes stars and planets to dance and twinkle.

The spokesman said, “We believe what the people saw that
night was stars and planets in unusual formations.” l
I was confident that no.one, including the Air Force, had in-
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vestigated this sighting in greater detail than I had. What's
more, the release was a direct slam at both Bertrand and Hunt
and their capacity to distinguish between “stars and planets”
and an enormous, silent craft which had brought Bertrand al-
most to the point of pulling his gun. I had spent part of two
nights patrolling with Bertrand and Hunt, and had come to
respect them and their jobs. For the Pentagon to ascribe their
sighting to either “high-altitude exercises” or “stars and planets
in unusual formations” was patently absurd. If anything, it
could only lead eventually to the embarrassment of the Penta-
on.

. Bertrand was very calm about it. “If they want to turn out
ridiculous statements like that,” he said, “that’s their business.
I know what I saw. They don’t. And of course I can’t accept
what they say there. I know for sure it had nothing to do with
the weather. I know for sure this was a craft, and it was not any
plane in existence. I know for sure it was not more than a hun-
dred feet off the ground. I'm not saying it’s something from
outer space. I'm saying I don’t know what it was, and from this
newspaper story they've released, I know damn well they don't
either. I know 1t didn’t have any wings, and I know it wasn't a
helicopter. Or no balloon, or anything of that sort. It's abso-
lutely stupid of them to release something like that.”

rather extensive random survey in the Exeter area
brought many more stories to light. Most impressive were the
off-the-record accounts by the military:

—A Coastguardsman from New Hampshire told me that al-
though his station would never release any official information,
he was on watch one night when an enormous reddish-orange
disk moved slowly up the beach, not more than 15 feet above
it. He confessed that he was so shocked by the sight that he went
into the radio shack and closed the door. )

—From an Air Force pilot I learned that pilots had been or-
dered to shoot at any UFO they came across in an effort to bring
them down. But he said that they were apparently invulnerable
and that they were capable of outmaneuvering any aircraft the
Air Force had. He said that he simply ignored the orders to fire
on such objects, since he felt personally it would be better not
to alienate them.

—A military radar operator reported that a UFO came di-
rectly toward the base, was clocked both visually and on the
radarscope. It seemed as if it were brazenly going to land at the
base. But instead of landing, it hovered over the base. The offi-
cer of the day was notified, and he put a telescope on the object.
As he watched, it suddenly accelerated to a speed of over 800
miles an hour, as clocked on the radarscope. It disappeared
within a minute.

—A brilliant orange object landed directly off the edge of one
of the runways at the Pease Air Force Base, illuminating a wide
area where many of the Air Force officers and their families
lived, according to a member of a high-ranking officer’s family.
Some wives reported that the light was so bright that they
thought it was morning; one actually started to get dressed until
she realized it was still in the middle of the night. Phone calls
swamped the switchboard at the air base, and eventually the
base was cut off by the commander from outside communication.
The fire unit of the base was dispatched to the end of the run-
way as the object took off and disappeared at an unclocked
speed.

I)---~I was given several more reports about the constant scram-
bling of jet fighters after the strange object when radar sight-
ings had been made in concert with visual sightings.

—Constant radar reports were being made at the Portsmouth
Navy Base. In one instance, an object hovered over a water
tower at the base before taking off at incredibly fast speed. It
was checked both visually and by radar.

—One highly qualified officer at the Pease Air Force Base told
me that he had been skeptical about UFO'’s before he had been
assigned to the command at Portsmouth. He was no longer

" skeptical at all. At least 15 pilots at the base felt the same way.

—Two additional officers of the air base told me that they
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were shocked and dismayed by the Pentagon report issued about
the Bertrand and Hunt case in Exeter. They said it was so un-
believable in the light of what local authorities knew, that it
could make the Pentagon a laughingstock. They said in no un-
certain terms that the report was severely damaging to the Air
Force.

Although none of the personnel supplying this information
can be identified, for their own protection, these reports are
no less real than any of the other information I put directly on
the tapes. In fact, in view of the position of these people, the
stories reinforced the thesis that UFO’s not only existed, but
were beyond the capacity of the military to deal with them. This
impotence, of course, might be the underlying reason why the
government was carrying out its ostrichlike program of non-
recognition. The public has a naive and childlike faith in the
military, and anything admittedly beyond its control might
shatter this faith forever.

I was not able to talk to Norman Muscarello until several
weeks later, when he came back to Exeter on leave from the
Navy. But the interview with him was strangely anticlimatic.
The recorded tapes of Officer Bertrand, Officer Hunt, his
mother, Officer Toland and others so surrounded the-incident
in detail that Muscarello’s story was simply a total but neces-
sary confirmation of everything which had happened on that
predawn morning of September 3. It coincided almost exactly.
with the description given by officers Bertrand and Hunt. He
demonstrated how he had dropped down on the shoulder of
the road to keep away from the object when it came toward
him. The interview with him completed the cycle of the original
incident at Exeter, which had set into motion such a long and
arduous period of research.

On Monday, November 8, I was in Exeter with two compan-

Jions, an editor and a photographer from a national magazine.

We were there to recheck some of my earlier interviews. We
covered Mrs. Hale, Mrs. Gazda, the entire community in the
area of the Pearce home, the police, Ron Smith, Bessie's Lunch,
the Jalbert place by the power lines in Fremont and Chief
Bolduc and his family in the same neighborhood. In reviewing
their sightings with them, it was interesting to note that the
descriptions remained basically the same as when they had given
them to me a few weeks previously.

At the Bolduc house, Jesse Bol{Iuc had joined the ranks of
the observers since the time I had first talked to him. He con-
fessed that he no longer laughed at his wife, and admitted that
he had to eat his own words.

At the Jalbert home, the entire family reported continued
sightings, and both Joseph Jalbert and his mother recounted
a most interesting observation which had happened since I had
first met them.

Joseph had recently noticed a reddish, cigarshaped object
in the sky, high over the power lines. It hovered there motion-
less for several minutes—exactly how many he did not know
because he was so absorbed with watching it. After a consider-
able length of time, a reddish-orange disk emerged apparently
from inside the object, and began a slow, erratic descent down
toward the power lines. As it reached a point within a quarter
mile of them, it leveled off, then moved over the wires until
it reached a point several hundred feet away. It then descended
slowly until it was only a few feet above the lines. Then a sil-
very, pipelike object came down from the base of the disk and
actually touched the lines, remaining there for a minute or so.

The protrusion then slowly retracted into the body of the
object, and it took off at considerable speed—exactly how fast.
Joseph could not estimate—and then rejoined the reddish-cigar-
shaped object and disappeared inside it.

Joseph'’s mother had not seen this but had observed a similar
occurrence some 20 miles away, near Manchester. The only
difference in their descriptions was that the protrusion extend-
ing down from the object she observed was reddish rather than
silver colored. Joseph was very reluctant to bring this sighting
up. His younger brother had prodded him into telling about it;~
and when we asked him why he was so hesitant, he told us that
the whole thing looked too scary and he didn’t like to talk about
it. "It's the first time I've ever seen one of these things touch
anything,” he said, “and it happened so near to me that I really
tried to put it out of my mind."

By Tuesday, November 9, I was ready to close out the re-
search and begin the long job of trying to correlate all the tapes
and notes. Several more reports of sightings were brought to
our attention that morning, but most proved to be repetitive,
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and I could see no reason for extensive interviews. I met my
companions back at the motor inn in Hampton for dinner. It
was a cold, sparkling clear night, with a brilliant hunter’s moon,
and the huge fireplace in the dining room was a welcome sight.
We met at about 5:30, and as I was leaving my room, I noticed
that the electric lights flickered, faltered for a few scconds, and
then came on brightly again. I thought nothing of it, went on
into the dining room. My friends were waiting for me in a
-booth. We ordered Martinis and prepared to relax.

As the waitress brought the drinks, she had a broad smile on
her face. She had been helpful in the past in supplying the
names of pcople she had heard about who had sighted objects,

*and was interested in the story as it devcloped.

I suppose this is all your fault,” she said, putting the Mar-
tinis down on the table.

“What is all-our fault?” I asked.

. “You mean you haven't heard about it?” she said.

“Heard about what?”

“The blackout. The power failure. All over the east.”

“You're kidding,” I said. The lights in Hampton were blazing
brightly. I did recall, though, the flicker as I had left my room.

_“It just came in over the radio in the kitchen,” she said. “New
York, Albany, Boston, Providence, all of Massachusctts, are ab-
solutely black. Not a light burning. This is no joke, I mean it.”

This seemed so incredible that we hardly took it seriously. I
got up,went back to the room, and turned on the television set.

- I was startled to sec the ncws staff of NBC-TV broadcasting
in faint candlelight. The picture was fuzzy and barely discern-
. ible. The commentary, of course, confirmed all that the waitress

. had told us, and more. I still found it hard to believe. And, of
course, the first thing which crossed my mind was the long
series of UFO sightings involving the power lines, such as Jo-
seph Jalbert’s report the evening before. I forgot completely
about dinner.

I quickly started pouring through the 203 pages of transcript
of the tape recordings. The words “power lines” or “transmis-
sion lines” appeared on an alarming number of pages. I began
making a notation in the margin of the transcripts wherever a
reference like this was made. There were 73 mentions in various
locations by various people. These included cither the actual
use of the words or references to locations near where the power
lines ran. ‘

I sat glued to the television set, waiting for some word as to
the cause of the unprecedented failure. The news commentators
were as confused as everybody else. No one scemed to have any
idea of the cause and necver in history had there been a power
blackout of such extent. I tried to phone my home in Connecti-
cut and was told by the operator that the only calls she could
put through were those that were a matter of lifc or decath.

The Portsmouth-Exeter area, we learned, was one of the few

pockets of light in the entire Northeast. 1 found small comfort -

in that, because I thought of the millions of people in the large
cities who must certainly be trapped in cold, dark subways or
jammed, stuffy clevators,

< I waited in vain throughout the evening and carly morning
hours for morc news but no announcement came which gave
even a clue to the mystery. I ran through the transcripts again,
still noting the phrases and descriptions referring to the power
lines. Suddenly, the major emphasis of the entire UFO research
—the power lines—was now becoming the focal point of a new
mystery—no less mysterious than the UFO phenomenon I had
been dealing with for weeks.

he blackout-caused by the failure of the Northeast Power
Grid created one of the biggest mysteries in the history of mod-
.ern ‘civilization. Eighty thousand square miles and 36,000,000
people—one-fifth of the nation's population—were suddenly
plunged into incxplicable darkness.

- There was a curious lack of physical damage: The utility

- companies looked for something to repair, but there was noth-
ing. Only a few generators were out of action as a result of the
power failure, not a cause. What's more, the utilities were able
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to restore service with the exact same equipment that was in
usc at the time of the blackout. What happened that night was
not only far from normal; it was mystifying.

If there had been a mechanical flaw, a fire, a breakdown, a
short circuit, a toppling transmission tower, the cause would
have been quickly and easily detected. Mechanically, however,
Eh'ci system as a whole was in perfect repair before and after the
ailure.

At 10 p.m., it was announced that the crux of the difficulty
lay at a remote-controlled substation on the Power Authority’s
transmission lines at Clay, New York, a town 10 miles north of
Syracuse. The high-tension 345,000-voit power lincs stretching
over Clay are part of the authority’s “superhighway” of power
distribution, running into Niagara Falls, cast to Utica and south
to New York City.

Niagara Mohawk repairmen who drove out to Clay found
the substation in apparently perfect order. There were no signs
of mechanical failure, fire or destruction. Another report sent
FBI investigators and state police to the desolate Montezuma
Marshes outside of Syracuse, but they found nothing out of
order there.

Something else happened outside Syracuse, however, which
was noted briefly in the press, and then immediately dropped
without follow-up comment. Weldon Ross, a private pilot and
instructor, was approaching Hancock Field at Syracuse for a
landing. It was at almost the exact moment of the blackout. As
he looked below him, just over the power lines near the Clay
substation, a huge red ball of brilliant intensity appeared. It
was about 100 feet in diameter, Ross told the New York Journal-
American. He calculated that the fireball was at the point where
the New York Power Authority'’s two 345,000-volt power lines
at the Clay substation pass over the New York Central’s tracks
between Lake Oneida and Hancock Field. With Ross was a
student pilot who verified the statement. At precisely the same
moment, Robert C. Walsh, deputy commissioner for the Fed-
eral Aviation Agency in the Syracuse areca, reported that he saw
the same phenomenon just a fcw miles south of Hancock Field.
A total of five persons reported the sighting. Although the Fed-
eral Power Commission immediately said they would investi-
gate, no further word has been given publicly since.

Pilot Ross's sighting took place at 5:15 p.m., at the moment
when the blackout occurred in the Syracuse arca. At 5:25 p.m.,
a schoolteacher in Holliston, Massachusetts, watched through
binoculars with her husband an intense white object in the sky
moving slowly toward the horizon. At the same time, David
Hague, a 17-year-old from Holliston reported an identical ob-
ject, moving toward the southwest. '

In New York City, simultaneously with the blackout, two
women declared in two separate statements that they sighted
unusual objects in the sky.

In spite of the lengthy report issued by the FCC, the Great’
Blackout has still not been adequately explained. Ostensibly,
backup Relay #Q-29 at the Sir Adam Beck generating station
Queenston, ‘Ontario, was eventually pinpointed as the source
of the massive failure. But further investigation, hardly noted
in the press, showed that nothing in the relay was broken when
it was removed for inspection. In fact, it went back into opera-
tion normally when power was restored. The line it was pro-
tecting was totally undamaged. “Why did everything go ber-
serk?” Life Magazine asks in an article about the blackout.
“Tests on the wayward sensing device have thus far been to no-
avail.” A later statement by Arthur J. Harris, a supervising en-
gineer of the Ontario Hydroelcctric Commission, indicated
that the cause was still a mystery. “Although the blackout has
been traced to the tripping of a circuit breaker at the Sir Adam
Beck No. 2 plant, it is practically impossible to pinpoint the
initial cause.” As late as January 4, 1966, The New York Times
in a follow-up story indicated a series of questions regarding .
the prevention of future blackouts. The new item says: “These

uestions more or less are related to the cause, still not fully un- .

erstood, of last November's-blackout.” The italics are ours. *

The Great Northeast Blackout was a mystery, but not any
more puzzling than what followed on its heels. On November
16, a series of power blackouts hit many parts of Britain. Dozens
of sections of London were darkened, and telephone operators
in Folkestone, on the south coast, worked by’ candleliight.

On November 26, NICAP was advised that power failures in
St. Paul, Minnesota, were reported by the Northern “States
Power Company simultaneous with the appearance of objects
overhead giving off blue and white flashes just oft Highway 61.
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Fifteen minutes later, just north of the original sighting, a resi-
dent on Hogt Avenue reported a “blue-glowing” UFO as all
house lights and appliances in the area went dead. A motorist
also reported that hte-car lights and radio went out.

The power company announced that it was unable to deter-
mine the cause of that blackout. .

By December 2, sections of two states and Mexico were
lunged into darkness after a widespread power failure in the
outhwest. Juarez, Mexico, was hit, as well as El Paso, Texas,

and Las Cruces and Alamogordo, New Mexico. Authorities were
unable to explain the cause of the trouble.

A few days later, on December 4, portions of east Texas were

“knocked out electrically, with 40,000 houses losing dpower. It
was the third major blackout since the Northeast Grid failed.

By December 26, the mystery was growing deeper. The entire
city of Buenos Aires, and towns as far as 50 miles away, were
plunged into darkness by a power failure, with hundreds
trapped in subways beneath Buenos Aires’ streets. The cause
was thought to be a single generator.

On the same date, four major cities of south and central Fin-
land were hit by a loss of electrical power attributed to a single
insulator. '

One news story on January 18, 1966, is particularly interest-
ing because it received little attention in the press aside from
the Portsmouth, New Hampshire, Herald of that date, even
though it was an AP release, with an Andover, Maine, dateline:

| The Telstar communications satellite tracing station was
blacked out by a power failure which hit a 75-mile area in west-
ern Franklin County. :

Electrical power failed at 4:30 p.m. Wednesday and was re-
stored at 11:20 p.m.

A spokesman for the Central Maine Power Co. blamed the

failure on “an apparent equipment failure which somehow cor-
rected itself.”

Noteworthy are two things: 1) The power failure involved a
space satellite, and 2) in this age of science and engineering, the
equipment “somehow corrected itself.” Coupled with the stories
of the numerous other blackouts, it is strange indeed that the
- -engineers could not figure out how it went out~and how the
failure was remedied.

On the following day, an AP story datelined Augusta, Maine,
stated that Chairman Frederick N. Allen of the Public Utility
Commission indicated that there was no negligence by the two
power companies involved. The Central Maine Power Company
said that the blackout was caused by the failure of a big trans-
former in its Rumford substation.

CMP Vice-President Harold F. Schnurle went on to say that
it had not been determined why the transformer failed or why
it restored itself to service nearly seven hours later. ’

The relationship of the Unidentified Flying Objects to the
power failures is entirely circumstantial, of course. Both UFO's
and the Great Blackout still remain unsolved. But stranger yet
is the incapacity of modern science to come up with any kind
of real answer to either question. More baffling still is the atti-
tude of the large bulk of the scientific fraternity in presumably
laughing off a phenomenon testified to by hundreds of techni-
cians, other scientists, airline pilots, military personnel, local
and state police and articulate and reliable citizens.

In the third week in November, a month after the Pentagon
explanation, officers Bertrand and Hunt jointly received an
undated letter from Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, and

signed by Major Hector Quantanilla, Chief of the Project Blue
Book. It read: ‘

I Mr. Eugene Bertrand, Jr.
Mr. David R. Hunt

Exeter Police Department
Exeter, New Hampshire
Gentlemen:

The sighting of various unidentified objects by you and Mr.
Norman Muscarello was investigated by officials from Pease Air
Force Base, New Hampshire, and their report has been for-
warded to our office at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base. This
sighting at Exeter, New Hampshire, on the night of 2 Septem-
ber has been given considerable-publicity through various news
releases and in magazine articles similar to that from the “Sat-
urday Review” of 2 October, 1965. A portion of this article is
attached for your information. This information was released
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by the National Investigations Committee on Aerial Phenom-
ena, a private organization which has no connection with the
government. As a result of these articles, the Air Force has re-
ceived inquiry as to the cause of this report.

Our investigation and evaluation of the sighting indicates
a possible association with an 8th Air Force Operation, “Big

Blast.” In addition to aircraft from this operation, there were -

five B-47 type aircraft flying in the area during this period. Be-
fore a final evaluation of your sighting can be made, it is essen-
tial for us to know if either of you witnessed any aircraft in
the area during this time period either indege’ndemly or in
connection with the objects observed. Since there were many
aircraft in the area, at that time, and there were no reports of
unidentified objects from personnel engaged in this air opera-
tion, we might then assume that the objects observed between
midnight and 2 a.m. might be associated with this military air
operation. If, however, these aircraft were noted by either of
you, then this would tend to eliminate this air operation as a
plausible explanation for the objects observed.

Sincerely,

HEecToR QUINTANILLA, JR., Major, USAF

Chief, Profect Blue Book

1 atch. .
Article “Saturday Review” '

Curiously, the letter was not only undated, but the large
brown envelope in which it was mailed bore no postmark.

The letter referred to the sighting as September 2, when of
course it took place on September 3. It also indicated that the
high-altitude exercises were conducted from midnight until 2
a.m., while the police officers encountered the close-range ob-
ject at approximately 3 a.m. But most ironical was the indica-
tion that the case was still in process of “final evaluation,” while
the Pentagon had already released its own “final evaluation”
over 2 month before the letter arrived.

Officers Bertrand and Hunt replied to the Air Force with

this letter on December 2, 1965:

ECTOR QUINTANILLA, JR., Major, USAF
Chief, Project Blue Book
Wright Patteyson AFB
Dayton, Ohio
Dear Sir:

We were very glad to get your letter during the third week
in November, because as you might imagine we have been the
subject of considerable ridicule since the Pentagon released its
“fina] evaluation” of our sighting of September 3, 1965. In other
words, both Ptl, Hunt and myself saw this object at close range,
checked it out with each other, confirmed and reconfirmed the
fact that this was not any kind of conventional aircraft, that it
was at an altitude of not more than a couple of hundred feet,
and went to considerable trouble to confirm that the weather
was dlear, there was no wind, no chance of weather inversion,
and that what we were seeing was no illusion or military or ci-
vilian craft. We entered this in 2 complete official police report
as a supplement to the blotter of the morning of September 3
(not September 2, as your letter indicates). Since our job de-
?ends on accuracy and an ability to tell the difference between

act and fiction, we were naturally disturbed by the Pentagon
report which attributed the sighting to “multiple high altitude
objects” in the area and “weather inversion.” What is a little
difficult to understand is the fact that your letter (undated) ar-
rived considerably after the Pentagon release. Since your letter
says that you are still in the process of making final evaluation,
it seems that there is an inconsistency here. Ordinarily, this
wouldn’t be too important except for the fact that in a situation
like this we are naturally very reluctant to be considered irre-
sponsible in our official report to the police station. ‘

Since one of us (Ptl. Bertrand) was in the Air Force for four
years engaged in refueling operations with all kinds of military

aircraft, it was impossible to mistake what wé saw for any kind

of military operation, regardless of altitude. It was also defi-
nitely not a helicopter or balloon. Immediately after the object

disappeared, we did see what probably was a B-47 at high alti-

tude, but it bore no relation at all to the object we saw.
Another fact is that the time of our observation was nearly
an hour after 2 a.m., which would eliminate the 8th Air Force
operation Big Blast, since as you say this took place between
midnight and 2 a.m. Norman Muscarello, who first reported
this object before we went to the site, saw it somewhere in the
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vicinity of 2 a.m., but ncarly an hour had passed before he got
into the police station, and we went out to the location with
him.

We would both appreciate it very much if you would help
us eliminate the possible conclusion that some people have
made in that we might have a) made up the story, or b) were
incompetent observers. Anything you could do along this line
would be very much appreciated, and I'm sure you can under-
stand the position we're in.

We appreciate the problems the Air Force must have with a
lot of irresponsible reports on this subject, and don't want to

. cause you any unnccessary trouble. On the other hand, we think
you probably understand our position.

Thanks very much for your interest.

Sincerely,

PrL. EUGENE BERTRANI
PtL. DAviD HUNT

Nearly a full month went by, but the officers received no reply
whatever from Wright-Patterson. Finally, on December 28, the
officers wrote again:

’Hmon QUINTANILLA, JR., Major, USAF
" §Wright Patterson AFD

Dayton, Ohio
Dear Sir: :

Since we have not heard from you since our letter to you of
December 2, we are writing this to request some kind of an-
swer, since we arc still upset about what happened after the
Pentagon releascd its news saying that we have just scen stars
or planets, or high altitude air exercises.

As we mentioned in our letter to you, it could not have been
the operation “Big Blast” you mention, since the time of our
sighting was nearly an hour after that exercise, and it may not
even have been the same date, since you refer to our sighting
as September 2. Our sighting was on September 3. In addition,
as we mentioned, we arc both familiar with all the B-47s and
B-52's and helicopters and jet fighters which arc going over this
place all the time. On top of that Ptl. Bertrand had four years
of refucling experience in the Air TForce, and knows regular
aircraft of all kinds. It is important to remember that this craft
we saw was not more than 100 fect in the air, and it was abso-
lutely silent, with no rush of air from jets or chopper blades
whatever, and it did not have any wings or tail. It lit up the
entire field, and two ncarby houses turned completely red. It
stopped, hovered and turned on a dime.

hat bothers us most is that many peoplc arc thinking that
we were cither lying or not intclligent cnough to tell the dif-
ference between what we saw and something ordinary. Three
other people saw this same thing on September 3, and two of
them appeared to be in shock from it. This was absolutely not
a case ofp mistaken identity.

We both feel that it’s very important for our jobs and our
reputations to get some kind of letter from you to say that the
_ story put out by the Pentagon was not true; it could not possi-

.bly be, because we were the people who saw this; not the Penta-
gon.
Can you please let us hcar from you as soon as possible.
Sincerely,

PrL. EUGENE BERTRAN
PtL. DAviD HuNT
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information on the case:

| —In his signed statement to the Air Force investigators, Pa-

trolman Bertrand said: “At one time [the lightsJ came so close,
I fell on the ground and started to draw my gun.” He also noted
that the lights were always in line at about a 60-degree angle,
and when the object moved. the lower lights were always for-
ward of the others.

—In the official Air Force report of the investigation by the
Administrative Services Officer of the Pease Air Force Base to
Wright-Patterson, dated September 15, 1965, the following in-

| formation was included: Identifying Information on Observers
§ (1) Civilian. Norman Muscarcllo, Age, 18. 20514 Front Street,
Exeter, N. H. Unemployed' (will join Navy on 18 Sept. 'G5)
Appears to be reliable. (2) Civilian. Eugene F. Bertrand, Jr.
Age, 30. Exeter Police Department. Patrolman. Reliable. (3)
Civilian. David R. Hunt. Age, 28. Excter Police Department,

© AUGUST 1968

)

Office of the Sécretary

In the official Air Force files at Wright-Patterson field is other

Patrolman. Reliable. .

—In the same official report, a statement by Major David H.
Griffin, Base Disaster Control Officer, Command pilot. “A¢t this
time have been unable to arrive at a probable cause of this
sighting. The three observers seem to be stable, reliable persons,
especially the two patrolmen. 1 viewed the arca of the sighting
and found nothing in the arca that could be the probable cause.
Pease ATB had 5 B-47 aircraft flying in the area during this

period but do not believe they had any connection with the
sighting.” (Our italics)

The difference between this report of the actual investigating
officer at Pease AFB, and the one officially released by the Pen-
tagon to the local press on October 27, is marked and startling.

When 1 left Exeter, the sightings were still continuing, seem-
ingly without letup. In the early months of 1966, while Hunt
and Bertrand were still waiting to hear from the Pentagon, as
many as two or three reports a week were being received by
police in the vicinity of the town, one of which induced a dyed-
in-thée-wool skeptic to run to- the police station with.a full
account of a UFO viewed by at least seven people.

On February 9, 1966, the Pentagon finally wrote a letter of
apology to Patrolmen Bertrand and Hunt:

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE
Washington
) FEBRUARY 9, 1966
Gentlemen: e

Based on additional information you submitted 1o our UFO
investigation office at Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio;
we have been unable to identify the object you observed on
September 3, 1966. . . . :

In 19 years of investigating over 10,000 reports of unidenti-
fied flying objects, the evidence has proved almost conclusively .
that reported acrial phenomena have been objects either cre-
ated or set aloft by man, gencrated by atmospheric conditions,
or caused by celestial bodies or the residue of meteoric activity,

Thank you for reporting your observation to the Air Force
and for your subsequent cooperation regarding the report. I
regret any inconvenience you may have suffered as a result.
Sincerely,

/s/ Jonn P. SPAULDING

Lt. Col., USAF

Chief, Civil Branch
Community Relations Division
Office of Information.

—

MR. EUGENE BERTRAND, JR.
MR. Davip R. Hunt
Exeter Police Department
Exeter, New Hampshire.

he most logical, but still unprovable, explanation is that

the Unidentified Flying Objects are intciﬁlanetary spaceships
under intelligent control. NICAP and others have been sup-
porting this hypothesis for years. Its credibility, however, has
suffered by the support of the crackpot fringe. In spite of this, -
the hypothesis remains stronger than any other theory advanced.

The biggest remaining question is the apparent attitude of
government and scientific authorities -who have shown no in-
dication of setting up a full-scale project either to prove or dis-
prove the existence of UFO's. Or if they have, the ostensible
paternalistic protection of the public is not consistent with
democratic principles. The reaction of those who have experi-
enced close encounters with UFO's in the Exeter area has been
one of shock, followed by intense curiosity rather than sustained
panic. An unprepared public is far more likely to panic than an
informed one. Trutii isn’t likely to remain hidden forever.

In the light of recent developments, the situation has reached
a point where it appears to be the duty and responsibility of
the government either to reveal what it knows, or to order a
scientific investigation on a major scale and report the findings
immediately to the public at large. —John G. Fuller
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“The Thing At Exeter.
It was silent. No hum. Nothing. Just moving through the
air silently. And the light, so bright it Tighted up the
whole field."
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EXETER REVISITED!

This past Sept. 3rd, 1990, marked the 25th anniversary of the
UFO Incident at Exeter. The New Hampshire case was made
prominent in the annals of UFO history, by John Fuller, through
his book, Incident At Exeter (G.P. Putnam's Sons, NY. 1966).

Twenty-five years ago, (3 SPT.'6S5S) at approximately 2.24 a.m., a
shocked Norman Muscarello entered the Exeter police station. He
reported to Patrolman Reginald (Scratch) Toland, working the
desk, that he was hitchhiking north on route #150, from
Amesbury, MA., to his home in Exeter. It was 2 a.m., the
traffic was sparse, when he was passing an open field near
Kensington, NH., a huge object came out of the sky and moved
directly toward him. Muscarello called it "The Thing" and
described it as being 80' - 90' in diameter and had brilliant
pulsating red lights outlining an apparent rim. It-wobbled and
vyawed as it maneuvered toward him, making no noise whatsoever.
He felt he needed to protect himself and dived into the shallow
shoulder of the road.

He watched the object back off and drift over a nearby house.
When it backed off further he then ran to one of the houses and
began banging on the door, the occupants of the house did not
answer thinking it may be a drunk. At that moment he ran
frantically to the road and waved down a car which drove him to
the Exeter police station.

Toland was impressed with Muscarello's sincerety and called
cruiser #21, driven by Patrolman Eugene Bexrtrand, to the
station. Upon his arrival Bexrtrand, an Air Force veteran with
experience in air to air refueling on KC-97 Tankers, remarked
that he had just discovered a distraught woman parked on a
by-pass on Rt. #101. The woman told him of a huge, silent
airborne object, with flashing red lights had trailed her from
the town of Epping, nine miles away, and came within a few feet
of her car.

Toland directed Bertrand to go back to the field where
Muscarello was frightened. Berxrtrand was still trying to calm
him. He parked his cruiser and they both walked down the
sloping field, Bertrand was probing the trees in the distance
with his flashlight. The night was clear, moonless, and warm.
There was no wind, and the stars were brilliant. They reached
the fence of the corrall and still saw nothing, and Bertrand
tried to convince Muscarellec that he must of seen a helicopter.
Muscarello insisted he was familiar with all kinds of
conventional aircraft and would have recognized a helicopter.

Then, as Bertrand turned his back to the corxal to shine his
light toward the tree line north of them, the horses at the
Dining farm began kicking and whinning. Dogs in the nearby
houses began howling. Muscarello screamed, "I see it! I see

itt"

Bertrand turned, looked toward the trees beyond the corral.
Rising up slowly from behind two tall pines was a brilliant
roundish object. It made no sound. It moved toward them like a
leaf fluttering from a tree, wobbling and yawing as it did so.
The entire area was bathed in brilliant red light. The white
sides of Carl Dining's house turned blood red. Bertrand reached
for his .38, then thought better of it and shoved the gun back
in its holster. Afraid of infrared rays he grabbed Muscarello
and yanked him towards his criuser.

Bertrand called Toland at the Exeter station. "My God," he
shouted, "I see the damn thing myself!"

Under the half-protection of the cruiser roof, Bertrand and
Muscarello watched the object hover. It was about 100 feet
above them, about a football-fields distance away. The
pulsating red lights seemed to dim from left to right, in a
5-4-3-2-1-, then 1-2-3-4-5 pattern, taking about two seconds for

each cycle. -3



After several minutes, the object began moving slowly eastward,
toward Hampton. Its movement was erratic, defying all
conventional aerodynamic patterns. "It darted,”" says Bertrand.
"It could turn on a dime. Then it would slow down."

At that point, Patrolman David Hunt, 26, pulled up in another
cruiser. "I could see the fluttering movement," Hunt says. "It
was going left to right, between the tops of two big trees. I
could see those pulsating lights. I could hear those horses
kicking out in the barn there. Those dogs were really howling.
Then it started moving, slow like, across the tops of the trees,
just above the trees. It was rocking when it did this. A
creepy type of look. Airplanes don't do this. After it moved
out of sight, toward Hampton, toward the ocean, we waited
awhile. A B-47 came over. You could tell the difference.
There was no comparison."

David Hunt filed a written report on it, but he will no longer
discuss the case.

Moments after the object slid over the trees and out of sight,
Toland took a call from an Exeter night operator. "She was all
exited", says Toland. "Some man just called her, and she traced
the call to one of them outside booths in Hampton, and he was so
hysterical he could hardly talk straight. He told her that a
flying saucer came right at him, but before he could finish, he
was cut off."

The Air Force says that an operation known as "Big Blast" was
being conducted bt the 8th Air Force in New England that night
by B-47 aircraft. It says the "general description of flashing
lights is consistent with previous reports of aircraft,
refueling operations, or low level photographic missions." But
it concedes that the operation had been ended and none of the
"Big Blast" aircraft were in the area after 1:35 a.m.

Bertrand says, "We saw something out in that field. It was
silent. No hum. Nothing. Just moving through the air silently.
And the light, so bright it lighted up the field. There was
something there. Dave Hunt and the kid saw it. We weren't all
seeing something that wasn't there." (sources: LOOK - 22 Feb.
1966 & 1967). ’

In observance of the 25th anniversary, of the Incident At
Exeter, the Exeter Public Library extended invitations to the
general public and held a week long celebration of activities
including a presentation on the Exeter case. On September 11th,
Reginald "Scratch" Toland, Eugene Bertrand, and NH. UFO
researcher Pete Geremia treated a 'standing room only' slide
presentation, on the events that occured on that memorable day.
The library staff turned away approximately two hundred people
after the two conference rooms were packed.

Regrettably, a couple of days when he was due to arrive in
Exeter, for the conference, John Fuller suffered a stroke and
was hospitalized in CT.

With the absence of Fuller, Geremia picked up the reins and

with never-before-released material gave those in attendance a
recreation of the 'Incidents' on that day - 25 years ago. Some
of this material was of aerial photography shots from where the
object rose. These photos showed great detail of the swampy area
and power lines behind the tree line. Additional slides were of
landmarks and highways where other encounters occured on that

day. .

(Front page print from Readers Digest May 1966. Out
Bys Copaoge B int g y uter Space Ghost Story

A Thought For The Day:-

Sir Arthur Conan Doyle wrote, "When you have eliminated the impossible,
whatever remains, however probable, must be the truth.®

-4- -



Some questions gnd answers posed at The Exeter Conference.
(PG: Pete Geremia) (EB: Eugene Bertrand) (RT: Reginald 'Scratch'
Toland) (Q: Question from participant).

Q:
PG:

PG:

PG:

PG:

RT:

"Were there any noises associated with the lights"?

“"There were absolutely no noises, I have talked to nobody
that @eard any noises. In fact, when I interviewed Norman
he said when he was crouched down by the side of the xroad
near tpe stone wall. That everything went dead silent, even
the crickets stopped making noise. He said they only thing
he could hear was like an internal cough in his head.
Evgrything around him was like a dead silence when this
thing floated over the house."

"Do I correctly recall from the book that the object came
close enough that the officer felt threatened and was -
thinking of going for his gun or he grabbed it'?

"You're right it was in the book. Interestingly, in the
Keene case the officer was standing next to his car and

he had a shot gun in there and one of the people standing
next to him said, 'don't you think you ought to get your
shot gun'. And he was thinking of going for it to. So it's
a natural reaction."

"Where is Norman now? How old is he now, and what is his
general impression of what happened twenty five years ago"?

"I don't know how old he is, let's see he was eighteen at
the time so probably 43. He lives in Exeter, on Front St.

I think he is probably not pleased with the ridicule that
sometimes comes down the pike. I really don't know, I can't
answer for him. But I think it would be difficult, because
sometimes people are cruel."

"There is one question I wanted to ask these law officers
here. Have you guys been harrassed or brutalized or
whatever inspires the general populations concern about the

sighting?*

"Well they made in-fun of us. I didn't see it but Gene
(Bertrand) did. One thing I want to tell you. I was on the
desk when Muscarello came in and reported it and there were
two or three others in there. And this reporter a good
friend of mine, who wrote for the Manchester Union and the
Portsmouth Herald. And that night and every night, when I
was on the desk, he would stop in and see me about 2:30
a.m. or after. And on that night, when this happened, when
I sent him (Bertrand) out with Muscarello to look at the
rlace where the 'thing' was in the field. Well, I saw this
guy drive up (the reporter) on a motorcycle. He had a big
helmet on with glasses, gloves on and a big jacket. So, when
he came into the office, I jumped under the desk!"

Participants had a good laugh!!

RT:

RT:

PG:

"The reporter said, what's the matter with him, I said oh
I thought you were one of them!" (laughter)

“"When the story broke, he told me he was acquainted with
every pilot at Portsmouth, airfield. He said everyone of
them have been in on chases, where they chased UFOs and
government keeps denying it. Because he says it's true and
evexryone of them will tell you, but they won't tell you
outside because they don't want to be in trouble. That

actually happened."”

"I think the anolgy that the government gave back then for
not wanting to release the informatiom to the general
public because it will cause a panic, quote panic, really
doesn't hold water. Because if you look at the gallop polls
that they run through out the years better than fifty pexr-
-cent of the people believe that UFOs do exist anyway."

-5-
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Q: "Why was it that officials were called out at Pease AFB at
the time of the 'incident'? Were they checking for
radioactivity or were they checking...?"

PG: "I don't know what the Air Force did has far as
investigating other than they did send out two officers
to intexrview."

EB: "They came out the very next day. One was a captain the
other was a lieutenant, base operations officers. I was
called by the chief of police to come down to the police
station and told the gentleman in the room what happened.
They said we would appreciate it if you would
just keep this quite. I told them it was too late the
Manchester Union was here at the station and knows
about it. It was going to be in the paper, it's too late."

Participant: "Very Lucky!"

PG: "We were! That's just very fortunate that happened that
way."

Q: "Did the UFO leave anything behind, any evidence?"

PG: "Good Question. I was talking with Ray Fowler, trying to get
an update and his impressions. And he said he had heard, but
can't verify, that there were some physical traces left in
that field. Now if any of you here know about that or can
direct me to somebody who might know about that I sure
would appreciate it. He said he heard it as a rumor. But so
far as we know, officially, no.

Q: "Did the object appear to radiate heat at all. Did
Muscarello feel warmth?"

PG: "Did you feel any warmth Gene?"
EB: "No."

PG: "His impression was dead silence when he was crouched down.
Dead silence, the crickets weren't even making any noise
and very bright red lights."

Q: "Could these gentlemen give a description of how high above
them it was and how large it was?"

PG: "If you read the report, the report says that neither
officer, (not audible) officer Hunt could give an actual
size of the object. Norman says he thought it was 68 ft. in
size. I guess you could answer that better than I as far as
it looked like. The lights must of been to bright to see."

EB: "I didn't really get a good idea what the shape was. All we
we saw was lights going from left to right. Which was
somewhat like side to side, on that idea. But we never did
get the shape of it."

PG: "I think.in the report it said the lights were so bright it
would be like looking into a headlight."

Q: "If this occured in the area of the transmission lines,
was there any reported operations or significant power
fluctuations in that area??"

PG: "Not that I read or heard of."

PG: "I think this would be a good time to ask this question.
Does anybody here recall if a member of their family or
possibly themselves having a sighting during that time frame
(1965) of the incident at Exeter. Interesting, we probably
have about a dozen people."




Pease AFB Overflight - The Exeter Connectionl!

On the same evening the Exeter events occured there was a
strange development at Pease AFB only nine miles away - as the
crow flies. Robert Mark, currently the Chief of Police at
Hampton, NH., who, in 1965, was a sargent attached to the 509th
Security Police Squadron relates the following account:

It was about 12 a.m. when I and two other airmen were at the
Main gate to Pease. One of the airmen yelled, "Look at
that!" I turned around to see an object drop out of the
star-filled sky. It was coming straight for the guard shack
at an altitude of about 300 to 400 feet. The lights were
approaching at a very fast rate of speed. What I saw as the
object was coming straight on, was what loocked like two
headlights that were very bright.

As the object passed over the lighted areas of the base, the
lights would go out as if someone were breaking the bulbs as
they went by. It passed directly over the guard shack, but
the men could not hear a sound, only the wind. When I first
saw the two bright headlights drop out of the sky and come
towards the shack, I thought it was a B-52 approaching, but
this was dismissed when there was no sound whatsoever.

One of the airmen ran for the shack and grabbed the red
hotline phone, which is a direct to to CSC (Central Security
Control). He began crying and yelling into the phone about
what he was seeing. Then he dropped to his knees and lost
all control of himself. I had to grab the phone away from
him and shack the airman, telling him to control himself,
that the thing was not going to kill him. As this was going
on, the object headed towards the north end of Pease. When
it flew over, the lights there went out also. They remained
out for about thirty to forty seconds, then came back on.
The whole area was black when the object passed over.

The objiect was described by Mark as being elongated, but was
unclear on detail to the the brightness of the lights. He
recalled running up into the base radar tower just in time to
overhear a pilot transmitting, "I can't get them; there too
fast! I'm at max." Mark saw the fighters gaining ground on the
object but only to be outdistanced. He recalls seeing the rear
of the object while being pursued by the two aircraft: "It
looked like the object had lights in the rear, like you see
behind a jet where the flame comes out."

(Source: Clear Intent - Greenwood/Fawcett)

The above account took place two hours before the Incident At
Exeter. After filing FOIA requests, for further information on
this account, and others at that time, Pease fervently denied
any knowledge of base reports during the Exeter events.
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Police officers

David Hunt, left

and Eugene Bertrand of
Exeter, NH., joined
Muscarello back at the
site where he had reported
seeing a large, luminous,
flying object.
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MUSCARELLO = EXETER

SEPT. 3, 1965

About 2:30 A.M. on Sept. 3, 1965, 18 year old Norman Muscarello,
of Exeter, New Hampshire, was hitchhiking home when a huge glowing
ball came out of the night sky towards him. He quickly jumped into
a ditch for cover. The UFO was about 80 feet in diameter and seemed
to be a solid object with pulsating red lights.

Muscarello, panic stricken and near shock, was able to hitch a
ride to the police station by a middle-aged couple and told of his
fantastic experience.

Later, an officer and Muscarello went to the scene of the in-
cident and after searching the area for a while, a brilliant round
object appeared from over a group of trees. There was a straight
row of bright red lights which pulsated from right to left and back
again around an apparent rim. The object made no sound as it moved,
in a rocking motion, in and out of the tree tops. Then the UFO
finally moved on out of sight toward the ocean.
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positions during the time period of 03/0500-06002.

3 Sep 65, Exeter, N Hampshire 7 Sep 65, leon, N York
TSgt David Moody called Griffis AFB, N York and talked with 3gt Hunt, 416 SW of

the L02% Operations Squadron. Informed that Farmer Boy refueling route had been
changed to Fur Trapper. Records were checked and revealed that no refueling
operations vere conducted on the nights of 2-3 Sep and 6 Sep. The route Fur Trapper
was closed from 03/0500 to 03/0600Z for an 5th Alr Force Operation "Big Blast".

Sgt Hunt informed Sgt Moody that a refueling ares "Down Date” controlled at Loring 7
AFB, parelleled "fur-Trapper" adjacent to the old Farmer Boy area. S3gt Moody

called Col Smith at loring AFB. No flights were conducted on the morning of 3 Sep
and one operation of a B-47, KC-135 from Loring entered the Speedvay refueling area
near Indianapdis st 0T/01102. There were no refueling operations in the New
Bnghnd areas during the time in question. Any information on "Big Blast" should

be obtained from the Sth Air Force. Sgt Moody called Major Benanders at Westover
AFB at the 99th Bomb Wing, DCOI, and requested him to obtain information pertaining
to the lighting and type of aircraft used in operation "Big Blast" and their

The sbove vas-accomplished by telephone on 20 September 1965,
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Dr. William F. Krupke
2311 Manning Ave.

Los Angeles, Calif.
90064

March 6, 1969

Dr. David R. Saunders
Department of Psychology
University of Colorado
Boulder, Colorado

Dear Dr. Saunders,

I have just finished reading your book, UF0s? Yes! as
well as the Bantam edition of the Scigntific Study of Unidenti=-
fied flying Obfects. Any scientist who has taken the time to
read a few of the reliable sources describing UFO reports, such
as Ruppelt's Report on UFOs, NICAP's UFQ Evidence, or Vallee's
books, will recognize in the Condon Report a blatant selectivity
of case materiel directly supporting its narrow conclusioni" Care-
ful consideration of the record es it is sveilseble to us leads
us to conclude that further extensive study of UFOs probably
cannot be justified in the expectation that science will bes ad-
vanced thereby". I fully believe this conclusion to be un=
founded, based on the record as it is available to me.

Let me . cite an example which I think supports this state=-
ment. About a year ago I read fuller's Incident at Exeter. Taken
collectively, the thirty or so reports of UFOs were remarkably °
consistent and something to reckon with. I certainly expscted
the Condon Report to discuss these sightings in some detail. The
Exeter sightings were briefly mentioned twice in the Condon
Report, onca in the higtorical narrative snd once in connection
with Klass' book UFOs Identified. In the latter refersnce, the
Condon Report says, "Klass points out that ball lightning and
the Exeter UFOs compare favorably with regard to color, shape,
sound, dynamics, lifetime, and size". While several difficulties
with Klass' theory are pointed out in the Condon Report, the
basic impression left with the reader is that the Exeter UFOs
fit nicely into the body of knowledge ebout the ball lightning
phenomenon. I had occasion recently to review the ball lightning
literature for a research project I was involved in, and this
inference about the Exeter sightings struck me as patently sbsurd.



quﬁ e

I decided then to go back and ebstract the Exeter UFOs
for size, duration, end color. Some thirty sightings were
discussed in Ingcident at Exeter and of thesse, 15 contained an
estimate of the size and 12 contained sn estimate of the
duration. These data certainly do not constitute e large
semple statistically but I think thay are adsquate to prove
the point. The frequencies of size end duration of the
Exeter UFOs are shown in the attached figures. As you cen
see, the most frequently reported size was sbout 7 meters and
the most frequantly reported duration was 5 minutes., Each
distribution exhibits two mexima. This:result is probably
spurious and most likely is due to the small sample snd the
tendency for wltneaees to satimate .61ze in’terme.of a common
abject (such as @ car or a houss) and to round off estimates
of duration (auch a 5, 10, or 30 minutes). The important
thing to note is that in no instance did anyone report an
ob jact less than 4 meters in dismeter nor visible for less
than 30 seconds. The attachaed figures ealso show frsquency
distributions of size and duration for ball lightning, taken
from a paper by Finkelstein and Rubinstein (Physical Review, 135,
A3S0, 1964). Note that the size and duration scales in the
attached figures are logarithmic. The most often reported size
of ball lightning is sbout 10 c» and tha most oftsn .reported
duration is ebout 3 seconds. Durations longer then 10 -ssccnds
and diameters larger then 100 cm are extremely rare. Barry
(J. Atmos. Terr. Phys., 29, 1095, 1966) has given ths results
of a ball lightning survey covering 300 yeers of sightings.

He states "The most common diemster reported is 30 cm. About
80 percent of the observers reported a spherical or oval .shape
with a diameter less than 40 cm." About lifetimes he seys "Ths
lifetime of a ball lightning is most often less than five sec-
onds. A lifetime of this length or less was reported in shout

83 percent of the cases. The longer lifetime i{s highly correlated

with the motionless blue or blue-white ball which is considered
to be a phenomenon other than bell lightning" In the Exeter

sightings the objects were generally described s red or red/orangs,

In some few cases, smaller green or blue licghts distributéd over
the surface were also reported.

The figures clearly show that the Exeter sightings exhibit

merked dissimilarities from the usual ball lightning, There are
many other qualitative dissimilarities. For example, 90 percent of
the ball lightning sightings occurred during local thunderstora
activity while the weather was generally clear at Exetsr. Eighty
percent of the red ball lightning decay explosively while nons of
the red Exeter UFO0s (which was most of them) decayed explosively.
Allowing that the Exeter UFOs are not conventional ball lightning,

d



there are three ather possibilities: 1) the Exeter reports
are spurious, 2) the Exeter reports describe a new natural
phenomenon, 3) the Exeter reports describs a non-naturel
phencmenon. While it is possible that the Exeter reports
are spurious, there i{s no evidence to suggest that this is
the case. The possibility that either 2) or 3) could be true
would seem to warrant concern by the scientific community.

On the basis of the limited information available, one
cannot reject either of these possibilities. Ths non-natural
origin is supported by the fact that a number of the reported
UF0s menifested structure; this aspact of the reports may
well be spurious, but one cannot ignore these-reports out of
hand. The Exeter sightings are now history end we will never
know for certain the source of thesa reports. I would hope
that we might still learn something from the whole Exeter
affair. A great number of objects were seen &t Exeter and
environs during a period of a few weeks. Hed the Air Force
responded to the earliest reports promptly and in sn objective
manner, it might have been possible to gst scientific observers .
possessing appropriate instrumentation into the area to
record this phenomencn. It is clear that we cennot reprao-
duce such UF0s8 in tha lsboratory. If we wish to study these
objects at all, we will have to study them when end where
they are encountered.

The Condon Report says that we should ignore all future
UF0 reports. Since the Condon Report will encourage disinterest
among scientists who have not taken tha time to study the most
valid UF0 reports, some effort must be made to express the
opposing view. ( The editorisl writtan recently by H. Hoagland
in Sciencs, 163, 625 (1963) is a prime example of the effect
the Condon Report has had on the scientific community). This
brings me to my purpose in writing you this letter.

On page 179 of your boock, you mgntioned the intent of
forming a group of professional scientists, the Committee for
Research on UF0s, pledged to the support of an on=going scientific
study of UF0s. I concur fully with Dr. Hynek's opinion that a
visible group of qualified individuels (establishment scientists)
who take the UFO problem seriouasly is a desirsble thing, especially
now that the Condon Report has appeared with its narrow conclu-
sion, I would like to determine the present status of the CRU,
and what its future program may be. I would like to offer my
own support for such:a group. :



8y way of introduction professionally, let me say that .
I am 32, married, and hold a PhD in physics from the University
of California at Los Angeles. My fields of specialization are
atomic and molecular spectroscopy end quentum electronics. My
present position is that of Senior Staff Physicist in the Leser
Department, Research and Development Divisian, Hughes Aircraft
Compeny. I am presently engaged in s research progrem studying
the dynamic processes associated with high power molecular lasers.

As a matter of curiosity, what did the working members
of the Condon Committee think ebout the Exeter reports? Were
they dismissed cut of hand, merely bscause they were old reports?
Also, how come no menticn of the Redlands, California UFO
sighting of Feb. 1968 was made in the Condon Report? I under-
stand that Dr.Seff, who documented the Redlands sightings, was
requested by the Condon Committee to complots his report for
inclusion in the final Report. Ths report was spperently completed
in time and ssnt to the Condon Committes. Surely one would ex-
pect that this remarkables, current sighting uould be. discussad
in the Condon Report! Curious!

I would very much enjoy discussing with you subjects dseling
with UFOs, should you be in tha greater Los Angeles ares in the

future. Please feal free to call me, sither at work (EX 10711,
Ext 6143) or at homa (GR 55333).

Sincerely yours,

 Williem F. Krupke, PhD..




al S0 ol

'(£(‘:§33j

-
-—
>~

; 2 ;
| §
! ! ' § D . .-.

. - A P e

: ' o

! L H v

: ; : ! ! ! :
. & ) ! ; . L. I S
N \ - . . N Y H

i . , ! [ ‘ N
: poobo _. Lo ,
i s o .
: . _ i . R
m. ot

(541 ‘oeev 58T Ama SAud) :
OMINLHDIM TV /

T e s Y RO T SR PR N TR NIRRT N IV T

Teem e e ewim oL Al s ety g ey TA0rL S9N TRITIN TN - o o O TR




DG (Ol L HENCT

e
o
18}

i Q

a9

AN nbEdd

: S I .
4o - R B i
w T RN R R
. : , i i i S R
.'v ! v .\ _ .f..l.an
H .. \ ! ) ! “
! A /- Lo . ‘
w : (bR ofey’ S0 e m‘:iu,/ f T . _
. o O eoumas v\ [ A
a A

e T B e
i L) ! R .,_ Pl * _
.,.._ a ..M._.. n b _ _ RIS I i o i

Tt UTINE ORISR 82 VI RIT T MW T RRmes s s ©




(oo usicier VR HeowA:
UFOs: GREATEST SCIENTIFIC PROBLEM OF OUR TIMES?
James E. McDonald
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ican Society of
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annual meeting © T
Newspaper Editors, wWashington, D. C.,
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Case 2. Ereter, N.H., September 3, 1965.

This case has been rather fully reported
in many places, notably in a book by J. G.
Fuller (Ref. 16); and a number of other good
reports and discussions of it can be found in
House Document 55 (Ref. 12). After several
preliminary sightings that I shall omit to save
space here, the principal sighting by Exeter
policemen Eugene F. Bertrand and David R. Hunt
and by an l8-year-old boy, Norman J. Muscarello,
took place at about 0200 on Sept. 3rd. I have
personally interviewed Bertrand and Hunt and
have discussed their reliability with Exeter
Chief of Police R. D, Irvine. Omitting many
details, the men saw an object, estimated at
almost 100 feet long, carrying a number of
bright blinking red lights, maneuvering and
hovering silently over a farmhouse until it
soundlessly went away.

Maj. Quintanilla's first explanation for
this was "twinkling stars." When the officers
wrote to Bluebook, protesting such an explana-
tion which would hold them up to ridicule and
place in jeopardy their reputations as reliable
officers, the explanation was switched to ]
involve a night-advertising aircraft. When it
was next determined that the aircraft in gues-
tion was not even operating that night, Maj.
Quintanilla altered his explanation to one
involving a B-47 refueling operation near Pease
AFB. When, finally, the policemen secured the
actual time of that operation and thereby
established that the refueling operation was
over by the 0200 time of the main sighting,
Quintanilla finally classified it as Unknown.

A revealing history.




EXETE‘.R% alales e

N -~ Yed hak /“f”g‘_“ah
t@%m or O \\M autionr % &m.& o At n% c..n |

__V_ OJ"A»‘”‘"“ L«AAD. %um < w pgo\ccn.m
S Aot ‘Aﬂ_tf &fm%ﬁm%‘d&{

_ Y\u&& Close amco«.ﬁ«

gt g, — g~ S ey

e e

o
-

| ZM-..W‘M\‘ﬁ lew_'ma




f

palele gfElaRy

el =l

o =~ R Y 7
:‘ % i, Jnssllisé) , e hdlﬂ#“'p
" Mﬂi 4_J

) i' - | |
>, . ] 'l‘ "] .;J &4 k. ,’.7;,7.7_ A -‘Dﬂjy“
=7 ' 2 . (

N ———

=4




Patrolman Hunt arrived on the scene after Bertrand
and boy saw "Thing" reappear. Note presence again of power lines near scene. (see page 33)

In the next weeks, many other seemingly valid sightings were made in the New Hampshire
area. None, however, was more vivid than Ron Smith's.

The 17 year-old high school senior was out driving with his mother and aunt when they
spotted an object in the sky. He stopped the car, looked up and saw something with a red
light on top and a white glow on the bottom. It passed over the car once, stopped in midair,
then went back over the car again and yet a third time.

Shaken and frightened, he started back to the Exeter police station to report the incident
when, as he told Fuller:



Mrs. Virginia Hale, reporter for Haverhill Gazette, saw the saucer from her kitchen window.
It hovered over neighbor's house 4 minutes.

"] came to my senses. I wanted to go back to make sure it was there. To take another look
to make sure I wasn't seeing things. We did go back. And sure enough, it was in the same
spot again. It passed over the car once, and that was the last time I saw it."

| —— —— e Seas———

The TRUE Report On Flying Saucers, 1967

Lo's UFO Page

Lo's News Page

Lo's Home




intérested John G. Fuller,
. “Trade ‘Winds,” a column which has
.z “been appearing in Saturday Review for

. In the early mommg hours of Sep—
tember 3, 1965, Norman ‘Muscarello
" was hxtcbhnkxng home near Exeter,

- . Massachuseits, when he saw an enor-

mous’ disk-like object flying_silently

t"f','- .- toward him. Around the craft’s rim
i+ were" bright, flashing red lights. He -

" . "went back later on-that same evening :

. .. with Patrolman Eugene - Bertrand, an
" - Air Force veteran, and ‘the two, along .
. “with another officer, Patrolman David

. Hunt; again saw the craft.

It ‘'was this incident spegifically that
author of

the past nine years.

* But. this was only the beginning of
" a‘rash of sightings'in: Massachusetts
that lasted for months, This extremely
well-witnessed “invasion” is fully doc-
umented in—and forms the basis for—

. Mr. Fuller's book, Incident at Exeter.

"Fuller, by the way, began his re-
. "search rather skeptically. A factual re-
porter with a penchant for detail, ac-

“INCIDENT AT E_XETER” AND'THE GREAT BLACKOUT

.' B

curacy, crednbxhty, and (mcxdentally)
understatement, he was not, in the be-
ginning, a believer in UFO’s.

The reader who is a behever may
find this book dull and repetitious, But
if, on the other hand, the reader is &
nonabeliever, it is hkely that-the ‘intél-
ligent, slowstyle-of reportage and-do¢-

umentation will cause. him. to: 'change
-his beliefs. So ‘much’ similar corrobo- s

ration from so many dnfferem people
is enough to convince almost anyoné,
as it did, in fact, convince Fuller.
Perhaps most interesting are the re-
markable coincidences * that * Fuller
found between UFO sightings and the

Great Blackout that darkened the en--

tire portheastern section of the United
States in 1965, Prior to the énormous

power failure, the author-bad fhoticed.

that a great number of UFQ sightings’

in Massachusetts had occurred very

near major power lines. (In fact, as
reported by Frank Edwards in his Fiy-
ing Saucers—Senous Business, there
was. in" 1962 a: well documented case

~ causing it mysterxously to go dead for

“W ell is there some government agency
I can conzact that does beheve in us""

and 'two others from New Yor Qlty*f:-

) s:lVen}‘ object”app

" months that followed, .a: 'series,

of a- UEO whxch set:- down ncar an
electric power station at'Eiireka, Utah,

more .than -half -an hour,)

On November-9, 1965, all electrical
‘power was'cm ‘off ‘in ait‘area inhabi
"by about’ thirty imillion’: people.: Soffle: %

thing which-had been-called 1mpossibk.
becauise of | "nﬁer,dqgendencenqﬁjhc A
whol‘e‘;i:oxye ', "we ‘weré'told; 5.
-caused e’ry in terdepende

Permdg;a“y,??ffhere “were anﬁoﬁgbe-
ments*that the" cause -had*been" defer-

mined -and the power would soon; re-
turn,

At 10 M, xt was announce
Clay,
;, 5 000-\50!th1gh-te jsion
_powet lmes Tun into¥ Niagara:
and from there into ‘Utica in ones
tion ‘and "intd"New,. York City.
other. Investnga rs ‘went
found nothfng ‘wrong,’ T ™
In"the samg. ‘area,’ ju:
acusey at’ the ‘same ' time. somethmgf s_e
appened:::“Weldon 7Ross; 2 “private’
pxlot and instiuctor, w%s‘approachm "
‘ A Syracuse for'a Band- 55
ing. It was"pliost the exact- mbmeﬁt, ¢
of thig "blackoiif¥:As 'he" Idoked. Gefaw:

. - sh ‘
saw this’ objeet,“in cluding the'I
Coxmmsslone al;’

P

n
i)

~vAxthur” ‘Rickerby, o hotogragher

. for- Life Magazme photographg% ,;he #

New‘,%:rk skyline just’after. tge‘b ack-3
out.’ the “wéstern'sky,” a xfi iant;

any ‘atisfactoty’ way been expl eqi:' A
~Qther reports: abouz*U%‘,Ofs cgme n
from Connecp:cut, Peangy ode:
Island New "Jersey qnd Newx 'York-.f
“The cause of the blatkout wak even,
" tially: “traced” to Ontario. Howevery
a supervising ‘engineer ‘at Ontar;
stated that ‘the cause’was still ‘'a mys-
tery On’J anuary 4,71966, The N,
‘k “Times " ;'eporled' that the
was ‘not’ fully,ubderstood T
- Later on in_November and i

explainable; blac[couts hit all oversthe
‘world, including’many" other pang f
“the U.S. Thete were large pow! P
ures ‘i’ England Mexxpo, Texa 2
- Mexico, Argehtma, -aswell as’in’.fo t

. . All* ,had unsat:sfw
tory’ explana S, in d'

£

reports of UEQ’s, .
In"Flying: Saucers
too, Frank Edwards remarks ton the
“unusually. close ‘association - of.UF
and the Great: Blackout. It is, of courseé
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“UFO DETECTOR” STUDY CONDUCTED AT EXETER

Can a series of sensitive magneto-
meters detect the presence of UFOs? This
question remains essentially unanswered
despite exhaustive efforts by NICAP
member John Oswald during a 20-month
period near Exeter, N.H.

Oswald, intrigued by the numerous
sightings reported around Exeter during
1965-66, set out in late 1970 to establish
and monitor a “UFQ detector’ network
surrounding this famous New England
town.

The timing for the experiment, Nov,
1970 through Sept. 1972, proved excel-
lent, according to Oswald, who noted in a
report to NICAP “that significant UFO
activity occurred within the test area
during the period covered.”

The test results, however, were not as
encouraging. Oswald reported, “’Although
it would appear that UFOs may have
been detected on two occasions and that
it is actually not possible to say that some
other detector alarms were not caused by
UFQOs, it is clear that most of the hun-
dreds of detector alarms recorded were
caused by geomagnetic storm activity.”

Difficulties Encountered

One of the difficulties encountered
by Oswald during the course of his
experiment was the extreme sensitivity of
the detectors he had designed. “When |
started building the detector network in
New Hampshire, | did not think that the
instruments were sensitive enough to de-
tect sunspot-related geomagnetic storms.”’

Despite this problem, the experiment
yielded two instances in which UFO
sightings by witnesses were simultaneous-
ly detected by Oswald’s magnetometers.

According to Oswald, on Jan. 13,
1971, at 7:30 p.m, at least two witnesses
near Exeter observed three or four lights
making strange maneuvers near power
lines. Simultaneously, according to
Oswald, one of his 13 detectors sounded
its alarm.

On another occasion, Nov, 23, 1971,
at 1:55 a.m., a large, fast-moving oval
white light was observed by a single
witness. According to Oswald’s report,
two of his detectors sounded their alarms
within seconds of the sighting.

The Detector

All 13 detectors used by Oswald
during the 20-month period followed the
same basic principle in design and con-
struction (see Photo #1).

In each detector, a bar magnet was
suspended on a fine cotton thread “‘such
that the magnet would rotate in a hori-
zontal plane and come to rest with its
poles oriented toward the magnetic poles
of the earth.”

A delicate copper needle was attached
to the magnet and extended from one

Photograph 1
UFO Detector Unit

Photograph 2
Complete Detector System

pole. The needle was made to protrude
through a small loop of heavier copper
wire several inches away.

The needle and loop were incorpo-
rated into an electrical circuit which was
completed when magnetic deflection
caused the needle to touch the loop. The
circuit was powered by a battery and
incorporated a small alarm bell.

The device, as designed by Oswald,
contained a lock-on device which caused
the alarm bell to ring continuously once
it started until the circuit was broken
manually.

The supporting structure for the
magnet and needle was made of a heavy
copper or aluminum wire which. in turn
was mounted on a square of three-
quarter-inch plywood. The entire device,
excluding battery and bell, was protected
from the elements and air currents
through the use of an inverted glass jar
securely fastened to the plywood base
(see Photo #2).

Visual Sightings
During the course of his experiment,
Oswald investigated more than 70 UFO
sightings reported in the Exeter area. To

assist him in later correlation of sightings
and detector alarms, Oswald classified
UFO reports into three basic categories:
A—Unknowns; B-Likely Unknowns;
C—Possible Unknowns. Of the 70-odd
cases, Oswald classified only 12 in cate-
gory A, or those having the strongest
likelihood of being "true UFQOs."”

The two sightings recorded simul-
taneously by a detector and witnesses
were among the 12 cases investigated by
Oswald and listed in category A .

Town Turns Out
To Watch UFO

A saucer-shaped UFO "as big as a
school bus” has been observed by more
than one hundred residents of Lexington,
Ala., during recent weeks.

According to one NICAP member
living in the area, scores of individuals
have been gathering each night around
the town in hopes of spotting the UFO.

Most of the sightings have occurred
between 8 and 9 p.m., and while descrip-
tions differ in minor details, most de-
scribe the object as saucer-shaped and
reddish or bluish in color.

One of the most recent sightings
occurred Sunday, Feb. 4, 1973, when
two young men driving in Lexington
spotted a low-flying object and followed
it at 50 mph as it headed towards
Rogersville and then on to Wheeler Dam.
As the witnesses approached the dam,
they said the UFO appeared to hover over
the lake and then move off towards
Huntsville. A TVA worker employed at
the Wheeler Dam also said he saw it.

One Lexington resident, describing
his town as a quiet town where the “old
values” still count, said “there has never
been anything like this to stir up a town
— | don't know what or why it is bugging
us, but | hope we find out.”

Maneuvering Lights
Seen in Rhode Island

At least a dozen residents of Wood
River Junction, R.l., have been watching
a circular UFO with “"bright white lights"

maneuver above their town in recent
weeks, according to local newspaper
accounts,

The object has been spotted at least
twice in recent weeks, with the most

(See Lights, page 4)




NATIONAL INVESTIGATIONS COMMITTEE

ON AERIAL PHENOMENA

1536 CONNECTICUT AVENUE, N.W.
WASHINGTON D.C.

20036

September 15, 1965

Dear Don:

The Cherry Creek landing story runs
just short of Il MS pages; I have made
two sketches (one of the markings; one
of the UFQ) which together would take
about 7 1/2 column~inches., I drew them
at Dlumn“w1d$h\so no reduction is nec-

_/,/6§§§ry. ~
i
b The N.H. story is in the works

ya very likely will run a little longer

to it. The USAF tried to stop publication )
%} _of the stor using THEe panic 6xCus56.
' fFEWIEFmTHEE%%iGWGd quite a few peopls,
and found no fear at all--only intens

curiosity.,
Both are animal reaction cases;

Cre lso involves E-M and Sical
evidégigt‘ﬁfﬁﬁ~has—peiice witnesses, in-
cluding the one who started to draw his
revolver,

We'll hold the stories here until Friday,
then if you don't make it down we'll mail
them to you, Freval Broadeanig, Sy e,

Finally %alked with Anfrol, and he can
do the filming (15-20 minutes) either
Friday or Saturday. I won't be able to
conact Lechaux until tonight to see which
is best fop him., Anfrol leaves next week
for Paris and would like to have the film
wrapped up to take with him,

Sincerely,

Q.o
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Blackouts . . .
(Continued from page 6)

nervousness while the object stayed
there. The article from Venezuela also
said that the Power Authority in Italy
assumed that customers simply overused
electricity because of the unseasonal
cold.

10. Los Angeles, California, 24 January
1966. A blackout hit portions of west
San Fernando Valley and west and south
Los Angeles at 6:15 a.m. and the areas
were without electrical power for from
15 to 30 minutes. The explanation was
that a transmission line at the Haynes
steam plant at Seal Bench had failed.

The Cherry Creek Incident

At about 8:20 p.m., on the night of
the 19th of August 1965, Harold Butcher,
16, was operating the milking machine
at his father’s (William Butcher) dairy
farm, located near Cherry Creek, New
York. The boy was listening to a news-
cast from a portable radio, when he
noted static-like interference which
drowned out the program. The tractor
to which the milking machine was con-
nected then stopped. Outside the barn,
a bull which was chained to an iron
stake began to bellow and attempt to
pull loose.

At this juncture the boy ran to the
window of the barn and saw a large ellip-
tical-shaped object with a reddish glow
or vapor underneath it, as it appeared
to land about a quarter of a mile from
the barn. He heard a steady bee-beep
sound. The object was on the ground
for only a very few seconds before it
shot straight up into the air disappear-
ing into the clouds.

Butcher, using the phone extension
in the barn, notified others in the house
and they came out. All noted a strange
odor in the air, and the clouds into
which the object had disappeared glowed
a greenish color.

Approximately a half hour later, the
object reappeared and seemed to be cir-

cling the area. Harold’s mother called
the State Police. Troopers came, then
notified the Air Force which initiated
an investigation including a Captain
and four technicians. They found a
purplish liquid substance in several
places, small two-inch indentations in
the ground, as well as patches of singed
grass and shrubbery.

APRO’s investigator visited the But-
cher farm, found Harold to be an in-
telligent boy who has quit school in
order to run the farm, as his father is

physically unwell. Asked why he was
using the tractor for power, Harold said
the unit which ordinarily powers the
milking machine was out of order.

The bull which initially attracted Har-
old’s attention to the outside, was fast-
ened to the iron stake by a rope or
chain which ran through a ring in his
nose. He pulled so hard that he bent
the quarter inch stake over to almost
a 45 degree angle.

Upon further questioning about the
object, Harold said it looked “like two
turkey platters” lip to lip. The purple,
viscous substance amounted to about a
quart. Harold said that when he put
some on his finger it was as if someone
was putting pressure on the finger.

The Butcher boy also told our investi-
gator, Perry C. Euchner, that the 16
cows, which normally yield from 3 to 4
cans of milk per day, were yielding only
approximately 1 and a half cans per day
for almost a week after the incident.

The Exeter, N. H. Case

A series of sightings at Exeter, New -

Hampshire in September are worthy of
considerable space and comment:

At 12:30 a.m. on the 3rd of September
Exeter Police Officer Eugene Bertrand
was on routine patrol on Route 101. Just
outside of town he came upon a woman
parked alongside the road. He asked if
she needed help and she excitedly told
him that a flying object had chased her
car from Epping to Exeter, occasionally
diving on it. The object was surrounded
by a red glow, and appeared to be ellip-
tical in shape. Bertrand asked if she
knew where the object was and she
pointed to a bright light on the horizon.
He watched it for a few minutes, re-
assured her, and proceeded on in his
patrol car. He did not take the incident
seriously, and did not get the woman’s
name.

At 2 o’clock Bertrand received a call
from headquarters asking him to come
and get a boy who had reported a UFO
in the area, and investigate. He picked
the boy up, and heard this story: Eight-
een-year-old Norman Muscarello was
thumbing rides, making his way from
Amesbury, Mass.,, where he had been
visiting, to his home in Exeter. He was
on route 150 about 2 miles from Exeter
when an objeet carrying four or five
bright red lights came from a nearby
woods and maneuvered over the field ad-
jacent to the road. He was approaching
a farm. The boy watched as the object
moved over the Clyde Russell home and
appeared to be hovering just a few feet
above the roof. It made no noise, and
seemed to be larger than the house. He
estimated 80-90 feet. Then it moved back

over the field and disappeared over the
trees. The boy pounded on the door of
the Russell home, shouting that he had
seen a “flying saucer.” The Russells
woke up but refused to admit him,
thinking he was drunk. Muscarello gave
up and started down the road to Exeter.
He flagged down a passing automobile
and received a ride to the Exeter Police
Station, where he related his experience.

Officers at the station later reported
that Muscarello was white and shaken
and barely able to talk. They called
Bertrand who took him to the scene.
When they arrived, the object was not
there. They waited for several minutes,
Bertrand radiced headquarters and re-
ported that the object was not there.
The dispatcher suggested that Bertrand
examine the field before returning, so
he and the boy went into the field. As
Bertrand played his flashlight beam back
and forth across the ground, Muscarello
yelled that the object was coming. It
was rising slowly from behind some trees
nearby. Bertrand saw the large, dark
object carrying a straight row of bright
red lights which dimmed from right to
left and left to right, alternately. It
swung toward the two, appearing to
clear a tree which was in the vicinity
of 70 feet tall, and the object then seem-
ed to be only 100 feet from them. Ber-
trand began to draw his gun, but chang-
ed his mind. He and the boy ran to the
cruiser and Bertrand called headquart-
ers. Within a few minutes Officer Hunt
arrived and the three watched the ob-
ject move away over the trees. It made
no noise whatsoever.

These are the basic facts surrounding
the three most outstanding sightings in
the Exeter area. Another, related by John
Fuller, columnist with Saturday Review,
in LOOK Magazine, for February 22,
1966, is equally interesting but not cor-
roborated by additional witnesses:

According to Fuller, young Joseph
Jalbert, 16, of Exeter, observed a strange
object one day in late October. Jalbert
is an intelligent boy with a high scho-
lastic record. On the day in question, he
noticed a reddish cigar-shaped object
high in the sky at dusk. A smaller red-
dish-orange disk emerged from it and
slowly descended toward the ground. It
appeared to draw nearer, then skimmed
along the power lines and stopped within
two hundred feet (his estimate) of him
just a few feet over the wires. Then a
silvery, pipe-like extension descended
from the object and appeared to touch
the wire where it remained for just a
few seconds. It was then drawn up to

the disk again, the disc took off at high
speed, toward the cigar-shaped object,
(See Ezxeter, page 8)
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and merged with it.

Fuller did not relate what happened
to the cigarshaped object. This sighting
is important, however, in view of the
relationship of the small disc to the
cigar, and the phenomena of the “silver
pipe.” See article on the “Great Black-
out.”

‘“Little, Little Men" In Minn.

A new type of “little man” was de-
scribed by a young man who claimed he
observed three in an encounter with a
“Space Ship” on a Minnesota road in
October 1965. The basic story:

Jerry Townsend, 19, high school grad-
uate and fledgling radio announcer at
KEYL in Long Prairie, Minnesota, rush-
ed into police headquarters in that town
at about 7:40 p.m. on Saturday, the 23rd
of October 1865. He claimed he had
come upon a strange object in the road
between Little Falls and Long Prairie.

At 7:15 p.m. Townsend’s car rounded
a curve about 4 miles out of Long Prairie
when he saw an object shaped like a
rocket, “about 3040 feet high and ten
feet in diameter” which appeared to be
resting on fins, in the road ahead of him.
Just as he came around the curve, he
said, his engine, lights and radio went
out, so he put on his brakes. He stopped
he thought, about 20 feet from it. He
said that he first thought he might have
been able to knock it over with his car
if his engine hadn't quit. His idea was
to get “some evidence” of what he was
seeing. He then got out of his car with
the idea of trying to push it over.
When he got to the front of the car
three little creatures which looked like
tin cans on tripods, and about six inches
tall, came from behind the object. They
had no discernible features. Townsend
stopped, near the front of his car, with
no desire to go closer. He said that al-
though he could detect no features, he
felt the creatures were watching him.
After what seemd an interminable
time, the little objects went under the
rocket, and disappeared into it. The
“colorless” light which issued from the
bottom of the rocket, went out after the
rocket got into the air. Then his car
radio and lights came on and the en-
gine started without his having to touch
the starter. He headed for Long Prairie
as fast as he could go and went to police
headquarters where he told his story.
Townsend was interviewed by Mrs. Lo-
renzen by telephone. He seemed to be

truthful and genuinely impressed by

what he saw. He would not be dissuaded

about the huge size of the rocket, or the
diminutive size of the “creatures.”

Sheriff Bain was reluctant to discuss
the incident, but did say that Townsend
had a good reputation. He and Long
Prairie police officer Lavern Lubitz re-
turned to the spot where Townsend
claimed the object had been. They found
three strips of an oil-like substance about
four inches apart and a yard long, all
parallel with the road. “I don't know
what they were but I've looked at a lot
of roads and never saw anything like
them before.”

Inquiries to Townsend’s High School
principal and one teacher brought the
opinions that Townsend is an honest
young man. Bain and Lubitz both said
Townsend was considered dependable,
of good reputation, and Bain said he
thought Townsend was telling the truth
about what he saw.

Townsend, when interviewed, said he
realized people would ridicule him, but

he thought he should tell his story any- .

how. He would not change any detail
of his story.

The bizarre part of this account is the
size of the “little creatures.” Some add-
ed and very interesting details: When
the little creatures moved, it was with
the “front two fins,” and when they
stopped they put down a rear “fin,” more
or less like a stabilizer. It is possible
Townsend was mistaken about the huge
size of the ship and the small size of the
creatures. However, they were clearly
silhouetted against the light coming from
the bottom of the “rocket.” What is
striking about this account is that the
“little men” were cylindrical like the
ship, using three fins for locomotion,
and although their tops were flat instead
of tapered to a point like the ship, they
generally resembled it.

Driver Harrassed By Saucer

One of the most spectacular incidents
which came out of the August “flap” in
the U.S. is the experience of truck driver
Don Tennopir of Route 1, Beatrice, Kan-
sas. He halted a police car and blurted
out the following story to Patrolman
Quenton Kessler:

“I was driving north of Highway 15
about 25 miles south of Abilene, Kansas,
carrying a full load of peanuts and was
en route to Lincoln, Nebraska. I guess
it was about 1:30 a.m., when all of a sud-
den all the lights on my truck went out.
Then they came back on, then went off,
then back on again. About this time this
thing, saucer, or whatever, went over my
truck with a sizzling or wind-like blow-
ing sound. It scared the out of
me. It seemed to almost touch the cab,
maybe it was 20 feet in the air, and it

just swooped down over the road and
hovered there no more than 100 feet in
front of me,

“I tell you, I was standing on those
brakes. I just didn’t know what was hap-
pening. It looked like it was going to
fall right in the middle of the road, but
it didn’t. I got my rig stopped and about
that time this thing raised up a bit and
slowly took off to the west and then
headed south. I don’t know how long it
was there. It seemed longer than 20
seconds, but I was just too scared
to tell time.

“The thing looked round to me, I'd
guess it was about 14 or 15 feet in dia-
meter and sort of orange colored. This
thing was shooting off reddish rays, kind
of in spurts. The rays weren’t really
steady, kind of flashing.

“The object appeared to be like a
saucer. I'd guess it was about two feet
thick and the edge was round. There
was a hump or something like that, in
the middle. This hump stuck up about
four feet or so. There was a dark spot °
in the hump, and this might have been
a window or something. I just don't
know.” Unquote.

Patrolman Kessler later told Ed Cor-
win, reporter for the Abilene Reflector-
Chronicle, that Tennopir was visibly agi-
tated, and very pale when he related
his experience. Corwin was called out
of bed to hear Tennopir’s story, and
spent some time with him while he drapk
coffee and tried to quiet his nerves.

Blinking UFO Over Denver

Dozens of Denver, Colorado residents
called authorities to report an unidenti-
fied object over the city on Sept. 27,
which exhibited a chain or string of
blinking lights with a red blinking light
“in front or on top.” Officials at the
Stapleton International Airport Traffic
Control tower who also saw the object
said it appeared to be a sign with se-
quence lights blinking on and off. FAA
officials suggested the object was an air
advertising plane with a malfunction in
the sign’s electrical system, which made
the sign unreadable. No record of an ad-
vertising plan over Denver turned up,
however. )

Two boys, 12 and 14, reported that
they had seen two objects that same
night —one over the Martin Company
plant and another hovering over northeast
Denver. The one over the Martin plant
was a “big silver disc,” they said, but

no description was given of the other
object. Mr. Walter Renelt reported an
enormous star, “10 times brighter than
the brightest star” which he observed for
15 minutes,




This one's for you, bud.

This page is dedicated in great appreciation,
to Peter Davenport
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National UFO Reporting Center
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since 1974

From the TRUE Report On Flying Saucers, 1967

The Exeter Puzzle

Scores of people, including two highly reputable policeman,
swear that what they saw over a period of weeks in the New Hampshire area
- big, silent and glowing - was nothing the Air Force could explain away.

Main square in Exeter, New Hampshire,
a typically quiet New England town of 7,000 people,
none of whom had ever seen a flying saucer before.
Police station is located behind Town Hall (lower left)

A wide, 10-acre field near the New England town of Exeter, N. H., provided the setting for
one of Flying Saucerdom's finest hours.



As recounted in John G. Fuller's exciting book, "Incident at Exeter," it stands as probably
the best-documented - and most tantalizing - case in the growing mystery of UFO sightings.

The fact that two policeman were among the observers didn't hurt its case for authenticity,
either.

Nor the fact that the New England locale is not particularly known for wild-eyed story-
telling.

On the warm, moonless night of Sept. 3, 1965, Norman Muscarello, then 18, burst into the
Exeter police station, still shaking from having seen, as he was hitch-hiking home about 2
a.m.

"The thing" was bigger than a house, he told Patrolman "Scratch" Toland, with brilliant,
pulsating red lights around. It floated toward him silently. Diving from the road into a
small ditch to avoid the on-coming object, he watched, terror-stricken. Then it backed off
slowly until it had reached a sufficient distance for him to get up and run.

Patrolman Reginald "Scratch" Toland
was first person to hear incredible story of saucer landing.
He was at the desk when Muscarello came in, shaking,after seeing "Thing".

At the same time, Patrolman Eugene Bertrand, an Air Force veteran, was cruising when he
found a lone woman at the wheel of her car just two miles outside Exeter. Still badly
shaken, she told how a huge, silent, airborne object had followed her for 10 miles, at only
a few feet's distance from her car. It, too, had brilliant, flashing red lights. When she
reached the Route 101 overpass, the UFO took off at a great speed. Officer Toland, putting
the stories together, instructed Bertrand to return to the open field with the boy.






Patrolman Hunt points to spot in the field where he saw the fluttering movement of UFO.
Patrolman Bertrand was in Air Force for four years
and swears UFO he saw was not a plane, a helicopter or balloon.

While Officer Bertrand was shining his flashlight toward the tree line, the horses in a
nearby corral began kicking and whinnying, dogs began to howl. Muscarello then let out a
yell: "I see it! I see it!"

What Muscarello and an astounded Bertrand saw was a brilliant round object rising up
silently over the pines. All of a sudden the entire area was drenched in a brilliant red light
as the object fluttered toward them, still noiselessly. Racing back to the patrol car with the
boy for fear of radiation, Bertrand reported to the station, "My God, I see the damn thing
myself!"

Moments later, Patrolman David Hunt pulled up in another cruiser. He had heard
Bertrand's exclamation on the radio and decided to see for himself. He got out and
observed the slow, rocking movements of the still-pulsating object moving slowly across
the tops of the trees and toward Hampton.
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